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SECTION I - GENERAL

DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

This Draft Red Herring Prospectus uses certain definitions and abbreviations which, unless the context otherwise indicates or
implies, shall have the meaning as provided below. References to any legislation, act, regulation, rule, guideline or policy shall be
to such legislation, act, regulation, rule, guideline or policy, as amended, supplemented or re-enacted from time to time, and any
reference to a statutory provision shall include any subordinate legislation made from time to time under that provision.

The words and expressions used in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus but not defined herein, shall have, to the extent applicable,
the meaning ascribed to such terms under the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, the Securities Contracts
Regulation Act, 1992(““SCRA "), the Depositories Act or the rules and regulations made there under.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, terms used in of the sections “Statement of Tax Benefits”, “Financial Information of the
Company” and “Main Provisions of the Articles of Association” on page 78, 137 and 244 respectively, shall have the meaning

ascribed to such terms in such sections.

General Terms

Terms

Description

“CCSL”, “the Company”, “our
Company”, “Issuer” and “Concord
Control Systems Limited”

Concord Control Systems Limited, a Company incorporated in India under the Companies
Act, 1956, having its Registered office at G-36 U.P.S.I.D.C, Industrial Area Deva Road
Chinhat, Lucknow-226019 Uttar Pradesh India.

“WE”, “US” and “OUI’”

Unless the context otherwise indicates or implies refers to our Company.

“you”’ “yourn or “your.sn

Prospective investors in this Issue.

Company related and Conventional terms

Term Description
AOA/  Articles/  Articles of | Articles of Association of our Company, as amended from time to time.
Association

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of our Board constituted in accordance with Section 177 of the
Companies Act and as described in the chapter titled “Our Management” beginning on
page 119 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Auditors/ Statutory Auditors

The Statutory Auditors of our Company being M/s. Seth & Associates (FRN: 001167C)

Bankers to our Company

HDFC Bank Limited

Board of Directors/ the Board/ our
Board

The Board of Directors of our Company, including all duly constituted Committees thereof.
For further details of our Directors, please refer to section titled “Our Management”
beginning on page 119 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Chief Financial Officer/ CFO

The Chief Financial Officer of our Company being Mr. Mayank Modi.

CIN

Corporate Identification Number being U31908UP2011PLC043229.

Companies Act/ Act

The Companies Act, 2013 and amendments thereto and erstwhile Companies Act 1956 as
applicable.

Company Secretary and

Compliance Officer

The Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of our Company being Mrs. Lavisha
Wadhwani (M. No.: A44496).

Depositories

A depository registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 1996 as amended from time to time, being.
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India)
Limited (CDSL).

Depositories Act

The Depositories Act, 1996, as amended from time to time.

DIN

Directors Identification Number.

Director(s)/ our Directors

The Director(s) of our Company, unless otherwise specified. For details of our Directors,
see “Our Management” on page 119 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

DP/ Depository Participant

A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act, 1996.

DP ID

Depository’s Participant’s Identity Number

Equity Shareholders/ Shareholders

Persons/ Entities holding Equity Shares of our Company.

Equity Shares

Equity Shares of the Company of face value of X 10/- each unless otherwise specified in the
context thereof.

Executive Directors

An Executive Director of our Company, as appointed from time to time.
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Term

Description

Factory Unit |

The Factory Unit | of our Company situated at G-36, U.P.S.1.D.C Industrial Area, Deva
Road, Chinhat, Lucknow-226019, Uttar Pradesh, India

Factory Unit 1l

The Factory Unit Il of our Company situated at Village Goila G-40, Chinhat Industrial
Area, Lucknow-226028, Uttar Pradesh, India

Fugitive economic offender

Shall mean an individual who is declared a fugitive economic offender under section 12 of
the Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018 (17 of 2018)

GIR Number General Index Registry Number.

HNI High Net worth Individual

HUF Hindu Undivided Family

IBC The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

Independent Director

An Independent Director as defined under Section 2(47) of the Companies Act, 2013 and as
defined under the Listing Regulations. For details, see section titled “Our Management”
on page 119 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Ind AS or Indian Accounting | Indian Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
Standards with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

ISIN International Securities Identification Number. In this case being INEON0J01014.

IT Act The Income Tax Act, 1961 as amended till date.

JV/ Joint Venture

A commercial enterprise undertaken jointly by two or more parties which otherwise retain
their distinct identities.

Key Management Personnel/ KMP

Key Management Personnel of our Company in terms of Regulation 2(1)(bb) of the SEBI
Regulations, Section 2(51) of the Companies Act, 2013. For details, see section titled “Our
Management” on page 119 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

LLP

Limited Liability Partnership incorporated under Limited Liability Partnership Act, 2008.

MOA/ Memorandum/
Memorandum of Association

Memorandum of Association of Concord Control Systems Limited as amended from time
to time.

JMD or Joint Managing Director

The Joint Managing Director of our Company are Mr. Nitin Jain and Mr. Gaurav Lath.

Materiality Policy

The policy adopted by our Board on September 03, 2022 for identification of Group
Companies, material outstanding litigation and material outstanding dues to creditors,
pursuant to the disclosure requirements under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 as
amended from time to time.

Nomination and Remuneration

Committee

The nomination and remuneration committee of our Board constituted in accordance with
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 as described in the chapter titled “Our
Management” beginning on page 119 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Non-Executive Director

The non-executive directors (other than the Independent Directors) of our Company in
terms of the Companies Act, and the rules thereunder. For details, see section titled “Our
Management” on page 119 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

NRIs/ Non-Resident Indians

A person resident outside India, as defined under Foreign Exchange Management Act ,
1999 and who is a citizen of India or a Person of Indian Origin under Foreign Exchange
Management (Transfer or Issue of Security by a Person Resident Outside India)
Regulations, 2000.

Peer Review Auditor

The Independent Peer Reviewed Auditor of our Company M/s. S R Goyal & Co., Chartered
Accountant (FRN: 0001537C)

Person or Persons

Any Individual, Sole Proprietorship, Unincorporated Association, Unincorporated
Organization, Body Corporate, Corporation, Company, Partnership, Limited Liability
Company, Joint Venture, or Trust or any other entity or organization validly constituted
and/or incorporated in the jurisdiction in which it exists and operates, as the context
requires.

Promoter(s)

Shall mean promoters of our Company i.e. Mr. Nitin Jain and Mr. Gaurav Lath. For further
details, please refer to section titled “Our Promoters & Promoter Group” beginning on
page 132 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Promoter Group

Includes such Persons and companies constituting our promoter group covered under
Regulation 2(1)(pp) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 as enlisted in the section “Our
Promoters and Promoter Group” beginning on page 132 of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus.

RBI Act

The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as amended from time to time.

Registered Office of our Company

The Registered Office of our Company situated at G-36 U.P.S.1.D.C, Industrial Area Deva
Road Chinhat Lucknow-226019, Uttar Pradesh India.

Reserve Bank of India/ RBI

Reserve Bank of India constituted under the RBI Act, 1934.
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Term

Description

Restated Consolidated Financial
Information

The Restated Consolidated Financial statements of our Company comprising of the
Restated consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities as at March 31 2022, March 31
2021 and March 31 2020 and the Restated Consolidated Statements of Profit and Loss and
Cash Flows for the Fiscals ended March 31 2022, March 31 2021 and March 31 2020 of
our Company prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP and the Companies Act and
restated in accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 and the Revised Guidance
Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019) issued by the ICAI, together
with the schedules, notes and annexure thereto.

RoC/ Registrar of Companies

Registrar of Companies, 37/17, Westcott Building, The Mall, Kanpur-208001, Uttar
Pradesh, India

Stakeholders’ Relationship | Stakeholders’ relationship committee of our Company constituted in accordance with

Committee Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and regulation 20 of SEBI (Listing obligations and
disclosure requirements) regulations 2015 as described in the chapter titled “Our
Management” beginning on page 119 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus

Stock Exchange Unless the context requires otherwise, refers to, BSE Limited

Shareholders

Shareholders of our Company from time to time.

Sub- Account

Sub- accounts registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Foreign Institutional Investor) Regulations, 1995, other than sub-accounts which are
foreign corporate or foreign individuals.

Subscriber to MOA

Initial Subscribers to MOA & AOA being Mr. Nitin Jain and Mr. Gaurav Lath.

Subsidiary Company

The Subsidiary of our Company being, Drivetrain Solutions Private Limited and Rangetech
Systems India Private Limited. For further details, see “History & Corporate Structure” on
page 114 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Issue Related Terms

Terms

Description

Abridged Prospectus

Abridged prospectus means a memorandum containing such salient features of a prospectus
as may be specified by SEBI in this behalf.

Acknowledgement Slip

The slip or document issued by the Designated Intermediary to a bidders as proof of
registration of the Application.

Allotment/ Allot/ Allotted

Unless the context otherwise requires, means the allotment of Equity Shares, pursuant to the
Issue to the successful bidders.

Allotment Advice

A note or advice or intimation of Allotment sent to the successful Bidders who have been or
are to be Allotted the Equity Shares after the Basis of Allotment has been approved by the
Designated Stock Exchange.

Allottee (s)

A successful bidders to whom the Equity Shares are allotted.

Anchor Investor(s)

A Qualified Institutional Buyer, applying under the Anchor Investor Portion in accordance
with the requirements specified in the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Red Herring
Prospectus and who has Bid for an amount of at least ¥ 200 lakhs.

Anchor Investor Allocation Price

The price at which Equity Shares will be allocated to the Anchor Investors in terms of the
Red Herring Prospectus and the Prospectus, which will be decided by our Company in
consultation with the Book Running Lead Managers during the Anchor Investor Bid/ Issue
Period

Anchor Investor Application Form

The application form used by an Anchor Investor to make a Bid in the Anchor Investor
Portion and which will be considered as an application for Allotment in terms of the Red
Herring Prospectus and Prospectus

Anchor Investor Bid/ Issue Period

One Working Day prior to the Bid/ Issue Opening Date, on which Bids by Anchor Investors
shall be submitted and allocation to the Anchor Investors shall be completed.

Anchor Investor Issue Price

The final price at which the Equity Shares will be Allotted to the Anchor Investors in terms
of the Red Herring Prospectus and the Prospectus, which price will be equal to or higher
than the Issue Price but not higher than the Cap Price.

The Anchor Investor Issue Price will be decided by our Company, in consultation with the
Book Running Lead Managers

Anchor Investor Portion

Up to 60% of the QIB Portion which may be allocated by our Company, in consultation
with the Book Running Lead Managers, to the Anchor Investors on a discretionary basis in
accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

One-third of the Anchor Investor Portion shall be reserved for domestic Mutual Funds,
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subject to valid Bids being received from domestic Mutual Funds at or above the Anchor
Investor Allocation Price, in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations

Application Supported by Block
Amount (ASBA)

An application, whether physical or electronic, used by ASBA Bidders, to make a Bid and
authorising an SCSB to block the Bid Amount in the ASBA Account and will
include amounts blocked by the SCSB upon acceptance of UPI Mandate Request by the
UPI Bidders using the UPI Mechanism

ASBA Account

A bank account maintained by ASBA Bidders with an SCSB and specified in the ASBA
Form submitted by such ASBA Bidder in which funds will be blocked by such SCSB to the
extent of the specified in the ASBA Form submitted by such ASBA Bidder and includes a
bank account maintained by a Retail Individual Investor linked to a UPI ID, which will be
blocked in relation to a Bid by a Retail Individual Investor Bidding through the UPI
Mechanism.

ASBA  Application
Specified Cities

Location(s)/

Locations at which ASBA Applications can be uploaded by the SCSBs, namely Mumbai,
New Delhi, Chennai, Kolkata and Ahmedabad

ASBA Bidder

Any prospective investor(s) / Bidder (s) in this Issue who apply(ies) through the ASBA
process except Anchor Investor

ASBA Form/ Bid cum Application

An Application form (with or without UPI ID, as applicable), whether physical or
electronic, used by Bidders which will be considered as the application for Allotment in
terms of the Red Herring Prospectus or the Prospectus.

Banker to the Issue Agreement

Agreement dated [e] entered into amongst the Company, Book Running Lead Manager, the
Registrar, Sponsor Bank and the Banker to the Issue.

Bankers to the Issue/ Public Issue
Bank/ Sponsor Bank

Banks which are clearing members and registered with SEBI as Bankers to an Issue and
with whom the Public Issue Account will be opened, in this case being [®]

Basis of Allotment

The basis on which the Equity Shares will be Allotted to successful bidders under the issue
and which is described in the chapter titled “Issue Procedure” beginning on page 213 of this
Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Bid

An indication to make an offer during the Bid/ Issue Period by a Bidder (other than an
Anchor Investor) pursuant to submission of the ASBA Form, or during the Anchor Investor
Bid/ Issue Period by an Anchor Investor, pursuant to submission of the Anchor Investor
Application Form, to subscribe to or purchase the Equity Shares at a price within the Price
Band, including all revisions and modifications thereto as permitted under the SEBI ICDR
Regulations and in terms of the Red Herring Prospectus and the Bid cum Application Form.
The term “Bidding” shall be construed accordingly.

Bid Amount

The highest value of optional Bids indicated in the Bid cum Application Form and in the
case of Retail Individual Bidders Bidding at Cut Off Price, the Cap Price multiplied by the
number of Equity Shares Bid for by such Retail Individual Bidder and mentioned in the Bid
cum Application Form and payable by the Retail Individual Bidder or blocked in the ASBA
Account upon submission of the Bid in the Issue.

Bid Lot

[®] equity shares and in multiples of [®] equity shares thereafter.

Bid/ Issue Closing Date

Except in relation to any Bids received from the Anchor Investors, the date after which the
Syndicate, the Designated Branches and the Registered Brokers shall not accept the Bids,
which shall be notified in in all editions of the English national newspaper [®], all editions
of Hindi national newspaper [®] and Lucknow Edition of Regional newspaper [®] where the
registered office of the company is situated, each with wide circulation, and in case of any
revision, the extended Bid/ Issue closing Date also to be notified on the website and
terminals of the Syndicate, SCSB’s and Sponsor Bank, as required under the SEBI ICDR
Regulations.

Bid/ Issue Opening Date

Except in relation to any Bids received from the Anchor Investors, the date on which the
Syndicate, the Designated Branches and the Registered Brokers shall start accepting Bids,
which shall be notified in in all editions of the English national newspaper [®], all editions
of Hindi national newspaper [®] and Lucknow Edition of Regional newspaper [®] where the
registered office of the company is situated, each with wide circulation, and in case of any
revision, the extended Bid/ Issue Opening Date also to be notified on the website and
terminals of the Syndicate and SCSBs, as required under the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Bid/ Issue Period

Except in relation to any Bids received from the Anchor Investors, the period between the
Bid/ Issue Opening Date and the Bid/ Issue Closing Date or the QIB Bid/ Issue Closing
Date, as the case may be, inclusive of both days, during which Bidders can submit their
Bids, including any revisions thereof. Provided however that the Bidding/ Issue Period shall
be kept open for a minimum of three Working Days for all categories of Bidders.
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Bidder/ Applicant

Any prospective investor who makes a bid pursuant to the terms of the Draft Red Herring
Prospectus and the Bid-Cum-Application Form and unless otherwise stated or implied,
which includes an ASBA Bidder and an Anchor Investor

Bidding

The process of making a Bid.

Bidding/ Collection Centers

Centers at which the Designated intermediaries shall accept the ASBA Forms, i.e.
Designated SCSB Branches for SCSBs, specified locations for syndicates, broker centers
for registered brokers, designated RTA Locations for RTAs and designated CDP locations
for CDPs.

Book Building Process/ Book

Building Method

Book building process, as provided in Part A of Schedule XIIlI of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, in terms of which the Issue is being made

BRLM / Book Running Lead
Manager

Book Running Lead Manager to the Issue in this case being Hem Securities Limited, SEBI
Registered Category | Merchant Banker.

Broker Centres

Broker Centres notified by the Stock Exchanges, where the investors can submit the
Application Forms to a Registered Broker. The details of such Broker Centers, along with
the names and contact details of the Registered Brokers are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange.

Business Day

Monday to Friday (except public holidays).

CAN or
Allocation Note

Confirmation of

The Note or advice or intimation sent to each successful Applicant indicating the Equity
which will be allotted, after approval of Basis of Allotment by the designated Stock
Exchange.

Cap Price The higher end of the price band above which the Issue Price will not be finalized and
above which no Bids (or a revision thereof) will be accepted.
Client Id Client Identification Number maintained with one of the Depositories in relation to Demat

account

Collecting Depository Participants
or CDPs

A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act, 1996, registered with SEBI
and who is eligible to procure Applications at the Desighated CDP Locations in terms of
circular no. CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated November 10, 2015 issued by SEBI

Collecting Registrar and Share

Transfer Agent

Registrar to an Issue and share transfer agents registered with SEBI and eligible to procure
Bids at the Designated RTA Locations in terms of circular no.
CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated November 10, 2015 issued by SEBI.

Controlling Branches of the SCSBs

Such branches of the SCSBs which coordinate with the BRLM, the Registrar to the Issue
and the Stock Exchange.

Cut Off Price

The Issue Price, which shall be any price within the Price band as finalized by our Company
in consultation with the BRLM. Only Retail Individual Investors are entitled to Bid at the
Cut-off Price. QIBs (including Anchor Investor) and Non-Institutional Investors are not
entitled to Bid at the Cut-off Price.

Demographic Details

The demographic details of the applicants such as their Address, PAN, name of the
applicants father/husband, investor status, Occupation and Bank Account details.

Depositor/ Depositories

A depository registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 1996 as amended from time to time i.e.
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India)
Limited (CDSL).

Depositories Act

The Depositories Act, 1996, as amended from time to time.

Designated CDP Locations

Such locations of the CDPs where Applicant can submit the Application Forms to
Collecting Depository Participants.

The details of such Designated CDP Locations, along with names and contact details of the
Collecting Depository Participants eligible to accept Bid-Cum-Application Forms are
available on the website of the Stock Exchange i.e. www.bseindia.com

Designated Date

The date on which funds are transferred from the Escrow Account(s) and the amounts
blocked are transferred from the ASBA Accounts, as the case may be, to the Public Offer
Account(s) or the Refund Account(s), as applicable, in terms of the Red Herring Prospectus
and the Prospectus, after the finalisation of the Basis of Allotment in consultation with the
Designated Stock Exchange, following which Equity Shares may be Allotted to successful
Bidders in the Offer.

Designated Intermediaries/

Collecting Agent

An SCSB’s with whom the bank account to be blocked, is maintained, a syndicate member
(or sub-syndicate member), a Stock Broker registered with recognized Stock Exchange, a
Depositary Participant, a registrar to an issue and share transfer agent (RTA) (whose names
is mentioned on website of the stock exchange as eligible for this activity).

Designated Market Maker

Member Brokers of BSE who are specifically registered as Market Makers with the BSE
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SME Platform. In our case, Hem Securities Limited is the sole Market Marker.

Designated RTA Locations

Such locations of the RTAs where Bidder can submit the Bid-Cum-Application Forms to
RTAs. The details of such Designated RTA Locations, along with names and contact details
of the RTAs eligible to accept Bid-Cum-Application Forms are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange i.e. www.bseindia.com.

Designated SCSB Branches

Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the ASBA Application Form from the
Applicant and a list of which is available on the website of SEBI at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/Other Action.do?doRecognised=yes. ~ Recognized-
Intermediaries or at such other website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

Designated Stock Exchange

BSE Ltd. (“SME Exchange”) (“BSE SME”)

DP ID

Depository’s Participant’s Identity Number

DP/ Depository Participant

A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act, 1996

Draft Red Herring Prospectus

Draft Red Herring Prospectus dated September 08, 2022 filed with BSE SME.

Electronic Transfer of Funds

Refunds through NACH, NEFT, Direct Credit or RTGS as applicable.

Eligible NRI

A Non Resident Indian in a jurisdiction outside India where it is not unlawful to make an
offer or invitation under the Issue and in relation to whom this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus will constitute an invitation to subscribe for the Equity Shares.

Eligible QFls QFIs from such jurisdictions outside India where it is not unlawful to make an issue or
invitation under the Issue and in relation to whom the Prospectus constitutes an invitation to
purchase the Equity shares issued thereby and who have opened Demat accounts with SEBI
registered qualified depositary participants.

Escrow Account(s) The account(s) to be opened with the Escrow Collection Bank and in whose favour the

Anchor Investors will transfer money through NACH/direct credit/ NEFT/ RTGS in respect
of the Bid Amount when submitting a Bid.

FIl/ Foreign Institutional Investors

Foreign Institutional Investor as defined under SEBI (Foreign Institutional Investors)
Regulations, 1995, as amended) registered with SEBI under applicable laws in India.

First Bidder/ Applicant/ Bidders

Bidder(s) whose name shall be mentioned in the Bid cum Application Form or the Revision
Form and in case of joint bids, whose name shall also appear as the first holder of the
beneficiary account held in joint names.

Floor Price

The lower end of the Price Band, subject to any revision(s) thereto, at or above which the
Issue Price and the Anchor Investor Issue Price will be finalised and below which no Bids
will be accepted

Foreign Venture Capital Investors

Foreign Venture Capital Investors registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Foreign Venture
Capital Investor) Regulations, 2000.

FPI1/ Foreign Portfolio Investor

A Foreign Portfolio Investor who has been registered pursuant to the of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2014, provided that any
FII or QFI who holds a valid certificate of registration shall be deemed to be a foreign
portfolio investor till the expiry of the block of three years for which fees have been paid as
per the SEBI (Foreign Institutional Investors) Regulations, 1995, as amended

Fugitive Economic Offender

An individual who is declared a fugitive economic offender under Section 12 of the
Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018.

General Corporate Purposes

Include such identified purposes for which no specific amount is allocated or any amount so
specified towards general corporate purpose or any such purpose by whatever name called,
in the offer document. Provided that any issue related expenses shall not be considered as a
part of general corporate purpose merely because no specific amount has been allocated for
such expenses in the offer document.

General Information Document | The General Information Document for investing in public issues, prepared and issued

(GID) in accordance with the SEBI circular (SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/37) dated March
17, 2020 and the UPI Circulars. The General Information Document shall be available on
the websites of the Stock Exchanges, and the Book Running Lead Managers.

Issue Agreement The Issue Agreement dated September 01, 2022 between our Company and Book Running
Lead Manager, Hem Securities Limited.

Issue Price The Price at which the Equity Shares are being issued by our Company under this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus being X [e] per Equity share.

Issue Proceeds Proceeds to be raised by our Company through this Issue, for further details please refer
chapter titled “Objects of the Issue” beginning on page 71 of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus

Issue/ Public Issue/ Issue size/ | The Initial Public Issue of upto 15,12,000 Equity shares of % 10/- each at issue price of X

Initial Public Issue/ Initial Public

[e]/- per Equity share, including a premium of X [e]/- per equity share aggregating to X [e]
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Offering/ IPO

lakhs

Listing Agreement

The Equity Listing Agreement to be signed between our Company and the Stock Exchange.

Lot Size

[e]

Mandate Request

Mandate Request means a request initiated on the RIlI by sponsor bank to authorize
blocking of funds equivalent to the application amount and subsequent debit to funds in
case of allotment.

Market Maker Reservation Portion

The reserved portion of 78,000 Equity Shares of 310 each at an Issue price of X [e] each is
aggregating to X [e] Lakhs to be subscribed by Market Maker in this issue.

Market Making Agreement

The Market Making Agreement dated September 01, 2022 between our Company, Lead
Manager and Market Maker, Hem Securities Limited.

Mutual Fund Portion

5% of the Net QIB Portion, or [®] Equity Shares, which shall be available for allocation to
Mutual Funds only on a proportionate basis, subject to valid Bids being received at or above
the Issue Price.

Mutual Funds

A mutual fund registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996, as
amended from time to time.

Net Issue

The Issue (excluding the Market Maker Reservation Portion) of 14,34,000 equity Shares of
%10/- each at a price of X [e] per Equity Share (the “Issue Price”), including a share
premium of X [e] per equity share aggregating to X [e] Lakhs.

Net Proceeds

The Issue Proceeds received from the fresh Issue excluding Issue related expenses. For
further information on the use of Issue Proceeds and Issue expenses, please refer to the
section titled “Objects of the Issue” beginning on page 71 of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus.

Net QIB Portion

The portion of the QIB Portion less the number of Equity Shares Allocated to the Anchor
Investors

Non- Resident

A person resident outside India, as defined under FEMA and includes NRIs, FPIs and
FVCls

Non-Institutional Bidders

All Bidders that are not QIBs, RIBs or Eligible Employees Bidding in the Employee
Reservation Portion and who have Bid for Equity Shares, for an amount of more than
200,000 (but not including NRIs other than Eligible NRIs)

Non-Institutional Portion

The portion of the Issue being not less than 15% of the Issue, consisting of [e] Equity
Shares, which shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to Non Institutional
Investors, subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price.

Other Investor

Investors other than Retail Individual Investors. These include individual applicants other
than retail individual investors and other investors including corporate bodies or institutions
irrespective of the number of specified securities applied for.

Overseas Corporate Body/ OCB

Overseas Corporate Body means and includes an entity defined in clause (xi) of Regulation
2 of the Foreign Exchange Management (Withdrawal of General Permission to Overseas
Corporate Bodies (OCB’s) Regulations 2003 and which was in existence on the date of the
commencement of these Regulations and immediately prior to such commencement was
eligible to undertake transactions pursuant to the general permission granted under the
Regulations. OCBs are not allowed to invest in this Issue.

Pay-in-Period The period commencing on the Bid/Issue Opening date and extended till the closure of the
Anchor Investor Pay-in-Date.

Payment through electronic | Payment through NECS, NEFT or Direct Credit, as applicable.

transfer of funds

Person/ Persons Any individual, sole proprietorship, unincorporated association, unincorporated

organization, body corporate, corporation, company, partnership, limited liability company,
joint venture, or trust or any other entity or organization validly constituted and/ or
incorporated in the jurisdiction in which it exists and operates, as the context requires.

Price Band

Price Band of a minimum price (Floor Price) of % [e] and the maximum price (Cap Price) of
X [e] and includes revisions thereof. The Price Band will be decided by our Company in
consultation with the BRLM and advertised in two national daily newspapers (one each in
English and in Hindi) with wide circulation and one daily regional newspaper with wide
circulation at least two working days prior to the Bid/ Issue Opening Date.

Pricing Date

The date on which our Company in consultation with the BRLM, will finalize the Issue
Price.

Prospectus

The Prospectus, to be filed with the Registrar of Companies in accordance with the
provisions of Section 26 & 32 of the Companies Act, 2013, containing, inter alia, the Issue
Price, size of the Issue and certain other information.
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Public Issue Account

Account to be opened with the Bankers to the Issue to receive monies from the SCSBs from
the bank account of the Applicant, on the Designated Date.

QIB Category/ QIB Portion

The portion of the Net Issue (including the Anchor Investor Portion) being not more than
50% of the Net Issue, consisting of [®] Equity Shares aggregating to X[e] lakhs which shall
be Allotted to QIBs (including Anchor Investors) on a proportionate basis, including the
Anchor Investor Portion (in which allocation shall be on a discretionary basis, as
determined by our Company in consultation with the BRLMS), subject to valid Bids being
received at or above the Issue Price or Anchor Investor Offer Price (for Anchor Investors).

Qualified Institutional
QIBs/ QIB Bidders

Buyers/

Qualified institutional buyers as defined under Regulation 2(1)(ss) of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations.

Red Herring Prospectus / RHP

The Red Herring Prospectus to be issued in accordance with Section 32 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, which will not have complete
particulars of the price at which the Equity Shares will be Issued and the size of the Issue,
including any addenda or corrigenda thereto.

Refund Account

The ‘no-lien” and ‘non-interest bearing” account opened with the Refund Bank, from which
refunds, if any, of the whole or part, of the Bid Amount to the Anchor Investors
shall be made.

Refund Bank/ Refund Banker

Bank which is / are clearing member(s) and registered with the SEBI as Bankers to the
Issue at which the Refund Account will be opened, in this case being [e].

Refund through electronic transfer
of funds

Refunds through NECS, direct credit, RTGS or NEFT, as applicable.

Registered Broker

The stockbrokers registered with the stock exchanges having nationwide terminals,
other than the members of the Syndicate and eligible to procure Bids

Registrar Agreement

The agreement dated September 05, 2022 entered into between our Company and the
Registrar to the Issue in relation to the responsibilities and obligations of the Registrar to the
Issue pertaining to the Issue.

Registrar and Share Transfer

Agents or RTAs

Registrar and share transfer agents registered with SEBI and eligible to procure
Applications at the Designated RTA Locations in terms of circular no.
CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 DATED November 10, 2015 issued by SEBI.

Registrar/ Registrar to the Issue/
RTA/ RTI

Registrar to the Issue, in this case being Bigshare Services Private Limited.

Regulation S

Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended from time to time.

Reservation Portion

The portion of the Issue reserved for category of eligible Applicants as provided under the
SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018.

Reserved Category/ Categories

Categories of persons eligible for making application under reservation portion.

Retail Individual Bidders/ RIBs/
Retail Individual Investors/ RIls

Individual Bidders, submitting Bids, who have Bid for Equity Shares for an amount not
more than % 2,00,000/- in any of the bidding options in the Net Issue (including HUFs
applying through their Karta and Eligible NRIs and does not include NRIs other than
Eligible NRIs).

Retail Portion

The portion of the Issue being not less than 35% of the Net Issue, consisting of [e] Equity
Shares, available for allocation to Retail Individual Bidders.

Revision Form

The form used by the Bidders to modify the quantity of Equity Shares or the Bid Amount in
any of their Bid Cum Application Forms or any previous Revision Form(s), as applicable.
QIBs and Non-Institutional Investors are not allowed to withdraw or lower their Bids (in
terms of quantity of Equity Shares or the Bid Amount) at any stage.

Securities laws

Means the Act, the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, the Depositories Act, 1996
and the rules and regulations made thereunder and the general or special orders, guidelines
or circulars made or issued by the Board thereunder and the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 or any previous company law and any subordinate legislation framed thereunder,
which are administered by the Board.

SEBI (ICDR) Regulations/ ICDR
Regulation/ Regulation

SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 issued by SEBI on
September 11, 2018, as amended, including instructions and clarifications issued by SEBI
from time to time.

SEBI
Regulations

(Venture Capital)

Securities Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital) Regulations, 1996 as amended from
time to time.

SEBI Act/ SEBI

Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as amended from time to time.

SEBI Insider Trading Regulations

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015 as amended, including instructions and clarifications issued by SEBI from time to
time.
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SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015/
SEBI Listing Regulations/ Listing
Regulations/ SEBI (LODR)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended, including instructions and clarifications
issued by SEBI from time to time.

SEBI Takeover Regulations or
SEBI (SAST) Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeover)
Regulations, 2011, as amended from time to time.

Self-Certified Syndicate Bank(s) /
SCSB(s)

Shall mean a Banker to an Issue registered under Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Bankers to an Issue) Regulations, 1994, as amended from time to time, and which offer the
service of making Application/s Supported by Blocked Amount including blocking of bank
account and a list of which is available on
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/Other Action.do?doRecognised=yes or at such other
website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

SME Exchange

SME Platform of the BSE i.e. BSE SME.

Specified Locations

Collection centers where the SCSBs shall accept application form, a list of which is
available on the website of SEBI (https://www.sebi.gov.in/) and updated from time to time.

Specified Securities

Equity shares offered through this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Sponsor Bank

Sponsor Bank means a Banker to the Issue registered with SEBI, which is appointed by the
Issuer to act as a conduit between the Stock Exchanges and NPCI (National Payments
Corporation of India) in order to push the mandate, collect requests and / or payment
instructions of the Retail Investors into the UPI.

Sub Syndicate Member

A SEBI Registered member of BSE appointed by the BRLM and/ or syndicate member to
act as a Sub Syndicate Member in the Issue.

Syndicate

Includes the BRLM, Syndicate Members and Sub Syndicate Members.

Syndicate Agreement

The agreement dated [®] entered into amongst our Company, the BRLM and the Syndicate
Members, in relation to the collection of Bids in this Issue.

Syndicate ASBA

Locations

Bidding

Bidding Centers where an ASBA Bidder can submit their Bid in terms of SEBI Circular no.
CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2011 dated April 29, 2011, namely Mumbai, Chennai, Kolkata, Delhi

Syndicate Members/ Members of
the Syndicate

Intermediaries registered with SEBI eligible to act as a syndicate member and who is
permitted to carry on the activity as an underwriter, in this case being [e].

Systemically  Important  Non-

Banking Financial Company

Systemically important non-banking financial company as defined under Regulation
2(1)(iii) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Transaction Registration Slip/ TRS

The slip or document issued by the member of the Syndicate or SCSB (only on demand) as
the case may be, to the Applicant as proof of registration of the Application.

U.S. Securities Act

U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended

Underwriter

The BRLM who has underwritten this Issue pursuant to the provisions of the SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations, 2018 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Underwriters)
Regulations, 1993, as amended from time to time.

Underwriting Agreement

The Agreement September 01, 2022 entered between the Underwriter, BRLM and our
Company.

UPI UPI is an instant payment system developed by the NCPI, it enables merging several
banking features, seamless fund routing & merchant payment into one hood. UPI allow
instant transfer of money between any two bank accounts using a payment address which
uniquely identifies a person’s bank account

UPI Circulars SEBI circular no. CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/22 dated February 15, 2018, SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/138 dated November 1, 2018, SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/50 dated April 3, 2019, SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/76 dated June 28, 2019, SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July 26, 2019 SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DCR2/CIR/P/2019/133 dated November 8, 2019, SEBI Circular no
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/50 dated March 30, 2020, SEBI Circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/2480/1/M dated March 16, 2021, SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/47 dated March 31, 2021, SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/2021/570 dated June 2, 2021, SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2022/45 dated April 5, 2022, SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2022/51 dated April 20, 2022 SEBI Circular No:
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/76 dated May 30, 2022.and any
subsequent circulars or notifications issued by SEBI in this regard.

UPI ID D created on the UPI for single-window mobile payment system developed by the NPCI

UPI Mandate Request/ Mandate
Request

A request (intimating the RIl by way of notification on the UPI application and by way of a
SMS directing the RII to such UPI application) to the RIl by sponsor bank to authorize
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blocking of funds equivalent to the application amount and subsequent debit to funds in
case of allotment.

UPI Mechanism

The mechanism that was used by an RIB to make a Bid in the Offer in accordance with the
UPI Circulars on Streamlining of Public Issues

UPI PIN

Password to authenticate UPI transaction

Venture Capital Fund/ VCF

Foreign Venture Capital Funds (as defined under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Venture Capital Funds) Regulations, 1996) registered with SEBI under applicable
laws in India.

Wilful Defaulter(s)

Wilful defaulter as defined under Regulation 2(1)(1ll) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations,
2018.

Working Day

In accordance with Regulation 2(1) (mmm) of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, working
days means, all days on which commercial banks in Mumbai are open for business.
However, in respect of—

(a) announcement of Price Band; and

(b) Issue period, working days shall mean all days, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and
public holidays, on which commercial banks in Mumbai are open for business;

(c) the time period between the Issue Closing Date and the listing of the Equity Shares on
the Stock Exchange, working day shall mean all trading days of the Stock Exchange,
excluding Sundays and bank holidays, as per circulars issued by SEBI.

Technical and Industry Related Terms

Term Description

AC Alternating Current

AH Amp Hours

BLDC Brushless Direct Current Motor

CORE Central Organisation For Railway Electrification
CRP Control & Relay Panel

DC Direct Current

FRP Fiberglass-Reinforced Plastics

FMV Fair Market Value

HZ Hertz

IT Information Technology

IR Indian Railway

KGF/SEC Kilogram-Force per Second

KMPH Kilometre Per Hour

KV Kilovolt

LHB Coaches Linke Hofmann Busch coaches

MA Milli Ampere

MRP Maximum Retail Price

NSIC The National small Industries Corporation Limited
OHE Over Head Equipment

P&M Plant and Machinery

QA Quality Assurance

QC Quality Control

RM Raw Material

R&D Research and development

RDSO Research Designs & Standards Organisation
RPM Revolutions per minute

RMPU Roof Mounted Package Unit

RE Railway Electrification

Sq. Ft. Square Feet

U.P.S.1.D.C. Uttar Pradesh State Industrial Development Corporation

Conventional terms and Abbreviations

Abbreviation Full Form

Rs./ Rupees/ INR/ Indian Rupees, the legal currency of the Republic of India

AS/ Accounting Standard Accounting Standards as issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
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Alc Account

ACS Associate Company Secretary

AGM Annual General Meeting

ASBA Applications Supported by Blocked Amount

AMT Amount

AlF Alternative Investment Funds registered under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Alternative Investment Funds) Regulations, 2012, as amended.

AY Assessment Year

AOA Articles of Association

Approx Approximately

B.A Bachelor of Arts

B.Com Bachelor of Commerce

B.E Bachelor of Engineering

B.Sc Bachelor of Science

B.Tech Bachelor of Technology

Bn Billion

BG/LC Bank Guarantee/ Letter of Credit

BIFR Board for Industrial and Financial Reconstruction

BRLM Book Running Lead Manager

BSE BSE Limited

CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited

CAGR Compounded Annual Growth Rate

CAN Confirmation of Allocation Note

Companies Act, 2013

Companies Act, 2013 to the extent in force pursuant to the notification of sections of the
Companies Act, 2013 along with the relevant rules made thereunder as amended.

Companies Act, 1956

Companies Act, 1956 (without reference to the provisions that have ceased upon
notification of the Companies Act, 2013) along with the relevant rules made thereunder

CA Chartered Accountant

CAIlIB Certified Associate of Indian Institute of Bankers

CB Controlling Branch

CC Cash Credit

CIN Corporate Identification Number

CIT Commissioner of Income Tax

CS Company Secretary

CS&CO Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

CFO Chief Financial Officer

CSR Corporate Social Responsibility

C.P.C. Code of Civil Procedure, 1908

CrPC Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973

CENVAT Central Value Added Tax

CST Central Sales Tax

CWA/ ICWA Cost and Works Accountant

JMD Joint Managing Director

DIN Director Identification Number

DIPP Department of Industrial Policy and Promotion, Ministry of Commerce, Government of
India

DP Depository Participant

DP ID Depository Participant’s Identification Number

EBITDA Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation & Amortization

ECS Electronic Clearing System

ESIC Employee’s State Insurance Corporation

EPFA Employee’s Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act,1952

EMI Equated Monthly Instalments

EPS Earnings Per Share

EGM/ EOGM Extraordinary General Meeting

ESOP Employee Stock Option Plan

EXIM/ EXIM Policy

Export — Import Policy
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FCNR Account

Foreign Currency Non Resident Account

FIPB

Foreign Investment Promotion Board

FY/ Fiscal/ Financial Year

Period of twelve months ended March 31 of that particular year, unless otherwise stated

FEMA

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 as amended from time to time, and the
regulations framed there under.

FCNR Account Foreign Currency Non Resident Account

FBT Fringe Benefit Tax

FDI Foreign Direct Investment

Fls Financial Institutions

Flls Foreign Institutional Investors (as defined under Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer
or Issue of Security by a Person Resident outside India) Regulations, 2000) registered with
SEBI under applicable laws in India

FPIs “Foreign Portfolio Investor” means a person who satisfies the eligibility criteria prescribed
under regulation 4 and has been registered under Chapter 11 of Securities And Exchange
Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2014, which shall be deemed to
be an intermediary in terms of the provisions of the SEBI Act, 1992

FTA Foreign Trade Agreement

FVCI Foreign Venture Capital Investors registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital Investors) Regulations, 2000.

FEMA Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, including the rules and regulations thereunder

FEMA Rules Foreign Exchange Management (Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2019

Finance Act Finance Act, 1994

Fraudulent Borrower A fraudulent borrower as defined in Regulation 2(1)(lll) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

FV Face Value

Gol/ Government Government of India

GDP Gross Domestic Product

GST Goods and Services Tax

GVA Gross Value Added

HUF Hindu Undivided Family

HNI High Net Worth Individual

HSL Hem Securities Limited

IBC The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

ICAI The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

ISIN International Securities Identification Number

IST Indian Standard Time

ICWAI The Institute of Cost Accountants of India

IMF International Monetary Fund

1P Index of Industrial Production

IPO Initial Public Offer

ICSI The Institute of Company Secretaries of India

IT Information Technology

IT Act InformationTechnologyAct,2000

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

I.T. Act Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended from time to time

IT Authorities Income Tax Authorities

IT Rules Income Tax Rules, 1962, as amended, except as stated otherwise

Indian GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India

Ind AS Indian Accounting Standards as referred to in and notified by the Ind AS Rules

Ind AS Rules The Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015

IRDA Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority

KMP Key Managerial Personnel

LL.B Bachelor of Law

Ltd. Limited

LLP Limited Liability Partnership

MAT Minimum Alternate Tax

MoF Ministry of Finance, Government of India

MoU Memorandum of Understanding
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M. A Master of Arts

MCA Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India
MBA Master of Business Administration

MAT Minimum Alternate Tax

M.Com Master of Commerce

Mn Million

M.E Master of Engineering

M.Tech Masters of Technology

Merchant Banker

Merchant Banker as defined under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Merchant
Bankers) Regulations, 1992

MSME Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

MAPIN Market Participants and Investors Database

NA Not Applicable

NCLT National Company Law Tribunal

Net worth The aggregate of paid up Share Capital and Share Premium account and Reserves and
Surplus (Excluding revaluation reserves) as reduced by aggregate of Miscellaneous
Expenditure (to the extent not written off) and debit balance of Profit & Loss Account

NACH National Automated Clearing House

NEFT National Electronic Funds Transfer

NECS National Electronic Clearing System

NAV Net Asset Value

NCT National Capital Territory

NPV Net Present Value

NRIs Non-Resident Indians

NRE Account Non-Resident External Account

NRO Account Non-Resident Ordinary Account

NSE National Stock Exchange of India Limited

NOC No Objection Certificate

NSDL National Securities Depository Limited

OCB or Overseas Corporate Body

A company, partnership, society or other corporate body owned directly or indirectly to the
extent of at least 60% by NRIs including overseas trusts in which not less than 60% of the
beneficial interest is irrevocably held by NRIs directly or indirectly and which was in
existence on October 3, 2003 and immediately before such date was eligible to undertake
transactions pursuant to the general permission granted to OCBs under the FEMA. OCBs
are not allowed to invest in the Issue.

P.A. Per Annum

PF Provident Fund

PG Post Graduate

PGDBA Post Graduate Diploma in Business Administration
PGDBM Post Graduate Diploma in Business Management
PLR Prime Lending Rate

PAC Persons Acting in Concert
P/E Ratio Price/ Earnings Ratio

PAN Permanent Account Number
PAT Profit After Tax

P.O. Purchase Order

PBT Profit Before Tax

PLI Postal Life Insurance

POA Power of Attorney

PSU Public Sector Undertaking(s)
Pvt. Private

Q.C. Quality Control

RoC Registrar of Companies

RBI The Reserve Bank of India
Registration Act Registration Act, 1908

ROE Return on Equity

R&D Research & Development
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RONW Return on Net Worth

RTGS Real Time Gross Settlement

SCRA Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, as amended from time to time
SCRR Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957, as amended from time to time
SME Small and Medium Enterprises

SCSB Self-Certified syndicate Banks

SEBI Act Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as amended

SEBI AIF Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternate Investments Funds) Regulations, 2012,
as amended.

SEBI FII Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Institutional Investors) Regulations, 1995,
as amended from time to time.

SEBI FPI Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2014, as
amended from time to time.

SEBI FVCI Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital Investor) Regulations,
2000, as amended from time to time.

SEBI Insider Trading
Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015,
as amended

SEBI (PFUTP)
PFUTP Regulations

Regulations/

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade
Practices relating to Securities Markets) Regulations, 2003

SEBI Regulations/ SEBI ICDR

Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018, as amended.

SEBI SBEB Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014.

SEBI  Takeover  Regulations/
Takeover Regulations/ Takeover
Code

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011, as amended.

SEBI VCF Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Funds) Regulations, 1996 as
amended from time to time.

SEBI

Securities and Exchange Board of India

STT

Securities Transaction Tax

Sub-Account

Sub-accounts registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Foreign Institutional Investor)
Regulations, 1995, other than sub-accounts which are foreign corporate or foreign
individuals.

Sec. Section

SENSEX Bombay Stock Exchange Sensitive Index
SICA Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985
SSI Small Scale Industry

SPV Special Purpose Vehicle

TAN Tax Deduction Account Number

TRS Transaction Registration Slip

Trade Marks Act Trade Marks Act, 1999

TIN Taxpayers Identification Number

UIN Unique identification number

U.N. United Nations

US/ United States

United States of America

U.S. Securities Act

The United States Securities Act, 1933

USD/ US$/ $ United States Dollar, the official currency of the Unites States of America

U.S. GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States of America

VAT Value Added Tax

\VCF Venture Capital Funds

VCFs Venture capital funds as defined in and registered with the SEBI under the Securities and

Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Fund) Regulations, 1996 or the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds) Regulations, 2012, as the case
may Be.

Wilful Defaulter(s)

Company or person categorised as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution (as
defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consortium thereof, in accordance with the
guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India and includes any
company whose directors or promoters is categorised as such and as defined under
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Regulation 2(1)(111) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018.
WDV Written Down Value
WTD Whole Time Director
w.e.f. With effect from
- ) Represent Outflow

The words and expressions used but not defined in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus will have the same meaning as assigned to
such terms under the Companies Act, 2013, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (the “SEBI Act”), the SCRA,
SEBI (lIssue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 the Depositories Act and the rules and regulations made
thereunder.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, terms in “Main Provisions of the Articles of Association”, “Statement of Special Tax Benefits”,
“Industry Overview”, “Regulations and Policies in India”, “Financial Information of the Company”, “Outstanding
Litigations and Material Developments” and “Issue Procedure”, will have the meaning ascribed to such terms in these
respective sections.
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CERTAIN CONVENTIONS, USE OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND MARKET DATA AND CURRENCY OF
FINANCIAL PRESENTATION

Certain Conventions

In this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, the terms “we”, “us”, “our”, the “Company”, “our Company”, unless the context otherwise
indicates or implies, refers to Concord Control Systems Limited. All references in the Draft Red Herring Prospectus to “India” are
to the Republic of India. All references in the Draft Red Herring Prospectus to the “U.S.”, “USA” or “United States” are to the
United States of America.

In this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, unless the context otherwise requires, all references to one gender also refers to another
gender and the word “Lac/ Lakh” means “one hundred thousand”, the word “million (mn)” means “Ten Lac/ Lakh”, the word
“Crore” means “ten million” and the word “billion (bn)” means “one hundred crore”. In this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, any
discrepancies in any table between total and the sum of the amounts listed are due to rounding-off.

Use of Financial Data

Unless stated otherwise, throughout this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, all figures have been expressed in Rupees and Lakh.
Unless stated otherwise, the financial data in the Draft Red Herring Prospectus is derived from our restated consolidated financial
information prepared for the year ended March 31, 2022, March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 in accordance with Indian GAAP,
the Companies Act and SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 included under Section titled “Financial Information of the Company”
beginning on page 137 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

There are significant differences between Indian GAAP, the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and the
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”). Accordingly, the degree to which the
Indian GAAP financial statements included in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus will provide meaningful information is entirely
dependent on the reader’s level of familiarity with Indian accounting practice and Indian GAAP. Any reliance by persons not
familiar with Indian accounting practices on the financial disclosures presented in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus should
accordingly be limited. We have not attempted to explain those differences or quantify their impact on the financial data included
herein, and we urge you to consult your own advisors regarding such differences and their impact on our financial data.

Any percentage amounts, as set forth in “Risk Factors”, “Our Business”, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” and elsewhere in the Draft Red Herring Prospectus unless otherwise indicated, have been
calculated on the basis of the Company‘s restated consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with the applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, Indian GAAP and restated in accordance with SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, as stated in the
report of our Peer Review Auditor, set out in section titled “Financial Information of the Company” beginning on page 137 of
this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. As on date of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus we have two subsidiaries viz: Drivetrain
Solutions Private Limited and Rangetech Systems India Private Limited. Our fiscal year commences on April 1 of every year and
ends on March 31 of every next year.

For additional definitions used in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, see the section “Definitions and Abbreviations” on page 1
of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. In the section titled “Main Provisions of the Articles of Association”, on page 244 of the
Draft Red Herring Prospectus defined terms have the meaning given to such terms in the Articles of Association of our Company.

Use of Industry & Market Data

Unless stated otherwise, industry and market data and forecast used throughout the Draft Red Herring Prospectus was obtained
from internal Company reports, data, websites, Industry publications report as well as Government Publications. Industry
publication data and website data generally state that the information contained therein has been obtained from sources believed to
be reliable, but that their accuracy and completeness and underlying assumptions are not guaranteed and their reliability cannot be
assured.

Although, we believe industry and market data used in the Draft Red Herring Prospectus is reliable, it has not been independently
verified by us or the BRLM or any of their affiliates or advisors. Similarly, internal Company reports and data, while believed by
us to be reliable, have not been verified by any independent source. There are no standard data gathering methodologies in the
industry in which we conduct our business and methodologies and assumptions may vary widely among different market and
industry sources.

In accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 the section titled “Basis for Issue Price” on page 76 of the Draft Red
Herring Prospectus includes information relating to our peer group companies. Such information has been derived from publicly
available sources, and neither we, nor the BRLM, have independently verified such information.
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Currency of Financial Presentation

All references to “Rupees” or “INR” or “Rs.” or “X” are to Indian Rupees, the official currency of the Republic of India. Except
where specified, including in the section titled “Industry Overview” throughout the Draft Red Herring Prospectus all figures have
been expressed in Lakhs.

Any percentage amounts, as set forth in “Risk Factors”, “Our Business”, “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Conditions and Results of Operations” on page 24, 97 and 174 respectively of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, unless
otherwise indicated, have been calculated based on our restated consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with
Indian GAAP.

The Draft Red Herring Prospectus contains conversion of certain US Dollar and other currency amounts into Indian Rupees that
have been presented solely to comply with the requirements of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018. These conversions should not
be construed as a representation that those US Dollar or other currency amounts could have been, or can be converted into Indian
Rupees, at any particular rate.
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Draft Red Herring Prospectus includes certain “forward-looking statements”. We have included statements in the Draft Red
Herring Prospectus which contain words or phrases such as “will”, “aim”, “is likely to result”, “believe”, “expect”, “will
continue”, “anticipate”, “estimate”, “intend”, “plan”, “contemplate”, “seek to”, “future”, “objective”, “goal”, “project”, “should”,
“will pursue” and similar expressions or variations of such expressions, that are “forward-looking statements”. Also, statements
which describe our strategies, objectives, plans or goals are also forward looking statements.

All forward looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions about us that could cause actual results to differ
materially from those contemplated by the relevant forward-looking statement. Forward-looking statements reflect our current
views with respect to future events and are not a guarantee of future performance. These statements are based on our
management’s beliefs and assumptions, which in turn are based on currently available information. Although we believe the
assumptions upon which these forward-looking statements are based are reasonable, any of these assumptions could prove to be
inaccurate, and the forward-looking statements based on these assumptions could be incorrect. Important factors that could cause
actual results to differ materially from our expectations include but are not limited to:

=

General economic and business conditions in the markets in which we operate and in the local, regional, national and
international economies;

2. Regulations and policies affecting the transportation and logistics sector in India;

3. Financial health of the Indian Railway Sector;

4. Changes in technology;

5. Failure to successfully upgrade our product portfolio, from time to time;

6. Any change in government policies resulting in increases in taxes payable by us;

7. Our ability to retain our key managements persons and other employees;

8. Changes in laws and regulations that apply to the industries in which we operate.

9. Our ability to grow our business;

10. general economic, political and other risks that are out of our control;

11. Inflation, deflation, unanticipated turbulence in interest rates, equity prices or other rates or prices;
12. Company’s ability to successfully implement its growth strategy and expansion plans ;

13. failure to comply with regulations prescribed by authorities of the jurisdictions in which we operate;
14. inability to successfully obtain registrations in a timely manner or at all;

15. occurrence of Environmental Problems & Uninsured Losses;

16. conflicts of interest with affiliated companies, the promoter group and other related parties;

17. any adverse outcome in the legal proceedings in which we are involved; and

18. Concentration of ownership among our Promoters.

For further discussion of factors that could cause our actual results to differ, see the Section titled “Risk Factors”, “Our
Business” and “ Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” beginning on
page 24, 97 and 174 respectively of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus. By their nature, certain market risk disclosures are only
estimates and could be materially different from what actually occurs in the future. As a result, actual future gains or losses could
materially differ from those that have been estimated.

There can be no assurance to investors that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements will prove to be correct.
Given these uncertainties, investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements and not to
regard such statements to be a guarantee of our future performance.

Neither our Company or our Directors or our Officers or Book Running Lead Manager or Underwriter nor any of their respective
affiliates have any obligation to update or otherwise revise any statements reflecting circumstances arising after the date hereof or
to reflect the occurrence of underlying events, even if the underlying assumptions do not come to fruition. In accordance with
SEBI requirements, our Company and the BRLM will ensure that investors in India are informed of material developments until
such time as the grant of listing and trading permission by the Stock Exchange for the Equity Shares allotted pursuant to this
Issue.
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SECTION Il -SUMMARY OF DRAFT RED HERRING PROSPECTUS

A. OVERVIEW OF BUSINESS

We are engaged in the business of manufacturing and supply of coach related and electrification products for Indian Railways and
other Railway Contractors. We manufacture products required in railway coaches like: Inter-Vehicular Coupler, Emergency
Lighting System, Brushless DC carriage fan, Exhaust fans, Cable Jackets, Bellows etc. and products required in electrification of
coaches and Broad Gauge network of Indian Railways like: Battery Charger 200 AH, Battery Charger 40 AH, Tensile Testing
Machine. We are approved vendor by Research Design and Standards Organisation (“RDSO”) to manufacture and supply these
products for the Indian Railways.

B. OVERVIEW OF THE INDUSTRY

Indian Railways has created a new world benchmark by successfully running 1st Double Stack Container Train in high rise Over
Head Equipment (OHE) electrified sections, having a contact wire height of 7.57 metres. This achievement will also boost the
Green India mission. Indian Railways has operationalised its First 12000 HP locomotive. For the first time in the world, a high
horsepower locomotive has been operationalised on a broad gauge track. The locomotive has been produced under the Make in
India initiative and India has become the 6th country to join the elite club of producing high horsepower locomotive indigenously.

C. PROMOTERS
Mr. Nitin Jain and Mr. Gaurav Lath are the Promoters of our Company.

D. DETAILS OF THE ISSUE

This is an Initial Public Issue of upto 15,12,000 Equity Shares of face value of X 10 each of our Company for cash at a price of X
[®] per Equity Share (including a share premium of X [e] per Equity Share) aggregating to X [e] lakhs (“The Issue”), out of
which 78,000 Equity Shares of face value of ¥ 10 each for cash at a price of X [e] per Equity Share aggregating up to X [e] Lakhs
will be reserved for subscription by the market maker to the issue (the “Market Maker Reservation Portion”). The Issue less
Market Maker Reservation Portion i.e. Issue of 14,34,000 Equity Shares of face value of X 10 each, at an issue price of X [e] per
Equity Share for cash, aggregating to X [e] lakhs is hereinafter referred to as the “Net Issue”. The Public Issue and Net Issue will
constitute 26.47% and 25.11% respectively of the post- issue paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company.

E. OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE

Our Company intends to utilize the Proceeds of the Issue to meet the following objects:-

(R In Lakhs)
Sr. No. | Particulars Amount
1. To meet the Working Capital requirements [e]
2. General Corporate Purpose [e]
3. To meet Issue Expenses [e]
Total [e]

F. PRE-ISSUE SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS AND PROMOTER GROUP

Our Promoters and Promoter Group collectively holds 42,00,000 Equity shares of our Company aggregating to 100.00% of the
pre-issue paid-up Share Capital of our Company. Following are the details of the shareholding of the Promoters and Promoter
Group, as on date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus:-

Sr. Names Pre IPO Post IPO

No Shares Held % Shares Held Shares Held % Shares Held
Promoters

1. | Mr. Nitin Jain 20,99,750 49.99 20,99,750 [e]

2. | Mr. Gaurav Lath 20,99,750 49.99 20,99,750 [e]

3. | Mr. Govind Prasad Lath 150 0.00 150 [e]

4. | Mrs. Rekha Lath 50 0.00 50 [e]

5. | Mrs. Pankhuri Lath 50 0.00 50 [e]

6. | Mr. Ashok Jain 50 0.00 50 [e]

7. | Mrs. Mahima Jain 200 0.00 200 [e]
Total 42,00,000 100.00 42,00,000 [e]
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Following are the details as per the restated consolidated financial statements for the financial years ended on March 31, 2022,

March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020:-

(R in Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Equity Share Capital 20.00 20.00 20.00
Net worth 754.24 495.47 350.58
Total Income 3173.54 1760.91 1589.25
Profit after tax 258.97 143.22 104.58
Earnings per Share 6.17 3.41 2.49
Net Asset Value per Share
(Based on Weighted Average Number of Shares) 17.95 11.80 8.35
Total B_orrowmgs (including current maturities of long term 31589 323.40 221.05
borrowings)

G. AUDITOR QUALIFICATIONS

There are no audit qualifications which have not been given effect in the restated consolidated financial statements.

H. SUMMARY OF OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS

Our Company is involved in certain legal proceedings. A brief detail of such outstanding litigations as on the date of this Draft
Red Herring Prospectus are as follows:

Litigations/ Matters against our Company:
(R in lakhs)

Nature of Cases No. of Outstanding Cases | Amount in dispute/demanded to

the extent ascertainable

Litigation/ Matters involving tax Liabilities 2 5.10

Amount mentioned to the extent quantifiable. The amount may be subject to additional interest/other charges being levied by the
concerned authorities which are unascertainable as on date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. For further details, please refer
to the chapter titled “Outstanding Litigations and Material Developments” on page 182 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

I. RISK FACTORS

For details on the risks involved in our business, please see the Chapter titled “Risk Factors” beginning on page 24 of this Draft
Red Herring Prospectus.

J. SUMMARY OF CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts

(R In lakhs)

Particulars As at

31/03/2022 31/03/2021 31/03/200
Contingent liabilities in respect of:
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts (Income tax
Appeal (disputed demand) for A.Y. 2020-21 and TDS Defaults) 13.10 0.08 0.08
Guarantees (Bank Guarantee provided against sales order) 22.32 51.97 32.25
Other moneys for which the company is contingently liable - - -
Commitments (to the extent not provided for) - - -
Other commitments - - -
Total 35.42 52.05 32.33

For further details, please refer to Note V — Contingent Liabilities of the chapter titled “Financial Information of the Company”
on page 164 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

K. SUMMARY OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Following is the summary of the related party transactions entered by the Company (based on Restated Consolidated Financial
Statements) for the financial years ended on March 31, 2022, March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020:-
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(a) List of Related parties
Names of the related parties along with transactions were carried out during the years and description of relationship:

Sr. No. | Name of the Person/ Entity Relation

1 Gaurav Lath Director

2 Nitin Jain Director

3 Mahima Jain Relative of Director (Director w.e.f. from 28/07/2022)

4 Pankhuri Lath Relative of Director

5 Amrit Singh Director in Subsidiary

6 Raghav Narain Director in Subsidiary

5 T&L Gases Pvt. Ltd. Enterprise in which KMP are interested

6 Tankup Petro Ventures LLP Enterprise in which KMP are interested

8 Shivalik Industries Enterprise in which KMP are interested

9 Drivetrain Solutions Pvt. Ltd. Subsidiary

10 Rangetech Systems India Pvt. Ltd. Subsidiary

11 Concord Global Engineers Pvt. Ltd Enterprise in which KMP are interested

Climbtech India Pvt. Ltd. L . .

12 (Previously Concord Appliances Pvt. Ltd.) Enterprise in which KMP are interested

13 TEE GEE Polymer Pvt. Ltd. Enterprise in which KMP are interested

14 Vans Electroengineerings Pvt Ltd Enterprise in which KMP are interested

15 Atlantic Tradeengineers LLP Enterprise in which KMP are interested

16 Atlantic Tradelinks Pvt Ltd Enterprise in which KMP are interested

17 Tankup Engineers Pvt Ltd Enterprise in which KMP are interested

(b) Transaction with related Parties :- (¥in Lakhs)

. As at March 31,

SI No. | Particulars 2022 2021 2020

1 Remuneration Paid to Directors/ Relatives of
Directors
Gaurav Lath 36.00 18.82 12.00
Nitin Jain 36.00 27.11 12.00

2 Professional Fees Paid
Mahima Jain 18.00 17.33 18.00
Pankhuri Lath 18.00 15.78 -

3 Loans Repaid
Gaurav Lath 17.00 53.50 1.52
Nitin Jain 5.00 - 26.53
Raghav Narain 0.75 - -

4 Loans Taken
Gaurav Lath 17.00 53.50 -
Nitin Jain 5.00 - 25.00
Amrit Singh 1.00 1.00 0.60

5 Rent Paid
Gaurav Lath - - 6.00
Gaurav Lath HUF - 1.55 12.00
Concord Global Engineers Pvt. Ltd 9.28 8.51 0.52

6 Purchase of Goods/ Services
T&L Gases Pvt. Ltd. 2.05 3.30 0.04
Tankup Petro Ventures LLP 0.80 - -
Climbtech India Pvt. Ltd. (Previously Concord
Appliances Pvt. Ltd.) 48.91 1.70 0.00
Shivalik Industries 62.49 27.17 0.98
Tankup Engineers Pvt Ltd 54.08 - -

7 Sale of Goods/ Services
T&L Gases Pvt. Ltd. - 0.27 0.53
Climbtech India Pvt. Ltd. (Previously Concord
Appliances Pvt. Ltd.) 0.06 0.85 0.61
Tankup Petro Ventures LLP 0.09 1.00 0.64

21




Concord Control Systems Limited

Tankup Engineers Pvt Ltd 0.02 - -
Shivalik Industries - 0.02 -
8 Other Expenses
T&L Gases Pvt. Ltd. 78.30 29.90 33.90
Climbtech India Pvt. Ltd. (Previously Concord
Appliances Pvt. Ltd.) 104.37 22.99 1.16
Tankup Petro Ventures LLP 1.15 0.68 20.54
Shivalik Industries - 0.06 0.63
Concord Global Engineers Pvt. Ltd 3.95 1.80 -
9 Advance Provided
DriveTrain Solutions Pvt. Ltd. 2.04 3.20 0.77
Rangetech Systems India Pvt. Ltd. 0.06 - 0.93
10 Advance Repaid
DriveTrain Solutions Pvt. Ltd. - 0.60 -
Note:

During the years presented above, the company has entered into the Loan transactions with its Subsidiary Companies, these
transactions have been eliminated due to Consolidation of Financial Statements.

For further details, please refer to the Note W — Related Party Disclosures of chapter titled “Financial Information of the
Company” on page 164 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

L. DETAILS OF FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

There are no financing arrangements whereby the promoters, members of the promoter group, the directors of the issuer and their
relatives have financed the purchase by any other person of securities of the issuer other than in the normal course of the business
of the financing entity during the period of six months immediately preceding the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

M. WEIGHTED AVERAGE PRICE OF THE SHARES ACQUIRED BY PROMOTERS IN LAST ONE YEAR

1. Mr. Nitin Jain 20,00,000 Nil

2. Mr. Gaurav Lath 20,00,000 Nil

*During the last one year Bonus Issue of 40,00,000 Equity Shares in the ratio of 20: 1 equity shares held on the record date i.e.
May 31, 2022 were acquired by the promoters.

N. AVERAGE COST OF ACQUISITION OF SHARES
The average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares by our Promoters is set forth in the table below:

e

1. Mr. Nitin Jain 20,99,750
2. Mr. Gaurav Lath 20,99,750 2.02

O. PRE IPO PLACEMENT
Our Company is not considering any pre-IPO placement of equity shares of the Company.
P. EQUITY SHARES ISSUED FOR CONSIDERATION OTHER THAN CASH

Except as set out below, we have not issued Equity Shares for consideration other than cash in the last one year.

June 24 Bonus in the ratio of 20:1 Capitalization | Mr. Nitin Jain 20,00,000
2022 ' | 40,00,000 | 10 - i.e. 20 Equity Share for of Reserves &
every 1 Equity Shares held Surplus* Mr. Gaurav Lath 20,00,000
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**Above allotment of shares has been made out of Reserve & Surplus available for distribution to shareholders and no part of
revaluation reserve has been utilized for the purpose

Q. SPLIT/ CONSOLIDATION OF EQUITY SHARES

Our Company has not undertaken a split or consolidation of the Equity Shares in the one (1) year preceding the date of this Draft
Red Herring Prospectus.

R. EXEMPTION FROM COMPLYING WITH ANY PROVISIONS OF SECURITIES LAWS, IF ANY, GRANTED BY
SEBI

As on date of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus, our Company has not availed any exemption from complying with any provisions
of securities laws granted by SEBI.
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SECTION IlI: RISK FACTORS

An investment in our Equity Shares involves a high degree of financial risk. Prospective investors should carefully consider all the
information in the Draft Red Herring Prospectus, particularly the “Financial Information of the Company” and the related
notes, “Our Business” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” on
page 137, 97 and 174 respectively of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus and the risks and uncertainties described below, before
making a decision to invest in our Equity Shares.

The risk factors set forth below are not exhaustive and do not purport to be complete or comprehensive in terms of all the risk
factors that may arise in connection with our business or any decision to purchase, own or dispose of the Equity Shares. This
section addresses general risks associated with the industry in which we operate and specific risks associated with our Company.
Any of the following risks, individually or together, could adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations
or prospects, which could result in a decline in the value of our Equity Shares and the loss of all or part of your investment in our
Equity Shares. While we have described the risks and uncertainties that our management believes are material, these risks and
uncertainties may not be the only risks and uncertainties we face. Additional risks and uncertainties, including those we currently
are not aware of or deem immaterial, may also have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition
and prospects.

This Draft Red Herring Prospectus contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results
could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors, including the
considerations described below and elsewhere in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. The financial and other related implications
of risks concerned, wherever quantifiable, have been disclosed in the risk factors below. However, there are risk factors the
potential effects of which are not quantifiable and therefore no quantification has been provided with respect to such risk factors.
In making an investment decision, prospective investors must rely on their own examination of our Company and the terms of the
Issue, including the merits and the risks involved. You should not invest in this Issue unless you are prepared to accept the risk of
losing all or part of your investment, and you should consult your tax, financial and legal advisors about the particular
consequences to you of an investment in our Equity Shares.

Materiality

The Risk factors have been determined on the basis of their materiality. The following factors have been considered for
determining the materiality.

1. Some events may not be material individually but may be found material collectively.
2. Some events may have material impact qualitatively instead of quantitatively.
3. Some events may not be material at present but may be having material impact in future.

Note:

The risk factors as envisaged by the management along with the proposals to address the risk if any. Unless specified or
quantified in the relevant risk factors below, we are not in a position to quantify the financial implication of any of the risks
described in this section.

In this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, any discrepancies in any table between total and the sums of the amount listed are due to
rounding off. Any percentage amounts, as set forth in “Risk Factors” on page 24 and “Management Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” on page 174 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus unless otherwise indicated,
has been calculated on the basis of the amount disclosed in the *'Restated Consolidated Financial Statements”.

1. Our business and revenues are substantially dependent on Indian Railways. Any adverse change in Ministry of Railway’s
policy related to up gradation of coaches or electrification of Indian Railways may adversely affect our business and
results of operations.

Our business and revenues are substantially dependent on the policies of the Ministry of Railways and operations of Indian
Railways. Our operations involve manufacturing and supply of coach related and electrification products for Indian Railways and
its broad gauge network. Certain government programs may be subject to delays, extensive internal processes, policy changes and
insufficiency of Government funds or changes in budgetary allocations of Government entities. Any withdrawal or adverse
changes in Government policies may lead to adverse impact on our on-going business and could, materially and adversely affect
our financial condition, capital expenditure, revenues, development and our business operation.

Demand for our products are increasing due to government initiatives on Innovation in Indian Railway with a few innovative
improvements which are the State of the Art SMART Coaches, on Mission 100% Electrification to fully electrify the Broad
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Gauge network of Indian Railways and ‘Kavach’- an indigenous Automatic Train Protection System to boost safety in trains
operation. Any reduction in the budgetary allocation or support by the Government may have a significant impact on the number
of products for which tenders may be issued by Indian Railways resulting in slowdown or downturn in our business prospects.

2. Our business of manufacturing and supply of coach related and electrification products for Indian Railways is largely
dependent on the vendor approval registration awarded to our company for each type of product by Research Design and
Standards Organisation (RDSO). If such registrations are terminated or not renewed at favourable terms, our operations
may be adversely affected.

We are largely dependent on vendor approval registration awarded to our company by RDSO to develop, manufacture and sell our
products to Indian Railways. Our Company is approved vendor for manufacture and supply of products such as: Inter-Vehicular
Coupler, Emergency Lighting System, Brushless DC carriage fan, Exhaust fans, Cable Jackets, Bellows etc. We are registered as
Developmental Vendors for some of the products like: Control and Relay Panel which are under the stage of development and if
we are unable to successfully develop or deliver such products as per RDSO standards, it may affect our reputation and future
business operations. It is necessary for us to act in accordance with the directives of RDSO, we cannot assure you that our
investments and efforts into our current operation will be profitable

Moreover, these registrations set out various terms and conditions which are required to be strictly adhered to by our Company.
Any failure to comply with these obligations and covenants may have a material adverse effect on our business, prospects, cash
flows and financial condition. These registrations can be terminated or revoked by RDSO for breach of any of the said terms and
conditions or for quality rejections or for reasons beyond our control. Our business operations will be largely affected in case of
revocation or termination of such registrations for any of our products. We have limited ability to negotiate on the terms and
conditions with RDSO and may have to accept unusual or onerous provisions. Considering the nature of our business activities,
our Company shall consistently make all efforts to develop new product prototype and attain vendor registration for the same from
RDSO for wide range of products to expand our business operations. Thus in the event of termination of the said vendor
registration or in case of failure to procure new vendor registration our business operations may be affected.

3. Our revenue from operations is largely dependent on orders from the Indian Railways and other railway contractors. Any
reduction in business from them may adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and future
prospects.

We are engaged in the business of manufacturing and supply of coach related and electrification products to Indian Railways and
other railway contractors. For the FY 21-22, 20-21 and 19-20 our revenue from sales to Indian Railways were X 2321.65 lakhs,
1007.28 lakhs and T 539.49 lakhs respectively which constituted 73.83% and 58.34% and 34.62% of our revenue from operations
and that from sales to other railway contractors were X 823.04 lakhs, X 719.26 lakhs and X 1019.00 lakhs respectively which
constituted 26.17%, 41.66% and 65.38% of our revenue from operations.

As our business is currently concentrated to orders received from either Indian Railways or contractors supplying to Indian
Railways any adverse development with such customers, including as a result of a dispute with or disqualification by such
customers, may result in us experiencing significant reduction in our business operations. If our customers are able to fulfil their
requirements through any of our existing or new competitors, providing products with better quality and / or cheaper cost, we may
lose significant portion of our business. Additionally, consolidation of any of our customers may also adversely affect our existing
relationships and arrangements with such customers, and any of our customers that are acquired may cease to continue the
businesses that require products manufactured by us.

Orders from Indian Railways is dependent on tenders bid by our company. There can be no assurance that we will always win the
applied tenders. Consequently, there is no commitment on the part of our customers to continue to place orders with us and as a
result, our cash flow and consequent revenue may fluctuate significantly from time to time. There is no assurance that the Indian
Railways will continue to engage us and that we will continue to sustain the general level of revenue that we have secured in the
past. Further, any adverse change in the Gol policy may lead to cancellation or slowdown of our orders and could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial conditions.

4. We are subject to strict quality requirements and customer inspections, and any failure to comply with quality standards
may lead to cancellation of existing and future orders and could negatively impact our reputation and our business and
results of operations and future prospects.

We develop and manufacture parts and components for coaches and electrification of Indian railways and its broad gauge

network. Given the nature of our products and the sector in which we operate, we believe that our customers have high standards

for product quality and delivery schedules. Adherence to quality standards is a critical factor as a defect in products manufactured

by our Company or failure to comply with the specifications of our customers may, in turn, lead to the manufacture of faulty end-

products. This may lead to cancellation of supply orders by our customers and at certain instances may impose additional costs in
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the form of product liability and/or product recall. Further our facilities, process and products are exposed to regular inspection by
our customers to ensure that their internal standards are appropriately met. Any non-compliance observed during inspection may
have an adverse impact on our business, financial condition, results of operations and future prospects.

5. Our business is substantially dependent on our ability to accurately carry out the pre-bidding studies for potential
contracts. Any deviation during the execution of the purchase orders as compared to our pre-bid estimates could have a
material adverse effect on our cash flows, results of operations and financial condition.

We carry out the pre-bidding analysis for the potential purchase order considering various elements including financial and
technical factors. However, such analysis may not enable us to assure the accuracy of such studies. The accuracy of the pre-
bidding studies is dependent on the key elements like preparing requirement of raw materials, adherence to manufacturing
processes, complying to quality standards, planning to meet delivery schedules etc. Any deterrence or deviation in the estimation
and calculation of the key elements may hamper the quality of the pre-bid analysis relied upon before submitting any tenders. Any
deviation during the implementation and operation of the contract as compared to our pre-bid estimates could have a material
adverse effect on our cash flows, results of operations and financial condition.

6. We are significantly dependent on the sale of one of our coach related products viz: Inter Vehicular Coupler. An inability
to anticipate or adapt to evolving up gradation of these products or inability to ensure product quality or reduction in the
demand of these products may adversely impact our revenue from operations and growth prospects.

Our financial performance in last two financial years are significantly dependent on our revenue from sales of one of our coach
related products viz: Inter Vehicular Coupler, which represented 51.14% and 23.20% of our revenue from operations in Fiscal
2022 and 2021 respectively. We cannot assure you that we will increase our market share in the future for this product. Demand
for these products depends primarily on Indian Railways and its development initiatives taken by Government of India. In
addition, our company must successfully bid and secure purchase orders for these products.

Further, the products may be substituted by product up gradation and our company may be unable to attain successful vendor
approval registration for such upgraded product. We may not be able to introduce new product that are in faster-growing and more
profitable categories. Any of these factors could have a material adverse impact on our financial condition and the results of
operations. We may also be required to invest in updated technology and processes to develop upgraded product having the
desired specification, qualities and characteristics, and continually monitor and adapt to evolving demand in the railway sector.

7. We may not qualify for or win bids to secure potential order, which may have an adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects.

Major portion of our revenue is derived from purchase orders procured by our company from the Indian Railways through
competitive bidding process. Our business and growth depends on our ability to qualify for and win bids undertaken by Indian
Railway for awarding orders. Our Company obtains a majority of its business through a competitive bidding process in which it
competes for orders based on, among other things, pricing, technical and technological expertise, reputation for quality, financing
capabilities and track record. The bidding and selection process is affected by a number of factors, including factors which may be
beyond our control, such as market conditions, delays in government policies, external economic or political factors. Any increase
in competition during the bidding process or reduction in our competitive capabilities could have a material adverse effect on our
market share. There can be no assurance that our current or potential competitors will not offer products at the same or lower
prices, adapt more quickly to industry challenges, or expand their operations at a faster pace than we do.

Increased competition may result in price reductions, reduced profit margins and loss of market share, thereby causing an adverse
effect on our operations, prospects and financial condition. In addition to meeting bid capacity requirements, we may also be
required to pre-qualify for the orders from public sector undertakings such as in relation to background checks and prior
experience. However, we cannot assure that we shall always maintain our bid capacity and our pre-qualification capabilities, and
that we shall be able to continually secure orders so as to enhance our business operations, financial performance and results of
operations. Further, such pre-qualification criteria may also change from time to time. Our inability to fulfil and maintain the bid
and prequalification capabilities may materially impact our operating revenue and profitability.

8.  We are dependent on our Promoters, our senior management and other key personnel, and the loss of, or our inability to
attract or retain, such persons could affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Our performance depends largely on the efforts and abilities of our Promoters, senior management and other key personnel,

including our Promoters and Joint Managing Directors Mr. Nitin Jain and Mr. Gaurav Lath. They have gained experience in this

line of business and have over the years built relations with suppliers, third party service providers, customers, regulators and

other persons who are connected with us and have been actively involved in the day to day operations and management, further

we believe that the inputs and experience of our senior management, in particular, and other key personnel are valuable for
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Research and development activities, tender bidding process, procurement of raw materials successful delivery of products and
our overall business operations of our Company. For details in relation to the experience of our key management personnel, see
“Our Management” on page 119 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. We cannot assure you that these individuals or any other
member of our senior management team will not leave us or join a competitor or that we will be able to retain such personnel or
find adequate replacements in a timely manner, or at all. We may require a long period of time to hire and train replacement
personnel when qualified personnel terminate their employment with our Company. We may also be required to increase our
levels of employee compensation more rapidly than in the past to remain competitive in attracting employees that our business
requires. The loss of the services of such persons may have an effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and
cash flows.

9. We have significant working capital requirements. If we experience insufficient cash flows from our operations or are
unable to borrow to meet our working capital requirements, it may materially and adversely affect our business, cash flows
and results of operations.

Our business requires significant working capital including in connection with our manufacturing operations, financing our
inventory, providing bank guarantees, purchase of raw materials and our development of new products which may be adversely
affected by changes in terms of credit and payment. We are required to maintain a high level of working capital because our
business activities are characterised by long product development periods and production cycles. A large amount of our working
capital is blocked in availing bank guarantee for our tenders, in trade receivables and inventories. Delays in payment under on-
going purchase orders or reduction of advance payments and/or accelerated payments to suppliers, fixed deposits to facilitate bank
guarantees to our customers, could adversely affect our working capital, lower our cash flows and materially increase the amount
of working capital to be funded. We may also be unable to adequately finance our working capital requirements on account of
various factors, including extraneous factors such as delay in disbursements under our financing arrangements, increased interest
rates, insurance or other costs, or borrowing and lending restrictions or finance our working capital requirements on commercially
acceptable terms or at all, devolvement of our bank guarantees by our bankers etc, each of which may have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, prospects and results of operations. Continued increase in our working capital
requirements may have an adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. If we decide to raise additional
funds through the incurrence of debt, our interest and debt repayment obligations will increase, and could have a significant effect
on our profitability and cash flows and we may be subject to additional covenants, which could limit our ability to access cash
flows from operations.

10. The restated financial statements have been provided by peer reviewed chartered accountants who is not statutory auditor
of our Company.

The restated financial statements of our Company for the financial year ended March 31 2022, 2021 and 2020 has been provided
by a peer reviewed chartered accountants who is not statutory auditor of our Company because our statutory auditor does not
holds a valid peer reviewed certificate. However they have applied for peer review certificate with the peer review board of ICAI
and the final peer review registration certification is awaited.

11. We depend on our technical knowledge and R&D to develop new product prototype and/or improve our existing products
and if we are unable to keep our technical knowledge and process know-how confidential or if our R&D initiatives do not
succeed, we may suffer loss of our competitive advantage.

We possess technical knowledge about our products. We have gained such technical knowledge through our own experiences,
R&D initiatives undertaken to develop product prototype. While we are subject to strict confidentiality, non-disclosure and non-
compete obligations, if such technical knowledge is not protected we may lose our competitive edge. Even if all reasonable
precautions, whether contractual or otherwise, are taken to protect the confidential and technical knowledge of our products and
business, there is a risk that certain proprietary knowledge may be leaked, either inadvertently or wilfully, at various stages of the
manufacturing process. Some members of our team have access to confidential design and product information and there can be
no assurance that this information will remain confidential.

Further the development and commercialization of improved and/or new products is time-consuming and costly, and its outcome
is inherently uncertain. Our ongoing investments in new development could result in higher costs without a proportionate increase
in revenues. In the event that such products are unsuccessful, we may lose some or all of the investments that we have made in
developing them, which could have an adverse effect on our financial position, business operations, results of operations and
future prospects.

12. There are certain discrepancies/errors noticed in some of our corporate records relating to forms filed with the Registrar
of Companies and other provisions of Companies Act, 1956/ 2013. Any penalty or action taken by any regulatory
authorities in future, for non-compliance with provisions of corporate and other law could impact the reputation and
financial position of the Company to that extent.
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There are few discrepancies noticed in some of our corporate records relating to e-forms filed with the Registrar of Companies,
which inter-alia includes clerical errors in the Annual Returns and form AOC-4 including limited disclosures in attached Board
Report and its annexures filed by our Company with the ROC in past years. The Company has not filed certain ROC forms such
as Form CHG-1 for creation of a vehicle loan taken in the FY 19-20 which inter-alia includes non-compliance of Section 77 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and is subject to penalty under section 86 and/or other relevant provision(s) of Companies Act, 2013, as
maybe applicable, however as on date of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus all such car loans have been repaid by our company.
Also our Company had not filed form DPT-3 for one time return of deposits and for FY 2019-20 and FY 2021-22 in the past.
However due to updations/ changes in the MCA Portal we are unable to file the same as on date of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus. Further, the company had not filed the form AOC-5 for maintaining its books of accounts at an additional place along
with the registered office of the company, however the same is now maintained at its registered office in compliance with section
128 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Further our Company has in the past provided loan to its subsidiary company which was not in accordance with the provisions of
sec 185 Companies Act 2013, however, as on date of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus our company has complied with the said
provisions by according shareholders’ approval for the said loan advanced to our subsidiary vide extra ordinary general meeting
dated August 31, 2022 and the consequent form MGT — 14 for the same has been filed with Registrar of Companies, Kanpur.

Further, our company has made certain errors in complying with certain Accounting Standards in the past such as AS-15, AS-18,
AS-20 however the same have been duly complied by the company in the restated consolidated financial statements. Although, no
show cause notice in respect of the above has been received by the Company till date, any penalty imposed for such non-
compliance in future by any regulatory authority could affect our financial conditions to that extent.

13. Our manufacturing facilities are located on leased premises. If we are unable to renew these leases or relocate on
commercially suitable terms, it may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operation and financial
condition

Our manufacturing facility, Factory Unit | is located on premises leased from the UP state industrial development corporation Itd.
Though we have entered into long-term lease agreements with respect to these lands, such lease agreements may be terminated
early in the event of a default or upon the expiry of their tenure and may not be renewed. For details, see “Our Business -
Property” on page 97. Additionally, the lease agreements require our Company to comply with certain conditions including prior
consent of the lessor for certain actions such as making significant structural alterations, subletting, transferring or assigning the
leased premises. If we fail to meet any such conditions, we may be required to incur additional liability.

In addition, our manufacturing facility, Factory unit Il is obtained on lease from third party in Year 2022. The said agreements are
not registered. While we always seek to ensure through various means good title to property used by us, our rights in respect of
these properties may be compromised by improperly executed, unregistered or insufficiently stamped agreements. If these
agreements are terminated or revoked due to absence of prior consent from UP state industrial development corporation Itd or if
we are unable to renew these agreements on commercially reasonable terms or at all, we may suffer significant disruptions to our
operations and incur considerable costs to relocate and move our operations elsewhere. In the event we are required to vacate the
premises, we may need to do with short or no notice. Any inability on our part to timely identify a suitable location for a relocated
premise could have an adverse impact on our business.

14. Our Company operates under several statutory and regulatory approvals in respect of our operations. Failure to obtain or
maintain licenses, registrations, permits and approvals may affect our business and results of operations.

We require certain statutory and regulatory permits, licenses and approvals to operate our business. Though we believe that we
have obtained those permits and licenses which are adequate to run our business, we cannot assure that there is no other
statutory/regulatory requirement which we are required to comply with. Further, some of these approvals are granted for fixed
periods of time and need renewal from time to time. We are required to renew such permits, licenses and approvals. There can be
no assurance that the relevant authorities will issue any of such permits or approvals in time or at all. Failure by us to renew,
maintain or obtain the required permits or approvals in time may result in the interruption of our operations and may have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations

In this relation we are yet to apply for Fire NOC for our Factory Unit | and for registration of our manufacturing facilities under
Battery Rules 2016. We have also made an application under Pollution Control Board and for factory license and Fire NOC in
relation to our Factory Unit Il which is pending for approval. There can be no assurance that the relevant authorities will issue or
renew these approvals or licenses in a timely manner, or at all. In the event of any unanticipated delay in receipt of such approvals,
it will have an adverse impact on our business operations. The approvals, licenses, registrations and permits obtained by us may
contain conditions, some of which could be onerous.
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We cannot assure you that the approvals, licenses, registrations and permits required will be issued to us and those already issued
will not be suspended or revoked in the event of non-compliance with any terms or conditions thereof, or pursuant to any
regulatory action. Any denial, suspension or revocation of the approvals, licenses, registrations and permits that has been or may
be issued to us may affect our business and results of operations. For further details regarding the material approvals, licenses,
registrations and permits, which have not been obtained by our Company or are, pending renewal, see “Government and Other
Approvals” on page 186 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

15. Our insurance coverage may not be adequate to protect us against all potential losses to which we may be subject and this
may have a material effect on our business and financial condition.

While we maintain insurance coverage namely Marine Open Policy Schedule for import and inland transport, Policy Schedule for
Burglary, Fire Insurance Policy, Vehicles Own damage and Package insurance policies and Keyman Insurance Policies in
amounts which we believe are commercially appropriate. However, we may not have sufficient insurance coverage to cover all
possible economic losses, including when the loss suffered is not easily quantifiable. We have not insured our risks pertaining to
Machinery Breakdown, Employee compensation, Group Personal Accident Insurance, Cash in transit. The absence of such
policies may affect our production facilities to halt, and may hinder our operations. Even if we have made a claim under an
existing insurance policy, we may not be able to successfully assert our claim for any liability or loss under such insurance policy.
Additionally, there may be various other risks and losses for which we are not insured either because such risks are uninsurable or
not insurable on commercially acceptable terms. The occurrence of an event for which we are not adequately or sufficiently
insured could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. For further details
of our Insurance Policies, please refer section titled “Our Business” beginning on page 97 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

16. An increase in raw material costs or other input costs or loss of any of our suppliers due to delayed payments or otherwise,
resulting in shortfall in the supply of our raw material may adversely impact the pricing and supply of our products and
have an adverse effect on our business.

Our operations are impacted by the availability and cost of raw materials utilised in our manufacturing process. Any change in
cost and availability of such raw materials for any reason, including change in the approved suppliers, change in law or applicable
governmental policies, would adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. The major
raw materials required for manufacturing of our products include electrical and mechanical components made from copper, steel
and aluminum and therefore any fluctuation in prices of these metals could affect our profit margins. Our raw material suppliers
may fail to deliver products of acceptable quality and within stipulated schedules or at all. We do not have any formal agreements
with our vendors/suppliers as we operate on a purchase order system. Due to the absence of any formal contract with our
vendors/suppliers, we are exposed to the risks of irregular supplies or no supplies at all or delayed supplies or volatility in the
prices of raw materials that we normally procure. We may be required to replace a supplier if the products provided or supplied,
do not meet our quality or performance standards. Further, increase in competition may lead to our competitors establishing
exclusive arrangements with our suppliers due to which we may be unable to secure an adequate supply of raw materials or which
may increase our overall cost of raw materials, which we may not be able to determine from our customers. While we are not
significantly dependent on any single raw material supplier, raw material supply and pricing can be volatile due to a number of
factors beyond our control, including global demand and supply, economic and political conditions, transportation and labour
costs, disruption during transportation, labour unrest, natural disasters etc. This volatility in commodity prices can significantly
affect our raw material costs.

Further our Company has outstanding dues of trade payables during Fiscal Years ended 21-22, 20-21 and 19-20 of X 253.79 lakhs,
% 322.10 lakhs and X 203.24 lakhs respectively. Any delay in payment to our creditors may impact our long standing relations
with our suppliers and may result in stoppage of timely or at all delivery of raw material. Any such disruption would impact the
production and overall financial position of our Company.

17. Our manufacturing activities require deployment of labour and depend on availability of labour. In case of unavailability
of such labour, our business operations could be affected.

Our manufacturing operations require deployment and our ability to retain labour. In case such labour workforce is unavailable, or
we are unable to identify and retain such labour our business could be adversely affected. We cannot guarantee that we may be
able to continue with the same on favourable terms or at all. Any such failure may impact the operations, business process and
profitability. Additionally, there have been amendments in the labour and Employment related laws, which may have a direct
impact on our employee costs and consequently, on our margins. Further, latest amendments in labour laws in India may be lead
to increasing cost of compliance, wages, social security, Occupational Safety, Health and Working Conditions. We cannot assure
you that we will continue to comply with all these labour related laws and that as we continue to grow our business in the future,
our labour and employee costs coupled with operating compliances and expenses will not significantly increase.
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18. Inventories and trade receivables form a major part of our current assets. Failure to manage our inventory and trade
receivables could have an adverse effect on our sales, profitability, cash flow and liquidity.

Our Company’s business is working capital intensive and hence, inventories and trade receivables form a major part of our current
assets. The results of operations of our business are dependent on our ability to effectively manage our inventory (raw materials,
work in progress and finished goods) and trade receivables. To effectively manage our inventory, we must be able to accurately
estimate customer demand / potential orders and supply requirements and purchase new inventory accordingly. However, if we
misjudge expected customer demand / potential orders, it could cause either a shortage of products or an accumulation of excess
inventory. During FY 2021-22, 2020-21 and 2019-20, our inventories were X 519.94 Lakhs, X 212.76 lakhs and X 185.91 lakhs.
Further, if we fail to convert the inventory we purchase by manufacturing our products, we may be required to write-down our
inventory or pay our suppliers without new purchases, or create additional vendor financing, all of which could have an adverse
impact on our income and cash flows.

To effectively manage our trade receivables, we must be able to accurately evaluate the credit worthiness of our customers and
ensure that suitable terms and conditions are given to them in order to ensure our continued relationship with them. However, if
we fail to accurately evaluate the credit worthiness of our customers, it may lead to bad debts, delays in recoveries and / or write-
offs which could lead to a liquidity crunch, thereby adversely affecting our business and results of operations. During FY 2021-22,
2020-21 and 2019-20 our trade receivables were X 296.43 lakhs, X 752.37 lakhs and X 388.45 lakhs. A liquidity crunch may also
result in case of increased working capital borrowings and, consequently, higher finance cost which will adversely impact our
profitability.

19. The Objects of the Issue for which funds are being raised, are based on our management estimates and have not been
appraised by any bank or financial institution or any independent agency.

The deployment of funds will be entirely at our discretion, based on the parameters as mentioned in the chapter titled “Objects of
the Issue”. The fund requirement and deployment, as mentioned in the “Objects of the Issue” on page 71 of this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus is based on the estimates of our management and has not been appraised by any bank or financial institution or
any other independent agency. These fund requirements are based on our current business plan. We cannot assure that the current
business plan will be implemented in its entirety or at all. In view of the highly competitive and dynamic nature of our business,
we may have to revise our business plan from time to time and consequently these fund requirements. The deployment of the
funds as stated under chapter “Objects of the Issue” is at the discretion of our Board of Directors and is not subject to monitoring
by any external independent agency. Further, we cannot assure that the actual costs or schedule of implementation as stated under
chapter “Objects of the Issue” will not vary from the estimated costs or schedule of implementation. Any such variance may be
on account of one or more factors, some of which may be beyond our control. Occurrence of any such event may delay our
business plans and/or may have an adverse bearing on our expected revenues and earnings.

20. We have in the past entered into related party transactions and may continue to do so in the future. There can be no
assurance that such transactions, individually or in the aggregate, will not have an adverse effect on our Company’s
financial condition and results of operations.

Our Company has entered into various transactions with our Subsidiary, Directors, Promoters and Promoter Group
members/entities and Group companies. These transactions, inter-alia includes, issue of shares, remuneration, loans and advances,
purchase, sales, rent expenses and professional fees expenses, reimbursement of expenses etc. For details, please refer to “Note
W- Related Party Transactions” under Section titled “Financial Information of the Company” and Chapter titled “Capital
Structure” beginning on page 137 and 55 respectively of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. Our Company has entered into such
transactions due to easy proximity and quick execution. Although all related-party transactions that we may enter into in the future
are subject to approval by our Audit Committee, Board or shareholders, as required under the Companies Act, we cannot assure
you that such future transactions or any other future transactions, individually or in aggregate, will not have an adverse effect on
our financial condition and results of operations or that we could not have achieved more favorable terms if such transactions are
not entered into with related parties.

Furthermore, it is likely that we may enter into related party transactions in the future. Any future transactions with our related
parties could potentially involve conflicts of interest. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that such transactions, individually
or in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, cash flows, results of operations
and prospects.

21. The Trademark used by our Company is not owned by us. Thus, we may be subject to claims alleging breach of third-party

intellectual property rights. Failure to protect our intellectual property rights may adversely affect our competitive
business position, financial condition and profitability.
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The trademarks which we are using for our products are owned by our Promoter and Joint Managing Director Mr. Gaurav Lath
and we have been allowed to use the same through the Affidavit cum NOC dated September 01, 2022 entered between him and
our company. We do not enjoy the statutory protections accorded to a registered trademark until the same is registered in our
name. Also, we may not be able to identify or prevent any unauthorized use of the trademark we are currently using for our
business operations.

Our Company is in use of the said trademarks in its regular business operations. In the event if any injunctive or other adverse
order is issued against us in respect of the said trademarks, we may not be able to avail the legal protection and may be subject to
claims alleging breach of third-party intellectual property rights, which may adversely affect our goodwill, business and results of
operations. In the event that the NOC for the said trademarks is revoked, we could be forced to rebrand our products, which could
result in loss of recognition. For further details on the trademarks, please refer to Chapter titled “Government and Other
Approvals” beginning on page 186 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

22. Invocation of performance bank guarantees by our customers could impact our results of operations and we may face
potential liabilities from claims by customers in the future.

For some of our purchase orders we are required to secure performance bank guarantee from scheduled commercial banks to be
furnished upon receipt of purchase orders and remain valid up to successful delivery of the products or for such extended period
as defined in the specific work orders. For the Fiscals ended 2022, 2021 and 2020 we have outstanding bank guarantee for X 22.32
lakhs, ¥ 51.97 lakhs and % 32.25 lakhs respectively. Our inability to arrange such guarantees or the invocation of such guarantees
may adversely affect our cash flows and financial condition. We may not be able to continue obtaining new financial and
performance bank guarantees required to match our business requirements. If we are unable to provide sufficient collateral to
secure the financial bank guarantees, performance bank guarantees, our ability to procure new purchase orders could be limited
and could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. Providing security to obtain
financial and performance bank guarantees also increases our working capital requirements. The invocation of such bank
guarantees in relation to our purchase orders could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operation, and financial
condition.

23. Relevant copies of educational qualifications of some of our key managerial person are not traceable.

Relevant copy of the educational qualification of our Non-Executive Director, Mr. Govind Prasad Lath is not traceable. For the
disclosure of their education qualification and profile we have relied on the affidavits provided by him. For the details regarding
their educational qualifications as disclosed in their brief biographies refer section title “Our Management” on page 119 of this
Draft Red Hearing Prospectus.

24. Our Company has taken unsecured loans that may be recalled by the lenders at any time.

Our Company have availed unsecured loans which may be called by their lenders at any time. As on March 31, 2022, the
unsecured loan amounting % 20.16 lakhs were due to lenders. In the event that lender seeks a repayment of any such loan, our
Company would need to find alternative sources of financing, which may not be available on commercially reasonable terms, or at
all. Also there is no formal agreement with any of our lenders. As a result, any such demand may affect our business, cash flows,
financial condition and results of operations. For further details on financing arrangements entered into by our Company, please
refer chapter titled “Statement of Financial Indebtedness” beginning on page 172 of Prospectus.

25. Our Company is involved in certain legal proceedings and potential litigations. Any adverse decision in such proceedings
may render us/ them liable to liabilities/ penalties/ prosecutions and may adversely affect our business and results of
operations.

Our Company is currently involved in certain legal proceedings. These legal proceedings are pending at different levels of
adjudication before various courts, tribunals, and government departments. The summary of outstanding litigation in relation to
taxation matters, statutory or regulatory laws filed by or against our Company and Directors have been set out below.

Litigations/ Matters against our Company:-

(< in lakhs)
Nature of Litigation Number of Cases Amount in dispute/demanded to the extent
Outstanding ascertainable (Amount in Lakhs)

Against the Company

Taxation Liabilities (direct Tax Cases) | 2 | 5.10

Amount mentioned to the extent quantifiable. The amount may be subject to additional interest/other charges being levied by the
concerned authorities which are unascertainable as on date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus
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For further details, see “Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments” beginning on page 182 of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus. Any adverse decisions in the aforesaid proceedings may have a material effect on our business, future financial
performance and results of operations. If the courts or tribunals rule against our Company, we may face monetary and/or
reputational losses and may have to make provisions in our financial statements, which could increase our expenses and our
liabilities.

26. Our business is dependent on our manufacturing facilities and we are subject to certain risks in our manufacturing
process. Obsolescence, destruction, theft, breakdowns of our major plants or machineries or failures to repair or maintain
the same may affect our business, cash flows, financial condition and results of operations.

We have two manufacturing facilities located at Lucknow. Our business is dependent upon our ability to manage our
manufacturing facilities, which are subject to various operating risks, including those beyond our control, such as the breakdown
and failure of equipment or accidents and severe climate conditions and natural disasters. Any significant malfunction or
breakdown of our machinery may entail significant repair and maintenance costs and cause delays in our operations. If we are
unable to repair breakdown of machinery in a timely manner or at all, our operations may need to be suspended until we procure
new machinery to replace the same. In addition, we may be required to carry out planned shutdowns of our facilities for
maintenance, statutory inspections and testing.

Obsolescence, destruction, theft or breakdowns of our major plants or machineries may significantly increase our machineries
purchase cost and the depreciation of our plants and machineries, as well as change the way our management estimates the useful
life of our plants and machineries. In such cases, we may not be able to acquire new plants or machineries or repair the damaged
plants or machineries in time or at all. Some of our major machineries or parts may be costly to replace or repair. We may
experience significant price increases due to supply shortages, inflation, transportation difficulties or unavailability. Such
obsolescence, destruction, theft, breakdowns, repair or maintenance failures or price increases may not be adequately covered by
the insurance policies availed by our Company and may have an effect our business, cash flows, financial condition and results of
operations.

Although we have not experienced any significant disruptions at our manufacturing facilities in the past, we cannot assure you that
there will not be any disruptions in our operations in the future. Our inability to effectively respond to such events and rectify any
disruption, in a timely manner and at an acceptable cost, could lead to the slowdown or shut-down of our operations or under-
utilization of our manufacturing facilities, which in turn may have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and
financial condition.

27. Our contingent liabilities as stated in our Restated Financial Statements could affect our financial condition.

Our Contingent liabilities as on March 31, 2022 were X 35.42 Lakhs. If these contingent liabilities materialize, fully or partly, the
financial condition of our Company could be affected.

% in Lakhs
Particulars Asat
31-03-22 31-03-21 31-03-20
Contingent liabilities in respect of:
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts (Income tax
Appeal (disputed demand) for A.Y. 2020-21 and TDS Defaults) 13.10 0.08 0.08
Guarantees (Bank Guarantee provided against sales order) 22.32 51.97 32.25
Other moneys for which the company is contingently liable - - -
Commitments (to the extent not provided for) - - -
Other commitments - - -
Total 35.42 52.05 32.33

For more information, regarding our contingent liabilities, please refer “Note W in chapter titled “Financial Information of the
Company” beginning on page 137 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

28. Fluctuations in the exchange rate of foreign currencies could result in currency transactions losses

Some of our raw material are imported like: rubber coated sheets, thread rolls etc majorly from China and are paid in US$. A
depreciation of Rupee against these foreign currencies would mean that our import of Raw material would become expensive and
will impact our cost. During the FY 2021-22, FY 2020-21 and FY 2019-20 the imports accounted for approximately I 88.18
lakhs, X 86.74 lakhs and X 83.88 lakhs respectively. The exchange rate between the Rupee and these foreign currencies has
fluctuated substantially in recent years and may continue to fluctuate significantly in the future. We bear the complete risk of
currency exchange rate fluctuations in respect of import of our raw materials.
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29. If we are unable to manage our growth effectively, our business, future financial performance and results of operations
could be materially and adversely affected.

The success of our business will depend greatly on our ability to effectively implement our business and growth strategy. As part
of our growth strategy, we aim to, among other things, continue to grow our businesses as and when opportunities exist including
by Continuing to strengthen our existing product portfolio with attractive growth and profitability prospects, to leverage the
Government's policy and budget relating to our business, to strive for cost efficiency, attracting and retaining talented employees
and focusing on consistently meeting quality standards

This could place significant demands on our operational, credit, financial and other internal risk controls. In pursuing our growth
strategy, we will require additional capital investments and cash outlays, which may have a material impact on our cash flows and
results of operations. Our operating expenses and capital requirements may increase significantly pursuant to our expansion and
diversification plans. Our ability to manage our growth effectively requires us to forecast accurately our sales, growth and
manufacturing capacity and to expend funds to improve our operational, financial and management controls, reporting systems
and procedures. An inability to implement our future business plan, manage our growth effectively or failure to secure the
required funding on favourable terms or at all could have a material and adverse effect on our business, future financial
performance and results of operations.

30. Changes in technology may render our current technologies obsolete or require us to make substantial investments.

Modernization and technology up gradation is essential to reduce costs and increase the output. Our technology and machineries
may become obsolete or may not be upgraded timely, hampering our operations and financial conditions and we may lose our
competitive edge. Although we believe that we have installed updated technology, we shall continue to strive to keep our
technology, plant and machinery in line with the latest technological standards. In case of a new found technology in the industry
in which we operate, we may be required to implement new technology or upgrade the machineries and other equipment
employed by us. Further, the costs in upgrading our technology and modernizing the plant and machineries are significant which
could substantially affect our finances and operations.

31. We operate in a competitive business environment. Failure to compete effectively against our competitors and new
entrants in the industry in any of our business segments may adversely affect our business, financial condition and results
of operations

The manufacturing of our products is competitive, and it experiences rapid technological developments and product up-gradation.
For further details of our competitors, please see “Our Business — Competition” on page 97. We compete on the basis of our
ability to fulfil our obligations for the secured purchase order including the quality and the timely delivery of the products.
Additionally, while these are important considerations like: vendor approval registration, eligibility qualifications, price is a major
factor in most tender / bid awards and our business is subject to price competition. Our competitors may have substantially greater
financial, management, research and marketing resources than we have as a result of which they may be able to utilise their
resources and economies of scale to develop improved products, divert sales away from us by winning larger orders or they may
hire our employees by offering more lucrative compensation packages. Our failure to compete effectively with respect to any of
these or other factors could have a material adverse effect on our business, prospects, financial condition or operating results. In
such a scenario, we may find difficulties in maintaining our position in the market.

32. Our Promoter Group Entities are engaged in the line of business similar to our Company

Our Promoter Group Entities i.e Atlantic Tradelinks Private Limited, Shivalik Industries, Atlantic Tradeengineers LLP are
engaged in the similar line as that of our Company. We cannot assure that our Promoter who has common interest in said entity
will not favour the interest of the said entity. As a result, conflicts of interests may arise in allocating business opportunities
amongst our Company and this Company in circumstances where our respective interests’ conflict. In cases of conflict, our
Promoter may favour this company in which our Promoter has interest. There can be no assurance that our Promoters or members
of the Promoter Group will not compete with our existing business or any future business that we may undertake or that their
interests will not conflict with ours. Any such present and future conflicts could have a material adverse effect on our reputation,
business, results of operations and financial condition which may adversely affect our profitability and results of operations.

33. Our Promoters have provided personal guarantees for loan facilities obtained by our Company, and any failure or default
by our Company to repay such loans in accordance with the terms and conditions of the financing documents could
trigger repayment obligations on them, which may impact their ability to effectively service their obligations and thereby,
impact our business and operations.

Our Promoters Mr. Nitin Jain and Mr. Gaurav Lath have provided personal guarantee towards loan facilities taken by our
Company from HDFC Bank Limited and may continue to provide such guarantees and other securities post listing. Any default or
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failure by us to repay the loans in a timely manner, or at all could trigger repayment obligations of our guarantors in respect of
such loans, which in turn, could have an impact on their ability to effectively service their obligations, thereby having an effect on
our business, results of operation and financial condition. Furthermore, in the event that these individuals or companies withdraw
or terminate their guarantees, our lenders for such facilities may ask for alternate guarantees, repayment of amounts outstanding
under such facilities, or even terminate such facilities. We may not be successful in procuring guarantees satisfactory to the
lenders, and as a result may need to repay outstanding amounts under such facilities or seek additional sources of capital, which
could affect our financial condition and cash flows. For further details, please refer to chapter titled “Statement of Financial
Indebtedness” beginning on page 172 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

34. Our Group Company has incurred losses in past, any operating losses in the future could adversely affect the results of
operations and financial conditions of our group company.
The details of profit and loss of our Group Companies in the past years are as follows:-
(Amt. in Lakhs)

Group Company For The Year Ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Concord Global Engineers Private Limited 0.04 (0.22) 0.30
T&L Gases Private Limited 3.05 (35.98) 1.27

Any operating losses by our group companies could adversely affect the overall operations of the group and financial conditions
and also divert the attention of the management and promoters towards the group company which could have an adverse effect on
our operations and financials. For more information, regarding the Company, please refer chapter titled “Our Group Companies”
beginning on page 189 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

35. Excessive dependence on HDFC Bank Limited in respect of Loan facilities obtained by our Company.

Our company has been sanctioned credit facilities by HDFC Bank Limited. The Company is dependent on such facilities for its
Working Capital and other funding requirement and any default under such arrangement with such lender may create problem for
operation of the Company, which may affect the financial stability of our Company. At the same time this may result into
difficulty in arranging for funds for re-payment and may also adversely affect the financial position of the Company.

36. We are subject to certain restrictive covenants in debt facilities provided to us by our lenders.

We have entered into agreements for availing debt facilities from lenders. Certain covenants in these agreements require us to
obtain approval/permission from our lenders in certain conditions. In the event of default or the breach of certain covenants, our
lender has the option to make the entire outstanding amount payable immediately. There can be no assurance that we will be able
to comply with these financial or other covenants or that we will be able to obtain consents necessary to take the actions that we
believe are required to operate and grow our business.

For further details in this regard, please refer to chapter titled “Statement of Financial Indebtedness” beginning on page 172 of
this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

37. The average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares by our Promoters is lower than the face value of Equity Share.

The average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares of our Promoters is lower than the face value of Equity Shares i.e. T10/-. For
further details regarding the average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares by our Promoters in our Company and build-up of Equity
Shares of our Promoters in our Company, please see section titled “Capital Structure” beginning on page 55 of this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus.

38. The Company has not made any provision for decline in value of Investment of the Company.

Our Company has made investment in mutual funds and subsidiary company for % 36.80 lakh as on March 31, 2022. We have not
made any provision for any decrease in the value of investments, if provision is made in future on account of permanent decrease
in value of these investments, our profits would reduce to the extent of such provision. This may have an adverse impact on our
results of operations and financial conditions.

39. We could be harmed by employee misconduct or errors that are difficult to detect and any such incidences could adversely
affect our financial condition, results of operations and reputation.

Employee misconduct or errors could expose us to business risks or losses, including regulatory sanctions and serious harm to our
reputation. There can be no assurance that we will be able to detect or deter such misconduct. Moreover, the precautions we take
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to prevent and detect such activity may not be affective in all cases. Our employees may also commit errors that could subject us
to claims and proceedings for alleged negligence, as well as regulatory actions on account of which our business, financial
condition, results of operations and goodwill could be adversely affected.

40. We have not identified any alternate source of funding and hence any failure or delay on our part to mobilize the required
resources or any shortfall in the Issue proceeds may delay the implementation schedule.

The proposed fund requirement as detailed in the section titled ""Objects of the Issue™ is to be funded from the proceeds of this
Issue. We have not identified any alternate source of funding and hence any failure or delay on our part to mobilize the required
resources or any shortfall in the Issue proceeds may delay the implementation schedule. We therefore, cannot assure that we
would be able to execute our future plans/strategy within the given timeframe. For details, please refer to the Chapter titled
“Objects of the Issue” beginning on page 71 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

41. Any Penalty or demand raised by statutory authorities in future will affect our financial position of the Company.

Our Company is engaged in the manufacturing business, which attracts tax liability such as Goods and Service tax and Income tax
as per the applicable provisions of Law. We are also subject to the labour laws like depositing of contributions with Provident
Fund, Employee State Insurance and Professional Tax. Any demand or penalty raised by the concerned authority in future for any
previous year and current year will affect the financial position of the Company.

42. Under-utilization of our manufacturing capacities and an inability to effectively utilize our expanded manufacturing
capacities could have an adverse effect on our business and results of operations. Moreover, information relating to
capacity utilization of our production facilities included in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus is based on certain
assumptions and has been subjected to rounding off, and future production and capacity utilization may vary.

Our revenues and profits are dependent on our ability to optimize and maximize our capacity utilization. For the Fiscals 2022,
2021 and 2020 our overall the capacity was underutilized utilized. For details of our capacity utilization please refer “Capacity
and Capacity Utilization” in the section “Our Business” on page 97 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. If we are unable to
ensure optimal utilization of our manufacturing capacities, we may be unable to produce our products in the required quantities
and enjoy benefits of economies of scale, which could have an adverse effect on our business and results of operations. Further
information relating to capacity utilization of our production facilities included in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus is based on
various assumptions and estimates of our management, assumptions relating to availability and quality of raw materials and
assumptions relating to operational efficiencies. Actual production levels and utilization rates may differ significantly from the
estimated production capacities or historical estimated capacity utilization of our facilities. Undue reliance should therefore not be
placed on our capacity utilization information for our existing facilities included in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. For further
information, see the section titled “Our Business” on page 97 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

43. Our ability to pay any dividends will depend upon future earnings, financial condition, cash flows and working capital
requirements.

We may retain all our future earnings, if any, for use in the operations and expansion of our business. As a result, we may not
declare dividends in the foreseeable future. Any future determination as to the declaration and payment of dividends will be at the
discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend on factors that our Board of Directors deem relevant, including among
others, our results of operations, financial condition, cash requirements, business prospects and any other financing arrangements.
Accordingly, realization of a gain on shareholders investments may largely depend upon the appreciation of the price of our
Equity Shares. There can be no assurance that our Equity Shares will appreciate in value. For details of our Dividend history refer
to the Section “Dividend Policy” on page 136 of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

44. There is no monitoring agency appointed by Our Company to monitor the utilization of the Issue proceeds.

As per SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, as amended, appointment of monitoring agency is required only for Issue size above
%10,000.00 lakhs. Hence, we have not appointed any monitoring agency to monitor the utilization of Issue proceeds. However, the
audit committee of our Board will monitor the utilization of Issue proceeds in terms of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Further, our Company shall inform about material deviations in the utilization of Issue proceeds
to the stock exchange and shall also simultaneously make the material deviations / adverse comments of the audit committee
public.

45. Our Promoters and the Promoter Group will jointly continue to retain majority shareholding in our Company after the
issue, which will allow them to determine the outcome of the matters requiring the approval of shareholders.

Our promoters along with the promoter group will continue to hold collectively 73.53% of the post issue paid up share capital of
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the company. As a result of the same, they will be able to exercise significant influence over the control of the outcome of the
matter that requires approval of the majority shareholders vote. Such a concentration of the ownership may also have the effect of
delaying, preventing or deterring any change in the control of our company. In addition to the above, our promoters and promoter
group will continue to have the ability to take actions that are not in, or may conflict with our interest or the interest of some or all
of our minority shareholders and there is no assurance that such action will not have any adverse effect on our future financials or
results of operations.

46. We may require further equity issuance, which will lead to dilution of equity and may affect the market price of our Equity
Shares or additional funds through incurring debt to satisfy our capital needs, which we may not be able to procure and
any future equity offerings by us.

Our growth is dependent on having a strong balance sheet to support our activities. In addition to the IPO Proceeds and our
internally generated cash flow, we may need other sources of financing to meet our capital needs which may include entering into
new debt facilities with lending institutions or raising additional equity in the capital markets. We may need to raise additional
capital from time to time, dependent on business conditions. The factors that would require us to raise additional capital could be
business growth beyond what the current balance sheet can sustain; additional capital requirements imposed due to changes in
regulatory regime or significant depletion in our existing capital base due to unusual operating losses. Any fresh issue of shares or
convertible securities would dilute existing holders, and such issuance may not be done at terms and conditions, which are
favorable to the then existing shareholders of our Company. If our Company decides to raise additional funds through the
incurrence of debt, our interest obligations will increase, and we may be subject to additional covenants, which could further limit
our ability to access cash flows from our operations. Such financings could cause our debt - equity ratio to increase or require us
to create charges or liens on our assets in favour of lenders. We cannot assure you that we will be able to secure adequate
financing in the future on acceptable terms, in time, or at all. Our failure to obtain sufficient financing could result in the delay or
abandonment of our expansion plans. Our business and future results of operations may be affected if we are unable to implement
our expansion strategy.

Any future issuance of Equity Shares by our Company may dilute shareholding of investors in our Company; and hence affect the
trading price of our Company‘s Equity Shares and its ability to raise capital through an issue of its securities. In addition, any
perception by investors that such issuances or sales might occur could also affect the trading price of our Company’s Equity
Shares. Additionally the disposal, pledge or encumbrance of Equity Shares by any of our Company‘s major shareholders, or the
perception that such transactions may occur may affect the trading price of the Equity Shares. No assurance may be given that our
Company will not issue Equity Shares or that such shareholders will not dispose of, pledge or encumber their Equity Shares in the
future.

47. The Issue price of our Equity Shares may not be indicative of the market price of our Equity Shares after the Issue and the
market price of our Equity Shares may decline below the issue price and you may not be able to sell your Equity Shares at
or above the Issue Price.

The issue price of the equity shares have been based on many factor and may not be indicative of the market price of our Equity
Shares after the Issue. For further information please refer the section titled “Basis for Issue Price” beginning on page 95 of the
Draft Red Herring Prospectus. The market price of our Equity Shares could be subject to significant fluctuations after the Issue,
and may decline below the Issue Price. We cannot assure you that you will be able to sell your Equity Shares at or above the Issue
Price.

48. Certain data mentioned in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus has not been independently verified.

We have not independently verified data from industry publications contained herein and although we believe these sources to be
reliable, we cannot assure that they are complete or reliable. Such data may also be produced on a different basis from comparable
information compiled with regard to other countries. Therefore, discussions of matters relating to India and its economy are
subject to the limitation that the statistical and other data upon which such discussions are based have not been verified by us and
may be incomplete or unreliable.

49. Investors other than retail (including non-institutional investors and Corporate Bodies) are not permitted to withdraw or
lower their Bids (in terms of quantity of Equity Shares or the Amount) at any stage after submitting an Application.

Pursuant to the SEBI ICDR Regulations, Investors other than retail (including non-institutional investors and Corporate Bodies)

are not permitted to withdraw or lower their Application (in terms of quantity of Equity Shares or the Amount) at any stage after

submitting an Application. While our Company is required to complete Allotment pursuant to the issue within six Working Days

from the Bid/ Issue Closing Date, events affecting the Bidders decision to invest in the Equity Shares, including material adverse

changes in international or national monetary policy, financial, political or economic conditions, our business, results of operation

or financial condition, may arise between the date of submission of the Application and Allotment. Our Company may complete
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the Allotment of the Equity Shares even if such events occur, and such events limit the bidder’s ability to sell the Equity Shares
Allotted pursuant to the issue or cause the trading price of the Equity Shares to decline on listing.

EXTERNAL RISK FACTORS

50. A decline or reprioritisation of the Indian Railways, reduction in orders, termination of existing government policies, delay
of existing or anticipated programmes or any adverse change in the Gol’s policies or initiatives towards Indian Railways
will have a material adverse impact on our business.

Our purchase orders received from the Indian Railways depend upon the continuing availability of budgets extended to the
Ministry of Railways (“MoR”). The total revenue expenditure by Indian Railways for financial year 2022-23 is projected to be
2,34,640 crore  further  the  capital  expenditure is  projected at X  2,45800 crore  (Source:
https://prsindia.org/budgets/parliament/demand-for-grants-2022-23-analysis-

railways#:~:text=Expenditure %3A%20The%20total %20revenue%20expenditure, revised%20estimates%200f%202021%2D22)
While there is an increase in the total allocations over a period of time, the level of spending by the Gol in the future is difficult to
predict and may be impacted by numerous factors such as the evolving developments in the country, foreign policy, domestic
political environment and macroeconomic conditions. Thus any decline or changes in Gol Entities requirements or geo-political
situations will have a material adverse impact on our business.

51. We are exposed to risks associated with fluctuation in metal prices or shortages in supply of electric components.

Our manufacturing activities depend on fluctuation in metal prices, being one of the important raw materials and supply of electric
components. Changes in macroeconomic conditions generally impact these industries and could negatively impact our business or
profitability. Accordingly, our business is highly dependent on the state of development of the Indian economy and the
macroeconomic environment prevailing in India. Changes in government policies that may have adverse effect on the
development associated industries, may have an adverse impact on our business.

52. If certain labour laws become applicable to us, our profitability may be adversely affected.

India has stringent labour legislations that protect the interests of workers, including legislation that sets forth detailed procedures
for dispute resolution and employee removal and legislation that imposes certain financial obligations on employers upon
retrenchment. Any change or modification in the existing labour laws may affect our flexibility in formulating labour related
policies.

53. The continuing effect of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business, results of operations and financial condition is highly
uncertain and cannot be predicted.

The outbreak, or threatened outbreak, of any severe communicable disease (particularly COVID-19) could adversely affect the
overall business sentiment and environment, particularly if such outbreak is inadequately controlled. The outbreak of COVID-19
has resulted in authorities implementing several measures such as travel bans and restrictions, quarantines and lockdowns. These
measures have impacted and may further impact our workforce and operations, the operations of our consumers. In case there is a
rapid increase in severe cases of infections leading to deaths, where the measures taken by governments are not successful or are
any bans imposed by the government in this regard are lifted prematurely, may cause significant economic disruption in India and
in the rest of the world. If any of our employees were suspected of contracting COVID-19 or any other epidemic disease, this
could require us to quarantine some or all of these employees or disinfect the facilities. In addition, our revenue and profitability
could be impacted to the extent that a natural disaster, health epidemic or other outbreak harms the Indian and global economy in
general. The outbreak has significantly increased economic uncertainty. It is likely that the current outbreak or continued spread of
COVID-19 will cause an economic slowdown and it is possible that it could cause a global recession.

54. A slowdown in economic growth in India may adversely affect our business, financial condition, cash flows, results of
operations and prospects.

The performance and growth of our business are necessarily dependent on economic conditions prevalent in India, which may be
materially and adversely affected by centre or state political instability or regional conflicts, a general rise in interest rates,
inflation, and economic slowdown elsewhere in the world or otherwise. There have been periods of slowdown in the economic
growth of India. India’s economic growth is affected by various factors including domestic consumption and savings, balance of
trade movements, namely export demand and movements in key imports (oil and oil products), global economic uncertainty and
liquidity crisis, volatility in exchange currency rates and annual rainfall which affects agricultural production. Any continued or
future slowdown in the Indian economy or a further increase in inflation could have a material adverse effect on the price of our
raw materials and demand for our products and, as a result, on our business and financial results. The Indian financial market and
the Indian economy are influenced by economic and market conditions in other countries, particularly in emerging market in
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Asian countries. Financial turmoil in Asia, Europe, the U.S. and elsewhere in the world in recent years has affected the Indian
economy. Although economic conditions are different in each country, investors’ reactions to developments in one country can
have adverse effects on the securities of companies in other countries, including India. A loss in investor confidence in the
financial systems of other emerging markets may cause increased volatility in Indian financial markets and, indirectly, in the
Indian economy in general. Any worldwide financial instability, including the financial crisis and fluctuations in the stock markets
in China and further deterioration of credit conditions in the U.S. or European markets, could also have a negative impact on the
Indian economy. Financial disruptions may occur again and could harm our business and financial results.

55. Changing laws, rules and regulations and legal uncertainties in India, including adverse application of tax laws and
regulations, may adversely affect our business and financial performance.

Our business and financial performance could be adversely affected by changes in law or interpretations of existing, or the
promulgation of new, laws, rules and regulations in India applicable to us and our business. For further details please refer to the
chapter “Government and Other Approvals” on page 186 for details of the laws currently applicable to us. There can be no
assurance that the central or the state governments in India may not implement new regulations and policies which will require us
to obtain approvals and licenses from the central or the state governments in India and other regulatory bodies or impose onerous
requirements and conditions on our operations. Any such changes and the related uncertainties with respect to the implementation
of the new regulations may have a material adverse effect on all our business, financial condition and results of operations. In
addition, we may have to incur capital expenditures to comply with the requirements of any new regulations, which may also
materially harm our results of operations. For instance, the Government has proposed a comprehensive national goods and
services tax (“GST”) regime that will combine taxes and levies by the Central and state Governments into a unified rate structure.
Given the limited availability of information in the public domain concerning the GST, we are unable to provide any assurance as
to the tax regime following implementation of the GST. The implementation of this new structure may be affected by any
disagreement between certain state Governments, which could create uncertainty. Any such future amendments may affect our
overall tax efficiency, and may result in significant additional taxes becoming payable.

56. Instability in financial markets could materially and adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

The Indian economy and financial markets are significantly influenced by worldwide economic, financial and market conditions.
Any financial turmoil, especially in the United States of America or Europe, may have a negative impact on the Indian economy.
Although economic conditions differ in each country, investors’ reactions to any significant developments in one country can have
adverse effects on the financial and market conditions in other countries. A loss in investor confidence in the financial systems,
particularly in other emerging markets, may cause increased volatility in Indian financial markets. The global financial turmoil, an
outcome of the sub-prime mortgage crisis which originated in the United States of America, led to a loss of investor confidence in
worldwide financial markets. Indian financial markets have also experienced the contagion effect of the global financial turmoil,
evident from the sharp decline in SENSEX, BSE’s benchmark index. Any prolonged financial crisis may have an adverse impact
on the Indian economy and us, thereby resulting in a material and adverse effect on our business, operations, financial condition,
profitability and price of our Equity Shares.

57. Natural calamities could have a negative impact on the Indian economy and cause Our Company’s business to suffer.

India has experienced natural calamities such as earthquakes, tsunami, floods etc. In recent years, the extent and severity of these
natural disasters determine their impact on the Indian economy. Prolonged spells of abnormal rainfall or other natural calamities
could have a negative impact on the Indian economy, which could adversely affect our business, prospects, financial condition
and results of operations as well as the price of the Equity Shares.

58. Government regulation of foreign ownership of Indian securities may have an adverse effect on the price of the Equity
Shares.

Foreign ownership of Indian securities is subject to government regulation. Under foreign exchange regulations currently in affect
in India, transfer of shares between nonresidents and residents are freely permitted (subject to certain exceptions) if they comply
with the pricing guidelines and reporting requirements specified by the RBI. If the transfer of shares, which are sought to be
transferred, is not in compliance with such pricing guidelines or reporting requirements or fall under any of the exceptions referred
to above, then the prior approval of the RBI will be required. Additionally, shareholders who seek to convert the rupees proceeds
from the sale of shares in India into foreign currency and repatriate that foreign currency from India will require a no objection/
tax clearance certificate from the Income Tax authorities. There can be no assurance that any approval required from the RBI or
any other government agency can be obtained.

59. Our performance is linked to the stability of policies and the political situation in India.

The Government of India has traditionally exercised, and continues to exercise, a significant influence over many aspects of the
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economy. Our business, and the market price and liquidity of our Equity Shares, may be affected by interest rates, changes in
government policy, taxation, social and civil unrest and other political, economic or other developments in or affecting India. Any
political instability in India may adversely affect the Indian securities markets in general, which could also adversely affect the
trading price of our Equity Shares. Any political instability could delay the reform of the Indian economy and could have a
material adverse effect on the market for our Equity Shares. There can be no assurance to the investors that these liberalization
policies will continue under the newly elected government. Protests against privatization could slow down the pace of
liberalization and deregulation. The rate of economic liberalization could change, and specific laws and policies affecting
companies in the industrial equipment manufacturing sectors, foreign investment, currency exchange rates and other matters
affecting investment in our securities could change as well. A significant change in India’s economic liberalization and
deregulation policies could disrupt business and economic conditions in India and thereby affect our business.
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SECTION IV — INTRODUCTION

THE ISSUE

PRESENT ISSUE IN TERMS OF THIS DRAFT RED HERRING PROSPECTUS

Equity Shares Offered through Public I1ssue®® Issue of upto 15,12,000 Equity Shares of face value of 210 each fully
paid-up of our Company.
Out of which:
Issue Reserved for the Market Makers 78,000 Equity Shares aggregating to X [e] Lakhs.
Net Issue to the Public Upto 14,34,000 Equity Shares aggregating to X [e] Lakhs.
Out of which*
A. QIB Portion ®® Not more than [@] Equity Shares aggregating up to % [e] lakhs.
Of which
i)  Anchor Investor Portion Upto [e] Equity Shares aggregating up to X [e] lakhs.

ii) Net QIB Portion (assuming Anchor Investor | [e] Equity Shares aggregating up to X [e] lakhs.

Portion is fully subscribed)

Of which

(@) Awvailable for allocation to Mutual Funds | [e] Equity Shares aggregating up to X [e] lakhs

only (5% of the Net QIB Portion)

(b) Balance of QIB Portion for all QIBs | [e] Equity Shares aggregating up to X [e] lakhs

including Mutual Funds

B. Non-Institutional Portion Not less than [@] Equity Shares aggregating up to X [e] lakhs
C. Retail Portion Not less than [®] Equity Shares aggregating up to X [e] lakhs
Pre and Post — Issue Equity Shares
Equity Shares outstanding prior to the Issue 42,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of 210 each
Equity Shares outstanding after the Issue Upto 57,12,000 Equity Shares of face value %10 each

Use of Net Proceeds by our Company

Please see the chapter titled “Objects of the Issue” on page 71 of this
Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Subject to finalisation of the Basis of Allotment. Number of shares may need to be adjusted for lot size upon determination of issue
price.

Notes:

1)

2)

3)

4)

The Issue is being made in terms of Chapter IX of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, as amended from time to time. This
Issue is being made by our company in terms of Regulation of 229 (1) of SEBI ICDR Regulations read with Rule 19(2)(b)(i)
of SCRR wherein not less than 25% of the post — issue paid up equity share capital of our company are being offered to the
public for subscription.

The Issue has been authorized by the Board of Directors vide a resolution passed at its meeting held on August 30, 2022 and
by the Shareholder of our Company, vide a special resolution passed pursuant to Section 62(1)(c) of the Companies Act,
2013 at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on August 31, 2022.

The SEBI ICDR Regulations permit the issue of securities to the public through the Book Building Process, which states
that, not less than 15% of the Net Issue shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to Non-Institutional Bidders
and not less than 35% of the Net Issue shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to Retail Individual Bidders
and not more than 50% of the Net Issue shall be allotted on a proportionate basis to QIBs, subject to valid Bids being
received at or above the Issue Price. Accordingly, we have allocated the Net Issue i.e. not more than 50% of the Net Issue to
QIB and not less than 35% of the Net Issue shall be available for allocation to Retail Individual Investors and not less than
15% of the Net Issue shall be available for allocation to Non-institutional bidders.

Subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price, undersubscription, if any, in any category, except in the QIB
Portion, would be allowed to be met with spill-over from any other category or combination of categories of Bidders at the
discretion of our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Managers and the Designated Stock Exchange,
subject to applicable laws.

Our Company may, in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager, allocate up to 60% of the QIB Portion to Anchor
Investors on a discretionary basis in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. One-third of the Anchor Investor Portion shall
be reserved for domestic Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being received from domestic Mutual Funds at or above the Anchor
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Investor Allocation Price. In the event of under-subscription in the Anchor Investor Portion, the remaining Equity Shares shall be
added to the QIB Portion. Further, 5% of the Net QIB Portion shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to Mutual
Funds only, and the remainder of the QIB Portion shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to all QIB Bidders
(other than Anchor Investors), including Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price. However,
if the aggregate demand from Mutual Funds is less than 5% of the Net QIB Portion, the balance Equity Shares available for
allotment in the Mutual Fund Portion will be added to the Net QIB Portion and allocated proportionately to the QIB Bidders
(other than Anchor Investors) in proportion to their Bids. For further details, please refer section titled “Issue Procedure”
beginning on page 213 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.
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SUMMARY OF OUR FINANCIALS

ANNEXURE |- RESTATED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Amount in Z Lakhs)

As at
PARTICULARS NOTE 31/03/2022 | 31/03/2021 | 31/03/2020
A) | EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Shareholders™ Funds
(@) | Share Capital A 20.00 20.00 20.00
(b) | Reserves & Surplus A 733.86 474.90 330.25
(c) | Minority Interest 0.38 0.57 0.33
(c) | Share Application Money - - -
754.24 495.47 350.58
2. Non-Current Liabilities
(@) | Long Term Borrowings B 63.75 49.51 30.48
(b) | Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) C 2.53 4.62 5.40
(c) | Long Term Provisions G 9.63 6.27 4.58
75.92 60.40 40.46
3. Current Liabilities
(@) | Short Term Borrowings D 252.14 273.89 190.57
(b) | Trade Payables E 253.79 322.10 203.24
(c) | Other Current Liabilities F 32.78 52.22 14.23
(d) | Short Term Provisions G 98.36 47.27 38.93
637.06 695.48 446.97
Total 1,467.22 1,251.35 838.01
B) | ASSETS
1. Non-Current Assets
(@) | Fixed Assets H
)] Tangible Assets
(i) Gross Block 308.86 206.46 169.53
(ii) Depreciation 101.32 65.71 44.77
(iii) Net Block 207.54 140.74 124.77
I) | Intangible Assets
(i) Gross Block 4.87 3.27 3.27
(ii) Depreciation 2.47 1.00 0.24
(iii) Net Block 2.40 2.27 3.03
209.94 143.02 127.80
(b) | Non-Current Investment AA 35.00 - 0.44
(c) | Deferred Tax Assets (Net) C - - -
(d) | Long Term Loans and Advances L 111.30 22.23 33.15
(e) | Other Non-Current Assets M 26.14 19.70 8.50
172.43 41.93 42.09
2. Current Assets
(@) | Trade Receivables [ 296.43 752.37 388.45
(b) | Cash and Cash equivalents J 10.52 8.57 5.43
(c) | Inventories K 519.94 212.76 185.91
(d) | Short-Term Loans and Advances L - 4.55 1.33
(e) | Other Current Assets M 257.95 88.14 87.00
1,084.84 1,066.40 668.12
Total 1,467.22 1,251.35 838.01
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ANNEXURE 11

RESTATED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

(Amount in Z Lakhs)

For the Year ended
PARTICULARS NOTE ™ 31/0312022 31/03/2021 | _31/03/2020
1 Revenue From Operations N 3,169.55 1,753.29 1,587.64
2 Other Income 0 3.99 7.62 1.61
Total Revenue (1+2) 3,173.54 1,760.91 1,589.25
3 Expenditure
(@) Purchase of Material P 2,314.33 1,119.89 1,021.63
(b) Change In Inventory Q (307.18) (26.86) (14.96)
(c) Employee Benefit Expenses R 210.07 146.62 113.60
(d) Finance Cost S 10.71 18.08 9.11
(e) Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses T 37.08 21.71 13.14
(f Other Expenses U 560.09 294.23 300.50
4 Total Expenditure 3(a) to 3(f) 2,825.10 1,573.67 1,443.01
Profit/(Loss) Before Exceptional
5 extraordinary items & Tax (1+2-4) 348.44 187.24 146.25
6 Exceptional item - - -
7 Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (5-6) 348.44 187.24 146.25
8 Tax Expense:
@) Tax Expense for Current Year 91.53 45.43 37.19
(b) Short/(Excess) Provision of Earlier Year 0.01 (0.62) -
(c) Deferred Tax (2.08) (0.78) 4.48
Net Current Tax Expenses 89.46 44.03 41.68
9 Profit/(Loss) for the Year (7-8) 258.99 143.21 104.57
10 Share of Profit/(Loss) in Associate - - (0.06)
10 Minority Interest 0.02 0.00 0.07
11 Profit/ (Loss) for the year after Minority 258.97 143.92 104.58

Interest
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ANNEXURE 111

RESTATED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(Amount in Z Lakhs)

Particulars For The Year Ended
31/03/2022 31/03/2021 31/03/2020
A) Cash Flow From Operating Activities :
Net Profit after tax 258.97 143.22 104.58
Adjustment for :
Provision for Tax 91.54 44.81 37.19
Depreciation and amortization 37.08 21.71 13.14
Interest Paid/(Received) 9.31 15.55 5.98
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) (2.08) (0.78) 4.48
Provision For gratuity Expenses - - 3.41
Operating profit before working capital changes 394.81 224.51 161.98
Changes in Working Capital
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables 455.95 (363.93) (91.89)
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventory (307.18) (26.85) (14.96)
(Increase)/Decrease in Short Term Borrowings (21.75) 83.32 30.65
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets (169.80) (1.15) (29.61)
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables (68.32) 118.87 35.29
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities (19.44) 37.99 1.75
Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Provisions, etc 54.45 10.03 (3.23)
Cash generated from operations 318.71 82.79 89.98
Less:- Income Taxes paid 92.46 33.99 24.78
Net cash flow from operating activities A 226.25 48.80 65.20
B) Cash Flow From Investing Activities :
Purchase of Fixed Assets including of CWIP (104.02) (36.92) (53.91)
Investment made/Sold during the year (124.97) (10.46) (24.02)
Net cash flow from investing activities B (228.99) (47.38) (77.93)
C) Cash Flow From Financing Activities :
Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Borrowings (5.16) 22.72 22.39
Interest Paid (9.31) (15.55) (5.98)
Loan taken/(Repaid) 19.15 (5.44) -
Net cash flow from financing activities C 4.69 1.73 16.41
Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 1.95 3.14 3.68
Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 8.57 5.43 1.75
Cash equivalents at the end of the year 10.52 8.57 5.43
Notes
S. No. PARTICULARS 31/03/2022 31/03/2021 31/03/2020
1 Component of Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash on hand 1.10 1.66 0.19
Balance With banks 9.42 6.91 5.24
Other Bank Balance - -
Total 10.52 8.57 5.43
2. Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of
a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular
revenue generating, financing and investing activities of the company are segregated.
3. The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies, restated notes to accounts and notes on adjustments for
restated summary financial information (Annexure 1V) are an integral part of this statement.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Brief Summary:

Our Company was originally incorporated as a Private Limited Company under the name “Concord Control Systems Private
Limited” on January 19, 2011 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 with the Registrar of Companies, Kanpur, Uttar
Pradesh. Subsequently, pursuant to Special Resolution passed by the Shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting, held on
August 18, 2022, our Company was converted into a Public Limited Company and consequently the name of our Company was
changed from “Concord Control Systems Private Limited” to “Concord Control Systems Limited” vide a fresh certificate of
incorporation dated August 26, 2022, issued by the Registrar of Companies, Kanpur, Uttar Pradesh bearing CIN
U31908UP2011PLC043229.

For further details please refer to chapter titled “History and Corporate Structure” beginning on page 114 of this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus.

U31908UP2011PLC043229

043229

January 19, 2011

G-36 U.P.S.I1.D.C, Industrial Area, Deva Road, Chinhat, Lucknow-226019, Uttar
Pradesh, India

Tel. No.: +91-78000-08745

Email: info@concordgroup.in

Website: www.concordgroup.in

SME Platform of BSE Ltd. “BSE SME”

Registrar of Companies, Kanpur

37/17, Westcott Building, The Mall, Kanpur-208001, Uttar Pradesh, India
Tel No: 0512-2310443

Email id: roc.kanpur@mca.gov.in

Website: www.mca.gov.in

Board of Directors:

The Board of Directors of our Company as on the date of filing of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus consists of:

Mr. Govind Prasad Lath Chairman & Non- The Penthouse, Pandit Harbansh Villa Apartments, 13 | 00272007
Executive Director Joppling Road, Lucknow-226001, Uttar Pradesh, India.

Mr. Nitin Jain Joint Managing Director | C-126, Rajajipuram Lucknow-226017 Uttar Pradesh, India. 03385362

Mr. Gaurav Lath Joint Managing Director | 202 Garden View Apartments 8 Rana Pratap Marg | 00581405
Hazratganj Lucknow-226001, Uttar Pradesh, India.

Mrs. Mahima Jain Non-Executive Director | C-126 Rajajipuram, Lucknow-226017, Uttar Pradesh, India. 09688771

Mr. Harsh Sachdev Independent Director | F-1902 Apez Athena Sector 75, Nodia, Gautam Buddha | 09720531
Nagar- 201301, Uttar Pradesh, India.

Mr. Harsh Yadav Independent Director | 538K/74 Sitapur Road, Shanti Vatika Triveni Nagar 3, | 09718679
Nirala Nagar, Lucknow-226020, Uttar Pradesh, India.

For further details in relation to our Directors, please refer to chapter titled “Our Management” on page 119 of this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus.

Mr. Mayank Modi Mrs. Lavisha Wadhwani

Concord Control Systems Limited Concord Control Systems Limited

Address: G-36 U.P.S.I.D.C, Industrial Area, Deva Road, Address: G-36 U.P.S.I.D.C, Industrial Area, Deva Road,
Chinhat, Lucknow-226019, Uttar Pradesh, India. Chinhat, Lucknow-226019, Uttar Pradesh, India.

Tel. No.: +91-78000-08745 Tel. No.: +91-78000-08745

Email: cfo@concordgroup.in Email: cs@concordgroup.in

Website: www.concordgroup.in Website: www.concordgroup.in
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Investor Grievances:

Investors may contact our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer and/or the Registrar to the Issue and/or the Lead
Manager, in case of any pre-issue or post-issue related problems, such as non-receipt of letters of allotment, credit of
allotted Equity Shares in the respective beneficiary account or refund orders, etc.

All grievances in relation to the application through ASBA process may be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue, with a copy to
the relevant Designated Intermediary with whom the ASBA Form was submitted, giving details such as the full name of the sole or
First Applicant, ASBA Form number, Applicants DP ID, Client ID, PAN, number of Equity Shares applied for, date of submission
of ASBA Form, address of Bidder, the name and address of the relevant Designated Intermediary, where the ASBA Form was
submitted by the Bidder, ASBA Account number in which the amount equivalent to the Bid Amount was blocked and UPI ID used
by the Retail Individual Investors. Further, the Bidder shall enclose the Acknowledgment Slip from the Designated Intermediaries
in addition to the documents or information mentioned hereinabove.

For all Issue related queries and for redressal of complaints, Applicants may also write to the Book Running Lead Manager. All
complaints, queries or comments received by Stock Exchange/SEBI shall be forwarded to the Book Running Lead Manager, who
shall respond to the same.

All grievances relating to the Anchor Investors may be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue, giving full details such as name of
the sole or first Applicant, Bid cum Application Form number, Applicants DP ID, Client ID, PAN, date of the Anchor Investor
Application Form, address of the Applicant, number of Equity Shares applied for, Bid Amount paid on submission of the Anchor
Investor Application Form and the name and address of the relevant BRLM where the Anchor Investor Application Form was
submitted by the Anchor Investor. For all Issue related queries and for redressal of complaints, investors may also write to the
BRLM.

Details of Key Intermediaries pertaining to this Issue and our Company:

Book Running Lead Manager to the Issue Legal Advisor to the Issue
Hem Securities Limited Vedanta Law Chambers
Address: 904, A Wing, Naman Midtown, Senapati Bapat | Address: Ist Floor, SSK House, B-62, Sahakar Marg, LalKothi,
Marg, Elphinstone Road, Lower Parel,Mumbai-400013, Jaipur-302015 Rajasthan, India
Maharashtra, India Tel: +91- 141 -2740911, 4014091
Tel No.:+91-22-4906 0000 Fax: +91- 141 -2740911
Email: ib@hemsecurities.com Website: www.vedantalawchambers.com
Investor Grievance Email: redressal@hemsecurities.com | Email: vedantalawchambers@gmail.com
Website:www.hemsecurities.com Contact Person: Advocate Nivedita Ravindra Sarda

Contact Person: Mr. Ajay Jain
SEBI Reg. No.: INM000010981

Registrar to the Issue Statutory Auditor
Bigshare Services Private Limited M/s. Seth & Associates
Address: S6-2, 6th Floor, Pinnacle Business Park, Chartered Accountants,
Next to Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road, Address: 90-Pirpur Square, Lucknow-226001 Uttar Pradesh, India.
Andheri (East) Mumbai — 400093, India. Tel No.: +915224073356
Tel No.: +91 22 6263 8200 Email: dhruv@sethspro.com
Facsimile: +91 22 6263 8299 Website: www.sethspro.com
Email: ipo@bigshareonline.com Firm Registration No.: 001167C
Contact Person: Mr. Aniket Chindarkar Contact Person: Mr. Dhruv Seth
Website: www.bigshareonline.com Membership No: 404028
SEBI Registration Number: MB/INR000001385
Peer Review Auditor Banker to our Company
M/s. S.R. Goyal & Co HDFC Bank Limited
Chartered Accountants, Address: 38 Darbari Lal, Sharma Marg, Pranay Towers, Lucknow.
Address: ‘SRG HOUSE’ Plot No. 2, M.l. Road, Opp. | Email: bhuwanj.sishil@hdfcbank.com
Ganpati Plaza, Jaipur — 302001 Website: www.hdfcbank.com
Tel No.: + 0141-4041300 Mobile No:- +91-9305585300
Email: info@srgoyal.com Contact Person: Mr. Bhuwan J Sushil
Website: www.srgoyal.com Designation: Relation Manager

Firm Registration No.: 001537C

Peer Review Certificate Number: 013596
Contact Person: Mr. Ajay Atolia
Membership No: 077201

46



mailto:ib@hemsecurities.com
mailto:redressal@hemsecurities.com
http://www.hemsecurities.com/
http://www.vedantalawchambers.com/
mailto:vedantalawchambers@gmail.com
mailto:ipo@bigshareonline.com
http://www.sethspro.com/
mailto:info@srgoyal.com
http://www.srgoyal.com/
http://www.hdfcbank.com/

Concord Control Systems Limited )

Bankers to the Issue/ Refund Banker/ Sponsor Bank* Syndicate Member*

*The Banker to the Issue (Sponsor Bank) and Syndicate Member shall be appointed prior to filing of the Prospectus with the RoC.
Designated Intermediaries:

Self-Certified Syndicate Banks (SCSB’s)

The list of banks that have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSBs for the ASBA process is provided on the website of the SEBI

(https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes) and updated from time to time. For details on
Designated Branches of SCSBs collecting the Bid-cum-Application Forms, refer to the above mentioned SEBI link.

Further, as notified by SEBI vide its circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July 26, 2019; the applications through
UPI in IPOs can be made only through the SCSBs/ mobile applications whose name appears on the SEBI website www.sebi.gov. in
at the following path: Home > Intermediaries/Market Infrastructure Institutions > Recognized intermediaries > Self Certified
Syndicate Banks eligible as Issuer Banks for UPI.

Investor shall ensure that when applying in IPO using UPI, the name of his Bank appears in the list of SCSBs displayed on the
SEBI website which are live on UPI. Further, he/she shall also ensure that the name of the app and the UPI handle being used for
making the application is also appearing in the aforesaid list.

Syndicate SCSB Branches

In relation to ASBA Bids submitted to a member of the Syndicate, the list of branches of the SCSBs at the Specified Locations
named by the respective SCSBs to receive deposits of Bid cum Application Forms from the members of the Syndicate is available
on the website of the SEBI (https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes) and updated from time to
time. For more information on such branches collecting Bid-cum-Application Forms from the Syndicate at Specified Locations,
refer to the above mentioned SEBI link.

Registered Brokers

Bidders can submit Bid cum Application Forms in the Issue using the stock brokers network of the Stock Exchanges, i.e., through
the Registered Brokers at the Broker Centres. The list of the Registered Brokers eligible to accept ASBA forms, including details
such as postal address, telephone number and email address, is provided on the website of the
SEBIat(https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/Other Action.do?doRecognised=yes), respectively, as updated from time to time.

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents

The list of the Registrar to Issue and Share Transfer Agents (RTAs) eligible to accept Bid cum Applications forms at the
Designated RTA Locations, including details such as address, telephone number and e-mail address, are provided at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/Other Action.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=10 , as updated from time to time.

Collecting Depository Participants (CDP’s)

The list of the CDPs eligible to accept ASBA Forms at the Designated CDP Locations, including details such as name and contact
details, is provided on the websites of SEBI at (https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes), as
updated from time to time.

Brokers to the Issue

All members of the recognized stock exchanges would be eligible to act as Brokers to the Issue.
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Expert Opinion

Except as stated below, our Company has not obtained any expert opinions:

Our Company has received written consent dated September 06, 2022 from Peer Review Auditor namely, M/s. S.R. Goyal & Co.,
Chartered Accountants, to include their name as required under Section 26(5) of the Companies Act 2013 read with SEBI ICDR
Regulations in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus as an “expert” as defined under Section 2(38) of the Companies Act 2013 to the
extent and in respect of its (i) examination report dated September 06, 2022 on our restated consolidated financial information; and
(ii) its report dated September 06, 2022 on the statement of Special Tax Benefits in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.
Aforementioned consents have not been withdrawn as on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Inter-se Allocation of Responsibilities

Since, Hem Securities Limited is the sole Book Running Lead Manager to this Issue, a statement of inter se allocation of
responsibilities among Book Running Lead Manager is not applicable.

Appraisal and Monitoring Agency

As per regulation 262(1) of SEBI ICDR Regulations, the requirement of monitoring agency is not mandatory if the Issue size is up
to ¥ 10,000 Lakh. Since the Issue size is below Z 10,000 Lakh, our Company has not appointed any monitoring agency for this
Issue. However, as per section 177 of the Companies Act, the Audit Committee of our Company, would be monitoring the
utilization of the proceeds of the issue.

Green Shoe Option

No Green Shoe Option is applicable for this Issue.

Credit Rating

As this is an issue of Equity Shares, there is no credit rating for the Issue.

IPO Grading

Since the issue is being made in terms of Chapter 1X of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 there is no requirement of appointing
an IPO Grading agency.

Debenture Trustees
As this is an issue of Equity Shares, the appointment of Debenture trustees is not required.
Filing of Draft Red Herring Prospectus/ Red Herring Prospectus/Prospectus with the SEBI/ ROC

The Draft Red Herring Prospectus is being filed with BSE Limited, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai-400001,
Mabharashtra, India.

The Draft Red Herring Prospectus will not be filed with SEBI, nor will SEBI issue any observation on the Offer Document in terms
of Regulation 246(2) of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018. Pursuant to Regulation 246(5) of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 and
SEBI Circular Number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2018/011 dated January 19, 2018, a copy of Prospectus will be filed online
through SEBI Intermediary Portal at https://siportal.sebi.gov.in.

A copy of the Red Herring Prospectus/ Prospectus, along with the documents required to be filed under Section 26 & 32 of the
Companies Act, 2013 will be filed to the RoC Office situated at Registrar of Companies, Kanpur 37/17, Westcott Building, The
Mall, Kanpur-208001, Uttar Pradesh, India.

Book Building Process

Book Building, with reference to the Issue, refers to the process of collection of Bids on the basis of the Red Herring Prospectus

within the Price Band. The Price Band shall be determined by our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager

in accordance with the Book Building Process, and advertised in in all editions of the English national newspaper [e], all editions

of Hindi national newspaper [e] and Lucknow Edition of Regional newspaper [®] where our registered office is situated at least

two working days prior to the Bid/ Issue Opening date. The Issue Price shall be determined by our Company, in consultation with
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the Book Running Lead Manager in accordance with the Book Building Process after the Bid/ Issue Closing Date. Principal
parties involved in the Book Building Process are:-

e  Our Company;
The Book Running Lead Manager in this case being Hem Securities Limited,
The Syndicate Member(s) who are intermediaries registered with SEBI/ registered as brokers with BSE Ltd. and eligible to
act as Underwriters. The Syndicate Member(s) will be appointed by the Book Running Lead Manager;
The Registrar to the Issue and;
The Designated Intermediaries and Sponsor bank

The SEBI ICDR Regulations have permitted the Issue of securities to the public through the Book Building Process, wherein
allocation to the public shall be made as per Regulation 253 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

The Issue is being made through the Book Building Process wherein not more than 50% of the Net Issue shall be available for
allocation on a proportionate basis to QIBs, provided that our Company may in consultation with the BRLM allocate upto 60% of
the QIB Portion to Anchor Investors on a discretionary basis in accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations (the “Anchor
Investor Portion”), out of which one third shall be reserved for domestic Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being received from
domestic Mutual Funds at or above the Anchor Investor Issue Price. 5% of the QIB Portion shall be available for allocation on a
proportionate basis to Mutual Funds only, and the remainder of the QIB Portion shall be available for allocation on a
proportionate basis to all QIB Bidders, including Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price.
Further, not less than 15% of the Net Issue shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to Non-Institutional Bidders
and not less than 35% of the Net Issue shall be available for allocation to Retail Individual Bidders, in accordance with the SEBI
Regulations, subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price. All potential Bidders may participate in the Issue
through an ASBA process by providing details of their respective bank account which will be blocked by the SCSBs. All Bidders
are mandatorily required to utilize the ASBA process to participate in the Issue. Under-subscription if any, in any category, except
in the QIB Category, would be allowed to be met with spill over from any other category or a combination of categories at the
discretion of our Company in consultation with the BRLM and the Desighated Stock Exchange.

All Bidders, except Anchor Investors, are mandatorily required to use the ASBA process for participating in the Issue. In
accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, QIBs bidding in the QIB Portion and Non-Institutional Bidders bidding in
the Non-Institutional Portion are not allowed to withdraw or lower the size of their Bids (in terms of the quantity of the
Equity Shares or the Bid Amount) at any stage. Retail Individual Bidders can revise their Bids during the Bid/lIssue Period
and withdraw their Bids until the Bid/lssue Closing Date. Further, Anchor Investors cannot withdraw their Bids after the
Anchor Investor Bid/Issue Period. Allocation to the Anchor Investors will be on a discretionary basis.

Subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price, allocation to all categories in the Net Issue, shall be made on a
proportionate basis, except for Retail Portion where allotment to each Retail Individual Bidders shall not be less than the
minimum bid lot, subject to availability of Equity Shares in Retail Portion, and the remaining available Equity Shares, if any, shall
be allotted on a proportionate basis. Under — subscription, if any, in any category, would be allowed to be met with spill — over
from any other category or a combination of categories at the discretion of our Company in consultation with the Book Running
Lead Manager and the Stock Exchange. However, under-subscription, if any, in the QIB Portion will not be allowed to be met
with spill over from other categories or a combination of categories.

In terms of SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated November 10, 2015 and the SEBI (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, all the investors (except Anchor Investors) applying in a public issue shall use only
Application Supported by Blocked Amount (ASBA) process for application providing details of the bank account which will be
blocked by the Self Certified Syndicate Banks (SCSBs) for the same. Further, pursuant to SEBI Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/138 dated November 01, 2018, Retail Individual Investors applying in public issue may use
either Application Supported by Blocked Amount (ASBA) facility for making application or also can use UPI as a payment
mechanism with Application Supported by Blocked Amount for making application. For details in this regards, specific attention
are invited to the chapter titled “Issue Procedure ” beginning on page 213 of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

The process of Book Building under the SEBI ICDR Regulations is subject to change from time to time and the investors are
advised to make their own judgment about investment through this process prior to making a Bid or application in the Issue.

For further details on the method and procedure for Bidding, please see section entitled “Issue Procedure” on page 213 of this
Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Illustration of the Book Building and Price Discovery Process: Bidders should note that this example is solely for illustrative

purposes and is not specific to the Issue; it also excludes Bidding by Anchor Investors. Bidders can bid at any price within the

Price Band. For instance, assume a Price Band of %20 to X 24 per share, Issue size of 3,000 Equity Shares and receipt of five Bids
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from Bidders, details of which are shown in the table below. The illustrative book given below shows the demand for the Equity
Shares of the Issuer at various prices and is collated from Bids received from various investors.

Bid Quantity Bid Amount (%) Cumulative Quantity Subscription
500 24 500 16.67%
1,000 23 1,500 50.00%
1,500 22 3,000 100.00%
2,000 21 5,000 166.67%
2,500 20 7,500 250.00%

The price discovery is a function of demand at various prices. The highest price at which the Issuer is able to Issue the desired
number of Equity Shares is the price at which the book cuts off, i.e., ¥ 22.00 in the above example. The Issuer, in consultation
with the BRLM, may finalise the Issue Price at or below such Cut-Off Price, i.e., at or below X 22.00. All Bids at or above this
Issue Price and cut-off Bids are valid Bids and are considered for allocation in the respective categories.

Steps to be taken by the Bidders for Bidding:

Check eligibility for making a Bid (see section titled “Issue Procedure” on page 213 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus);
Ensure that you have a demat account and the demat account details are correctly mentioned in the Bid cum Application
Form;

e Ensure correctness of your PAN, DP ID and Client ID mentioned in the Bid cum Application Form. Based on these
parameters, the Registrar to the Issue will obtain the Demographic Details of the Bidders from the Depositories.

o Except for Bids on behalf of the Central or State Government officials, residents of Sikkim and the officials appointed by the
courts, who may be exempt from specifying their PAN for transacting in the securities market, for Bids of all values ensure
that you have mentioned your PAN allotted under the Income Tax Act in the Bid cum Application Form. The exemption for
Central or State Governments and officials appointed by the courts and for investors residing in Sikkim is subject to the
Depositary Participant’s verification of the veracity of such claims of the investors by collecting sufficient documentary
evidence in support of their claims.

e Ensure that the Bid cum Application Form is duly completed as per instructions given in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus
and in the Bid cum Application Form;

Bid/ Issue Program:

Event Indicative Dates
Bid/ Issue Opening Date [e]

Bid/ Issue Closing Date [e]
Finalization of Basis of Allotment with the Designated Stock Exchange [e]
Initiation of Allotment / Refunds / Unblocking of Funds from ASBA Account or [e]

UPI ID linked bank account

Credit of Equity Shares to Demat accounts of Allottees [e]
Commencement of trading of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange [e]

@ QOur Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager may consider participation by Anchor Investors in
accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. The Anchor Investor Bid/ Issue Period shall be one Working Day prior to the Bid/
Issue Opening Date in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

The above timetable is indicative and does not constitute any obligation on our Company or the Book Running Lead Manager.
Whilst our Company shall ensure that all steps for the completion of the necessary formalities for the listing and the
commencement of trading of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange are taken within 6 Working Days of the Bid/ Issue Closing
Date, the timetable may change due to various factors, such as extension of the Bid/Issue Period by our Company, revision of the
Price Band or any delays in receiving the final listing and trading approval from the Stock Exchange. The Commencement of
trading of the Equity Shares will be entirely at the discretion of the Stock Exchange and in accordance with the applicable laws.

Bid Cum Application Forms and any revisions to the same will be accepted only between 10.00 A.M. to 5.00 P.M. (IST) during
the Issue Period (except for the Bid/ Issue Closing Date). On the Bid/ Issue Closing Date, the Bid Cum Application Forms will be
accepted only between 10.00 A.M. to 3.00 P.M. (IST) for retail and non-retail Bidders. The time for applying for Retail Individual
Applicant on Bid/Issue Closing Date maybe extended in consultation with the BRLM, RTA and BSE SME taking into account the
total number of applications received up to the closure of timings.
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Due to the limitation of time available for uploading the Bid Cum Application Forms on the Bid/Issue Closing Date, Bidders are
advised to submit their applications one (1) day prior to the Bid/ Issue Closing Date and, in any case, not later than 3.00 P.M.
(IST) on the Bid/ Issue Closing Date. Any time mentioned in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus is IST. Bidders are cautioned that,
in the event a large number of Bid Cum Application Forms are received on the Bid/Issue Closing Date, as is typically experienced
in public Issue, some Bid Cum Application Forms may not get uploaded due to the lack of sufficient time. Such Bid Cum
Application Forms that cannot be uploaded will not be considered for allocation under this Issue. Applications will be accepted
only on Working Days, i.e., Monday to Friday (excluding any public holidays). Neither our Company nor the BRLM is liable for
any failure in uploading the Bid Cum Application Forms due to faults in any software/hardware system or otherwise.

In accordance with SEBI ICDR Regulations, QIBs and Non-Institutional Applicants are not allowed to withdraw or lower the size
of their Application (in terms of the quantity of the Equity Shares or the Application amount) at any stage. Retail Individual
Applicants can revise or withdraw their Bid Cum Application Forms prior to the Bid/Issue Closing Date. Allocation to Retail
Individual Applicants, in this Issue will be on a proportionate basis.

In case of discrepancy in the data entered in the electronic book vis-a-vis the data contained in the physical Bid Cum Application
Form, for a particular Applicant, the details as per the file received from Stock Exchange may be taken as the final data for the
purpose of Allotment. In case of discrepancy in the data entered in the electronic book vis-a-vis the data contained in the physical
or electronic Bid Cum Application Form, for a particular ASBA Applicant, the Registrar to the Issue shall ask the relevant SCSBs/
RTAs / DPs / stock brokers, as the case may be, for the rectified data.

Underwriting

The Company and the Book Running Lead Manager to the Issue hereby confirm that the Issue will be 100% Underwritten by the
Underwriter Hem Securities Limited.

Pursuant to the terms of the Underwriting Agreement dated September 01, 2022 entered into by Company, Underwriter, the
obligations of the Underwriter are subject to certain conditions specified therein. The Details of the Underwriting commitments are
as under:

Amount T
Details of the Underwriter lrj\lnoc.jeoer\s/rr]?t::ri Underwritten Sé)eoa;]rg;?\l,vlrsi?tj:n
(R in Lakhs)

Hem Securities Limited

Address: - 904, A Wing, Naman Midtown, Senapati Bapat
Marg, Elphinstone Road, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400013, India
Tel No.: +91-22-4906 0000

Email: ib@hemsecurities.com 15,12,000 [*] 100%
Investor Grievance Email: redressal@hemsecurities.com
Website: www.hemsecurities.com

Contact Person: Mr. Ajay Jain

SEBI Registration Number.: INM000010981

*Includes upto 78,000 Equity Shares of the Market Maker Reservation Portion which are to be subscribed by the Market Maker,
Hem Securities Limited in its own account in order to claim compliance with the requirements of Regulation 261 of the SEBI
(ICDR) Regulations, 2018, as amended.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors of our Company, the resources of the above mentioned Underwriter are sufficient to enable
them to discharge their respective obligations in full.

Change in Statutory Auditors during the last three (3) years

Except as stated below, there have been no changes in our Company*s auditors in the last three (3) years:

Details of Statutory Auditor Date of Change Reason of Change

M/s. A. Sachdev & Co.

Chartered Accountants,

Address: 27(11), Gokhale Marg, Lucknow-226001, Uttar Pradesh, India.
Tel No.: 0522-2207154/ 2207954 July 11, 2022 Due to preoccupation
Email: mail@asachdev.com
Website: www.asachdev.com
Firm Registration No.: 001307C
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Contact Person: Mr. Gopal Krishan Lath
Membership No: 070294

M/s. Seth & Associates

Chartered Accountants,

Address: 90-Pirpur Square, Lucknow-226001 Uttar Pradesh, India.
Tel No.: +915224073356

Email: dhruv@sethspro.com July 25, 2022 Appointment
Website: www.sethspro.com
Firm Registration No.: 001167C
Contact Person: Mr. Dhruv Seth
Membership No: 404028

Withdrawal of the Issue

Our Company in consultation with the BRLM, reserve the right to not to proceed with the Issue at any time before the Bid/ Issue
Opening Date without assigning any reason thereof.

If our Company withdraws the Issue anytime after the Bid/ Issue Opening Date but before the allotment of Equity Shares, a public
notice within 2 (two) working days of the Bid/ Issue Closing Date, providing reasons for not proceeding with the Issue shall be
issued by our Company. The notice of withdrawal will be issued in the same newspapers where the pre- Issue advertisements have
appeared and the Stock Exchange will also be informed promptly. The BRLM, through the Registrar to the Issue, will instruct the
SCSBs to unblock the ASBA Accounts within 1 (one) working Day from the day of receipt of such instruction.

If our Company withdraws the Issue after the Bid/ Issue Closing Date and subsequently decides to proceed with an Issue of the
Equity Shares, our Company will have to file a fresh Draft Red Herring Prospectus with the stock exchange where the Equity
Shares may be proposed to be listed.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Issue is subject to obtaining (i) the final listing and trading approvals of the Stock Exchange
with respect to the Equity Shares issued through the Draft Red Herring Prospectus, which our Company will apply for only after
Allotment; and (ii) the registration of Red Herring Prospectus/ Prospectus with RoC.

Details of the Market Making arrangement for this Issue

Our Company and the BRLM has entered into Market Making Agreement dated September 01, 2022 with the following Market
Maker, to fulfill the obligations of Market Making for this issue:

Name Hem Securities Limited

Correspondence Address 203, Jaipur Tower, M | Road, Jaipur, Rajasthan 302001, India
Tel No. 0141-4051000

E-mail ib@hemsecurities.com

Website www.hemsecurities.com

Contact Person Mr. Rohit Sharma

SEBI Registration No. INZ000168034

BSE Market Maker Registration No. SMEMMO0024801022013

The Market Maker shall fulfil the applicable obligations and conditions as specified in the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, and its
amendments from time to time and the circulars issued by the BSE and SEBI regarding this matter from time to time.

Following is a summary of the key details pertaining to the Market making arrangement:

> The Market Maker(s) (individually or jointly) shall be required to provide a 2-way quote for 75% of the time in a day. The
same shall be monitored by the stock exchange. Further, the Market Maker(s) shall inform the exchange in advance for
each and every black out period when the quotes are not being offered by the Market Maker(s).

> The prices quoted by Market Maker shall be in compliance with the Market Maker Spread Requirements and other
particulars as specified or as per the requirements of the BSE SME (SME platform of BSE) and SEBI from time to time.

> The minimum depth of the quote shall be X1,00,000/-. However, the investors with holdings of value less than % 1,00,000/-
shall be allowed to offer their holding to the Market Maker(s) (individually or jointly) in that scrip provided that he sells
his entire holding in that scrip in one lot along with a declaration to the effect to the selling broker.
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>

The Market Maker shall not sell in lots less than the minimum contract size allowed for trading on the SME platform of
BSE (in this case currently the minimum trading lot size is [*] equity shares; however the same may be changed by the
SME platform of BSE from time to time).

After a period of three (3) months from the market making period, the Market Maker would be exempted to provide quote
if the Shares of Market Maker in our company reaches to 25% of Issue Size. Any Equity Shares allotted to Market Maker
under this Issue over and above 25% of Issue Size would not be taken in to consideration of computing the threshold of
25% of Issue Size. As soon as the Shares of Market Maker in our Company reduces to 24% of Issue Size, the Market
Maker will resume providing 2 way quotes.

There shall be no exemption/ threshold on downside. However, in the event the Market Maker exhausts his inventory
through market making process, BSE may intimate the same to SEBI after due verification.

Execution of the order at the quoted price and quantity must be guaranteed by the Market Maker(s), for the quotes given by
him.

There would not be more than five Market Makers for a script at any point of time and the Market Makers may compete
with other Market Makers for better quotes to the investors.

On the first day of the listing, there will be pre-opening session (call auction) and there after the trading will happen as per
the equity market hours. The circuits will apply from the first day of the listing on the discovered price during the pre-open
call auction.

The Market maker may also be present in the opening call auction, but there is no obligation on him to do so.

There will be special circumstances under which the Market Maker may be allowed to withdraw temporarily/fully from the
market — for instance due to system problems, any other problems. All controllable reasons require prior approval from the
Exchange, while force-majeure will be applicable for non-controllable reasons. The decision of the Exchange for deciding
controllable and non-controllable reasons would be final

The Market Maker(s) shall have the right to terminate said arrangement by giving a 3 (three) months’ notice or on mutually
acceptable terms to the Merchant Banker, who shall then be responsible to appoint a replacement Market Maker(s) and
execute a fresh arrangement. In case of termination of the above mentioned Market Making agreement prior to the
completion of the compulsory Market Making period, it shall be the responsibility of the BRLM to arrange for another
Market Maker in replacement during the term of the notice period being served by the Market Maker but prior to the date
of releasing the existing Market Maker from its duties in order to ensure compliance with the requirements of regulation
106 V of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, as amended. Further our Company and the BRLM reserve the right to
appoint other Market Makers either as a replacement of the current Market Maker or as an additional Market Maker subject
to the total number of Designated Market Makers does not exceed five or as specified by the relevant laws and regulations
applicable at that particulars point of time. The Market Making Agreement is available for inspection at our office from
10.00 A.M. to 5.00 P.M. on working days.

Risk containment measures and monitoring for Market Makers: SME portal of BSE will have all margins, which are
applicable on BSE main board viz., Mark-to-Market, Value-At-Risk (VAR) Margin, Extreme Loss Margin, Special
Margins and Base Minimum Capital etc. BSE can impose any other margins as deemed necessary from time-to-time.

Punitive Action in case of default by Market Makers: BSE SME Exchange will monitor the obligations on a real time
basis and punitive action will be initiated for any exceptions and/or non-compliances. Penalties/ fines may be imposed by
the Exchange on the Market Maker, in case he is not able to provide the desired liquidity in a particular security as per the
specified guidelines. These penalties/ fines will be set by the Exchange from time to time. The Exchange will impose a
penalty on the Market Maker in case he is not present in the market (offering two way quotes) for at least 75% of the time.
The nature of the penalty will be monetary as well as suspension in market making activities/ trading membership. The
Department of Surveillance and Supervision of the Exchange would decide and publish the penalties/ fines/ suspension for
any type of misconduct/ manipulation/ other irregularities by the Market Maker from time to time.

Price Band and Spreads: The price band shall be 20% and the market maker spread (difference between the sell and the
buy quote) shall be within 10% or as intimated by Exchange from time to time.

Pursuant to SEBI Circular number CIR/MRD/DSA/31/2012 dated November 27, 2012, limits on the upper side for market
makers during market making process has been made applicable, based on the Issue size and as follows:
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Up to %20 Crore 25% 24%
%20 to %50 Crore 20% 19%
%50 to 280 Crore 15% 14%
Above %80 Crore 12% 11%

The SEBI Circular bearing reference no: CIR/MRD/DP/ 02/2012 dated January 20, 2012, has laid down that for issue size up to
250 crores, the applicable price bands for the first day shall be:

i In case equilibrium price is discovered in the Call Auction, the price band in the normal trading session shall be 5% of the
equilibrium price.

ii. In case equilibrium price is not discovered in the Call Auction, the price band in the normal trading session shall be 5% of
the issue price.

Additionally, the securities of the Company will be placed in SPOS and would remain in Trade for Trade settlement for first 10
days from commencement of trading. The following spread will be applicable on the SME platform.

Up to 50

50to 75
75 t0 100
Above 100

HlwinE
o|~|oo|©

All the above mentioned conditions and systems regarding the Market Making Arrangement are subject to change based on
changes or additional regulations and guidelines from SEBI and Stock Exchange from time to time.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Set forth below are the details of the Equity Share Capital of our Company as on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

i? in Lakhs, exceit share datai

A Authorized Share Capital 1000.00 i
1,00,00,000 Equity Shares having Face Value of X 10/- each )
Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Share Capital prior to the Issue
42,00,000 Equity Shares having Face Value of X10/- each
Present Issue in terms of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus*
C Upto 15,12,000 Equity Shares having Face Value of X 10/-each at a 151.20 [e]
Premium of X [e] per share

Which comprises of:

Reservation for Market Maker Portion
D 78,000 Equity Shares of X10/- each at a price of X [®] per Equity Share 7.80 [e]
reserved as Market Maker Portion
Net Issue to Public

E Net Issue to Public of upto 14,34,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each at a 143.40 [e]
price of X [e] per Equity Share to the Public

F Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Equity Share Capital after the Issue
[e] Equity Shares of face value of ¥10/- each [e]
G Securities Premium Account
Before the Issue (as on date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus) 65.00

After the Issue [e]

*The Present Issue of upto 15,12,000 Equity Shares in terms of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus has been authorized pursuant
to a resolution of our Board of Directors dated August 30, 2022 and by special resolution passed under Section 62(1)(c) of the
Companies Act, 2013 at an Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the members held on August 31, 2022.

B 420.00 -

Classes of Shares-

Our Company has only one class of share capital i.e. Equity Shares of face value of ¥ 10/- each only. All the issued Equity Shares
are fully paid-up. Our Company has no outstanding convertible instruments as on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

NOTES TO THE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

1. Changes in Authorized Equity Share Capital of our Company:

1. | Onincorporation 50,000 10/- 5.00 Upon N.A.

Incorporation
Increase in  Authorised
2. Share Capital from X 5.00 1,00,000 10/- 10.00 July 22, 2013 EGM
Lakhs to ¥ 10.00 Lakhs.
Increase in  Authorised
Share Capital from 2
10.00 Lakhs to % 50.00
Lakhs
Increase in  Authorised
Share Capital from 2
50.00 Lakhs to % 10.00
Crores

5,00,000 10/- 50.00 March 14, 2016 EGM

1,00,00,000 10/- 1000.00 June 10, 2022 EGM
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2. Equity Share Capital History of our Company:

a) Equity Share Capital

The following table sets forth details of the history of the Equity Share capital of our Company:

Upon Subscription )
incorporation | 10000 | 10 10 Cash o MOAG 10,000 Nil 1,00,000
Juz'g’lzo’ 90,000 | 10 10 Cash Right Issue | 4 50,000 Nil 10,00,000
Ma2r82828’ 1,00,000 | 10 75 Cash R'gh(f“)'ssue 2,00,000 | 6500000 | 20,00,000
June 24 Bonus Issue
| 40,00,000 | 10 - Other than Cash | in the ratio | 42,00,000 | 65,00,000 | 4,20,00,000
2022 of 20:1MW

All the above-mentioned shares are fully paid up since the date of allotment

(i) Initial Subscribers to the Memorandum of Association subscribed 10,000 Equity Shares of Face Value of ¥ 10/- each, details

of which are given below:

1. Mr. Nitin Jain 5,000
2. Mr. Gaurav Lath 5,000
Total 10,000

(ii) Right Issue of 90,000 Equity Shares of Face Value of 10/- each fully paid up, details of which are given below:

1. Mr. Nitin Jain 45,000
2. Mr. Gaurav Lath 45,000
Total 90,000

(iii) Right Issue of 1,00,000 Equity Shares of Face Value of ¥ 10/- each fully paid up, details of which are given below:

1. Mr. Nitin Jain 50,000
2. Mr. Gaurav Lath 50,000
Total 1,00,000

(iv) Bonus Issue of 40,00,000 Equity Shares of Face Value of < 10/- each fully paid up in the ratio of 20 (Twenty) equity shares
for every 1 (One) equity shares held on the record date i.e. May 31, 2022 as per the details mentioned below:

1. Mr. Nitin Jain 20,00,000
2. Mr. Gaurav Lath 20,00,000
Total 40,00,000

b) Preference Share Capital

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, our Company does not have any Preference Share Capital.

3. Issue of Equity Shares for consideration other than cash

Except as set out below we have not issued Equity Shares for consideration other than cash:
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Date of Number | Face | Issue Reason for Allotment Benefits Name of Allottees No. of
Allotment | of Equity | Value | Price Accrued to Shares
Shares (€3] (€3] our Company Allotted
June 24 B_onus in thg ratio of 20:1 Capitalization | Mr. Nitin Jain 20,00,000
2022 " | 40,00,000 10 - i.e. 20 Equity Share for of Reserves &
every 1 Equity Shares held Surplus* Mr. Gaurav Lath 20,00,000

*Above allotment of shares has been made out of Reserve & Surplus available for distribution to shareholders and no part of
revaluation reserve has been utilized for the purpose.

4.

Details of Allotment made in the last two years preceding the date of Draft Red Herring Prospectus:

Except as mentioned in point 2 (iv) above, we have not issued any Equity Share in the last two years preceding the date of
Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

No Equity Shares have been allotted pursuant to any scheme approved under sections 230-234 of the Companies Act, 2013 or
under the erstwhile corresponding provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

Our Company has not issued any shares pursuant to an Employee Stock Option Scheme.

Except for the Bonus Issue made on June 24, 2022 for 40,00,000 Equity Shares as mentioned in point no. 3 above, no Equity
shares have been issued at price below the Issue price within last one year from the date of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus

We have not revalued our assets since inception and have not issued any Equity Shares (including bonus shares) by
capitalizing any revaluation reserves.

Shareholding Pattern of the Company

The table below represents the shareholding pattern of our Company in accordance with Regulation 31 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus:
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I - Our Shareholding Pattern:-

v

VIl =

1IV+V+VI

VIl

IX

XI=VI+X

XV

(A)

Promoters &
Promoter
Group

42,00,000

42,00,000

100.00

42,00,000

42,00,000

42,00,000

(B)

Public

©

Non Promoter-
Non Public

(1)

Shares
underlying
DRs

(C2)

Shares held by
Employee
Trusts

Total

7

42,00,000

42,00,000

100.00

42,00,000

42,00,000

100.00

42,00,000

Notes-
o Ason date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus 1 Equity share holds 1 vote.
e The term “Encumbrance ” has the same meaning as assigned under regulation 28(3) of SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011
¢ We have only one class of Equity Shares of face value of X 10/- each.
o

We have entered into tripartite agreement with CDSL & NSDL.
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e  Our Company will file the shareholding pattern in the form prescribed under Regulation 31 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015,
one day prior to the listing of the Equity shares. The shareholding pattern will be uploaded on the Website of the Stock Exchange before commencement of trading of such
Equity Shares.

There are no Equity Shares against which depository receipts have been issued.
Other than the Equity Shares, there is no other class of securities issued by our Company

11 — Shareholding pattern of the Promoters and Promoter Group

I il om v | Vv VI NVI=IVAV+HVI VI IX X X1=VI+X| XII X111 X1V
(1)| Indian
Individuals/
@) Hindu
undivided
Family
Mr. Nitin Jain 1 2099750 - ; 20,99.750 4999  [20.99.750| - [20,99,750 49.99 ; ; } -~ [20,99.750
E"art'h E 1 [20,99750 - - 20,99,750 49.99  [20,99,750| - [20,99,750 49.99 - - - - 120,99,750
z'urrf Mahima 1 | 200 | - ] 200 0.00 200 | - | 200 | 000 - - ) ; 200
Mr. Govind
Srasad Lath 1 150 | - ; 150 0.00 150 | -| 150 | 0.0 ; ; ; . 150
ﬁ{ﬁ Ashok 1 50 ; ; 50 0.00 50 |-| 50 | 000 . . ; ] 50
Mrs. 1 50 - - 50 0.00 50 |-| 50 0.00 - - - - 50
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Pankhuri Lath

Mrs. Rekha
Lath

50

50

0.00

50

50

0.00

50

(b)

Central
Government/
State
Government(s)

(©)

Financial
Institutions/
Banks

(d)

Any Other
(specify)

Sub-Total
(A1)

42,00,000

42,00,000

100.00

42,00,000

42,00,000

100.00

42,00,000

@)

Foreign

(@)

Individuals
(Non-
Resident
Individuals/
Foreign
Individuals)

(b)

Government

(©

Institutions

(d)

Foreign
Portfolio
Investor

(f)

Any Other
(specify)

Sub-Total
(A)2)

Total

Shareholding
of Promoters
and Promoter
Group (A)=
(A)D)+(A)?2)

42,00,000

42,00,000

100.00

42,00,000

42,00,000

100.00

42,00,000
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111- Shareholding pattern of the Public shareholder

| nloom v | v v [YIEVE IX X XI= V4X X1 X1 XIV

+V+VI

(1) | Institutions
(a) | Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Venture Capital
(0) Funds
Alternate

(c) | Investment - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Funds
Foreign
Venture
(@ Capital i i i i i i i i i i i i i ) )
Investors
Foreign
(e) | Portfolio - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Investors
Financial
(f) | Institutions/ - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Banks
Insurance
©) Companies i i i i i i i i i i i j i ) )
Provident
(h) | Funds/ - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Pension Funds

(i) | Any Other - - - - - - - - - - - B - - -
61




Concord Control Systems Limited

(specify)

Sub-Total
(B)Q1)

()

Central
Government/
State
Government(s)
/ President of
India

Sub-Total
(B)(2)

3)

Non-
institutions

(@)

Individuals

i Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital upto ¥ 2
lakhs.

ii. Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital in
excess of T 2
lakhs.

NBFCs

(b) |registered with
RBI
Employee

() Trusts
Overseas

(d)

Depositories
(holding DRs)
(balancing
figure)

(€)

Any Other
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Body Corporate

Sub-Total
B)3)

Total  Public
Shareholding

B)= - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
(B)W)+(B)(2)+(
B)B)

1V - Shareholding pattern of the Non-Promoter- Non Public shareholder

| nl m v | v | v V”:\'X*V VIl IX X XI=V+X | Xl X1 XIV
Custodian/DR
@ Holder
@) Name of Holder (if ) ) ) ) ) ) ) L ) ) ) ) i
available)

Employee Benefit

Trust (under SEBI
(2) | (Share based - - - - - - - - -] - - - - - -
Employee Benefit)
Regulations, 2014)

Total Non-
Promoter Non-
Public - - - - - - - - |- - - - - - -

shareholding (C
)= (©O)D)+(C) @
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10. List of Shareholders of the Company holding 1% or more of the paid up Share Capital of the Company:-

a) As on the date of filing of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus:-

Sr. No. Names of Shareholder Shares Held (Face Value of % 10 each) % Pre Issue paid up Share Capital
1. Mr. Nitin Jain 20,99,750 49.99
2. Mr. Gaurav Lath 20,99,750 49.99
Total 41,99,500 99.99

b) Ten days prior to the date of filing of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus:-

Sr. No. Names of Shareholder Shares Held (Face Value of % 10 each) % Pre Issue paid up Share Capital
1. Mr. Nitin Jain 20,99,750 49.99
2. Mr. Gaurav Lath 20,99,750 49.99
Total 41,99,500 99.99

c) One Year prior to the date of filling of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus:-

Sr. No. Names of Shareholders Shares Held (Face Value of ¥ 10 each) % Pre-Offer paid up Share Capital
1. Mr. Nitin Jain 1,00,000 50.00
2. Mr. Gaurav Lath 1,00,000 50.00
Total 2,00,000 100.00

*Details of shares held on August 31, 2021 and percentage held has been calculated based on the paid up capital of our Company as

on August 31, 2021.

d) Two Year prior to the date of filling of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus: -

Sr. No. Names of Shareholders Shares Held (Face Value of ¥ 10 each) % Pre-Offer paid up Share Capital
1. Mr. Nitin Jain 1,00,000 50.00
2. Mr. Gaurav Lath 1,00,000 50.00
Total 2,00,000 100.00

*Details of shares held on August 31, 2020 and percentage held has been calculated based on the paid up capital of our Company as

on August 31, 2020.

11. Our Company has not made any Initial Public Offer of specified securities in the preceding two years from the date of filing of

this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

12. There will be no further issue of capital, whether by way of issue of bonus shares, preferential allotment, Right issue or in any
other manner during the period commencing from the date of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus until the Equity Shares of our
Company have been listed or application money unblocked on account of failure of Issue. Further, our Company does not intend
to alter its capital structure within six months from the date of opening of the offer, by way of split/ consolidation of the
denomination of Equity Shares. However, our Company may further issue equity shares (including issue of securities convertible
into Equity Shares) whether preferential or otherwise after the date of the listing of equity shares to finance an acquisition, merger
or joint venture or for regulatory compliance or such other scheme of arrangement or any other purpose as the Board of Directors
may deem fit, if an opportunity of such nature is determined by the Board of Directors to be in the interest of our Company.

13. Capital Buildup in respect of Shareholding of our Promoters

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, Our Promoters, Mr. Gaurav Lath and Mr. Nitin Jain collectively holds 41,99,500
Equity Shares of our Company. None of the Equity Shares held by our Promoters are subject to any pledge.

Set forth below is the build-up of the shareholding of our Promoters in our Company since incorporation.
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January Upon
19, 2011 5,000 10.00 10.00 Cash Incorporation 0.12 [®]
Y3 | 45000 | 1000 10.00 Cash Right Issue 107 [e]
Mazrgrl]sz& 50,000 | 10.00 75.00 Cash Right Issue 1.19 [e]
June 24, Other than Bonus in the
2022 20,00,000 | 10.00 i Cash ratio of 20:1 47.62 [e]
Julv 28 Transfer of
Y <6, (250) | 10.00 10.00 Nil Shares by (0.01) [o]
2022 "
way gift®
Total 20,99,750 49.99 [e]
January Upon
19, 2011 5,000 10.00 10.00 Cash Incorporation 0.12 [®]
3”2'(3)’120’ 45,000 | 10.00 10.00 Cash Right Issue 1.07 [o]
Mareh28. | 50000 | 10.00 75.00 Cash Right Issue 1.19 [e]
June 24, Other than Bonus in the
o002 | 20,00,000 ) 10.00 ) Cash ratio of 20:1 4762 [e]
Transfer of
July 28, (250) 10.00 10.00 Nil Shares by (0.01) [e]
2022 4
way gift
Total 20,99,750 49.99 [e]
Grand 41,99,500 99.99 [e]
Total

Note: None of the Shares has been pledged by our Promoters.

(i) Details of transfer of share by way of gift from Mr. Nitin Jain 250 Equity Shares dated July 28, 2022.

1. July 28, 2022 Mr. Nitin Jain 50 Mr. Ashok Jain
2. July 28, 2022 Mr. Nitin Jain 200 Mrs. Mahima Jain
Total 250

(ii) Details of transfer of share by way of gift from Mr. Gaurav Lath 250 Equity Shares dated July 28, 2022.

1. July 28, 2022 Mr. Gaurav Lath 150 Mr. Govind Prasad Lath

2. July 28, 2022 Mr. Gaurav Lath 50 Mrs. Rekha Lath

3. July 28, 2022 Mr. Gaurav Lath 50 Mrs. Pankhuri Lath
Total 250
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14. The average cost of acquisition of or subscription of shares by our Promoters is set forth in the table below:

1 Mr. Nitin Jain 20,99,750 2.02
2 Mr. Gaurav Lath 20,99,750 2.02

15. Shareholding of Promoters & Promoter Group

Following are the details of pre and post Issue shareholding of persons belonging to the category “Promoters and Promoter Group™:

Promoters
1 Mr. Nitin Jain 20,99,750 49.99 [o] [e]
2. Mr. Gaurav Lath 20,99,750 49.99 [e] [o]
Promoter Group
3. Mr. Govind Prasad Lath 150 0.00 [e] [e]
4. Mrs. Rekha Lath 50 0.00 [e] [e]
e Mrs. Pankhuri Lath 50 0.00 [e] [e]
6. Mr. Ashok Jain 50 0.00 [e] [e]
7. Mrs. Mahima Jain 200 0.00 [o] [e]

16. Except as provided below, no Equity Shares were acquired/ purchased/ sold by the Promoters and Promoter Group, Directors and
their immediate relatives within six months immediately preceding the date of filing of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

June 20, 2022 | Mr. Nitin Jain 20,00,000 47.62% | Subscribed the Bonus Issue Promoter

June 20, 2022 | Mr. Gaurav Lath 20,00,000 47.62% | Subscribed the Bonus Issue Promoter
July 28, 2022 | Mr. Nitin Jain (250) 0.00 Transfer Promoter
July 28, 2022 | Mr. Gaurav Lath (250) 0.00 Transfer Promoter
July 28, 2022 | Mr. Govind 150 0.00 Acquisition of share by way of Promoter Group

Prasad Lath Transfer
July 28, 2022 | Mrs. Rekha Lath 50 0.00 Acquisition of share by way of

Promoter Group

Transfer
July 28, 2022 | Mrs. Pankhuri 50 0.00 Acquisition of share by way of Promoter Group
Lath Transfer
July 28, 2022 | Mr. Ashok Jain 50 0.00 ¢rc;nuslfs;:|on of share by way of Promoter Group
July 28, 2022 | Mrs. Mahima Jain 200 0.00 ¢rc;1nuslfs;:|on of share by way of Promoter Group

17. None of our Promoters, Promoter Group, our Directors and their relatives has entered into any financing arrangement or financed
the purchase of the Equity Shares of our Company by any other person during the period of six months immediately preceding the
date of filing of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

18.Details of Promoter’s Contribution Locked-in for Three Years

Pursuant to Regulation 236 and 238 of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, an aggregate of 20% of the post issue capital held by our
Promoters shall be considered as Promoter’s Contribution (“Promoter’s Contribution”) and shall be locked-in for a period of three
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years from the date of allotment of Equity shares issued pursuant to this Issue. The lock in of Promoter’s Contribution would be
created as per applicable law and procedure and details of the same shall also be provided to the Stock Exchange before listing of the
Equity Shares.

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, our Promoters hold 41,99,500 Equity Shares constituting 73.52% of the Post-
Issued, subscribed and paid up Equity Share Capital of our Company, which are eligible for the Promoter’s contribution.

Our Promoters have given written consent to include 11,50,000 Equity Shares held by them and subscribed and held by them as part
of Promoter’s Contribution constituting 20.13% of the post issue Equity Shares of our Company. Further, they have agreed not to sell
or transfer or pledge or otherwise dispose of in any manner, the Promoter’s contribution, for a period of three years from the date of
allotment in the Issue.

Date of Allotment/ | No. of Equity | Face Value Issue/ Acquisition/ Nature of Post-Issue Lock in
transfer and made Shares Per Share Transfer Price transaction Shareholding Period
fully paid up locked-in* ®) ® %
Mr. Nitin Jain
. Bonus in the
June 20, 2022 5,75,000 10.00 Nil ratio of 20°1 [e] 3 years
Mr. Gaurav Lath
. Bonus in the
June 20, 2022 5,75,000 10.00 Nil ratio of 20°1 [e] 3 years
Total 11,50,000 [e]

*Assuming full subscription to the Issue.

The minimum Promoter’s contribution has been brought in to the extent of not less than the specified minimum lot and from persons
defined as “Promoter” under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations. All Equity Shares, which are being locked in are not ineligible for
computation of Minimum Promoter’s Contribution as per Regulation 237 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations and are being locked in for
3 years as per Regulation 238(a) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations i.e. for a period of three years from the date of allotment of Equity
Shares in this issue.

No Equity Shares proposed to be locked-in as Minimum Promoter’s Contribution have been issued out of revaluation reserve or for
consideration other than cash and revaluation of assets or capitalization of intangible assets, involved in such transactions.

The entire pre-issue shareholding of the Promoters, other than the Minimum Promoter’s contribution which is locked in for three
years, shall be locked in for a period of one year from the date of allotment in this Issue.

Eligibility of Share for “Minimum Promoter’s Contribution in terms of clauses of Regulation 237(1) of SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations, 2018

Eligibility Status of Equity Shares

Reg. No.

Promoter’s Minimum Contribution Conditions

forming part of Promoter’s Contribution

237(1) (a) (i)

Specified securities acquired during the preceding three years, if
they are acquired for consideration other than cash and revaluation
of assets or capitalization of intangible assets is involved in such
transaction

The Minimum Promoter’s contribution does
not consist of such Equity Shares which have
been acquired for consideration other than
cash and revaluation of assets or
capitalization of intangible assets. Hence
Eligible

237 (1) (a) (ii)

Specified securities acquired during the preceding three years,
resulting from a bonus issue by utilization of revaluation reserves
or unrealized profits of the issuer or from bonus issue against
Equity Shares which are ineligible for minimum promoter’s
contribution

The minimum Promoter’s contribution does
not consist of such Equity Shares._Hence

Eligible

237 (1) ()

Specified securities acquired by promoters during the preceding
one year at a price lower than the price at which specified securities
are being offered to public in the initial public offer

The minimum Promoter’s contribution does
not consist of such Equity Shares._Hence
Eligible.
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Eligibility Status of Equity Shares

e Nt o .
Reg. No. Promoter’s Minimum Contribution Conditions fnaling el Do R ol o

237(1) (c) Specified securities allotted to promoter during the preceding one | The minimum Promoter’s contribution does
year at a price less than the issue price, against funds brought in by | not consist of such Equity Shares. Hence
them during that period, in case of an issuer formed by conversion | Eligible.

of one or more partnership firms, where the partners of the
erstwhile partnership firms are the promoters of the issuer and there
is no change in the management: Provided that specified securities,
allotted to promoters against capital existing in such firms for a
period of more than one year on a continuous basis, shall be
eligible

237 (1) (d) Specified securities pledged with any creditor. Our Promoters have not Pledged any shares
with any creditors. Accordingly, the
minimum Promoter’s contribution does not
consist of such Equity Shares. Hence
Eligible.

Details of Promoter’s Contribution Locked-in for One Year

In terms of Regulation 238(b) and 239 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, in addition to the Minimum Promoter’s contribution
which is locked in for three years, as specified above, the entire pre-issue equity share capital constituting 30,50,000 Equity Shares
shall be locked in for a period of one year from the date of allotment of Equity Shares in this Issue.

In terms of Regulation 241 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, the Equity Shares which are subject to lock-in shall carry
inscription ‘non-transferable’ along with the duration of specified non-transferable period mentioned in the face of the security
certificate. The shares which are in dematerialized form, if any, shall be locked-in by the respective depositories. The details of lock-in
of the Equity Shares shall also be provided to the Designated Stock Exchange before the listing of the Equity Shares.

Other requirements in respect of lock-in:

1. In terms of Regulation 242 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, the locked in Equity Shares held by the Promoters as specified
above, can be pledged with any scheduled commercial bank or public financial institution or a systemically important non-
banking finance company or a housing finance company as collateral security for loan granted by such bank or institution
provided that the pledge of Equity Shares is one of the terms of the sanction of the loan. Provided that securities locked in as
minimum promoter’s contribution may be pledged only if, in addition to fulfilling the above requirements, the loan has been
granted by such bank or institution, for the purpose of financing one or more of the objects of the Issue.

2. In terms of Regulation 243 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, the Equity Shares held by persons other than the Promoters prior
to the Issue may be transferred to any other person holding the Equity Shares which are locked in as per Regulation 239 of the
SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, subject to continuation of the lock-in in the hands of the transferees for the remaining period and
compliance with the SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, as applicable.

3. Further in terms of Regulation 243 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, the specified securities held by the promoters and locked-
in as per regulation 238 may be transferred to another promoters or any person of the promoter group or a new promoters or a
person in control of the issuer subject to continuation of the lock-in in the hands of the transferees for the remaining period and
compliance with SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, as applicable.

19. Neither, we nor our Promoters, Directors and the BRLM to this Issue have entered into any buyback and/ or standby
arrangements and/ or similar arrangements for the purchase of our Equity Shares from any person.

20. As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, the entire Issued Share, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of our

Company is fully paid up. Since the entire issue price in respect of the issue is payable on application, all the successful
applicants will be allotted fully paid up Equity shares.
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21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

The BRLM i.e. Hem Securities Limited and their associates do not hold any Equity Shares in our Company as on the date of
filing of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, we do not have any Employees Stock Option Scheme / Employees Stock
Purchase Scheme and we do not intend to allot any shares to our employees under Employee Stock Option Scheme/ Employee
Stock Purchase Plan from the proposed issue. As and when, options are granted to our employees under the Employee Stock
Option Scheme, our Company shall comply with the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014.

We have 7(Seven) shareholders as on the date of filing of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

As on the date of filing of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, there are no outstanding warrants, options or rights to convert
debentures, loans or other instruments which would entitle Promoters or any shareholders or any other person any option to
acquire our Equity Shares after this Initial Public Offer

Our Company has not raised any bridge loan against the proceeds of the Issue.

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, none of the shares held by our Promoters/ Promoter Group are subject to
any pledge.

We here by confirm that there will be no further issue of capital whether by way of issue of bonus shares, preferential allotment,
rights issue or in any other manner during the period commencing from the date of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus until the
Equity Shares offered have been listed or application money unblocked on account of failure of Issue.

None of our Equity Shares has been issued out of revaluation reserve created out of revaluation of assets.

An over-subscription to the extent of 1% of the Issue can be retained for the purpose of rounding off to the nearest integer during
finalizing the allotment, subject to minimum allotment, which is the minimum application size in this Issue. Consequently, the
actual allotment may go up by a maximum of 1% of the Issue, as a result of which, the post-issue paid up capital after the Issue
would also increase by the excess amount of allotment so made. In such an event, the Equity Shares held by the Promoters and
subject to 3 year lock- in shall be suitably increased; so as to ensure that 20% of the post Issue paid-up capital is locked in.
Allocation to all categories shall be made on a proportionate basis subject to valid applications received at or above the Issue
Price. Under subscription, if any, in any of the categories, would be allowed to be met with spill-over from any of the other
categories or a combination of categories at the discretion of our Company in consultation with the BRLM and Designated Stock
Exchange i.e. BSE. Such inter-se spill over, if any, would be affected in accordance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

In case of over-subscription in all categories the allocation in the issue shall be as per the requirements of Regulation 253 of
SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 and its amendments from time to time.

At any given point of time there shall be only one denomination of the Equity Shares, unless otherwise permitted by law.

Our Company shall comply with such disclosure and accounting norms as may be specified by BSE, SEBI and other regulatory
authorities from time to time.

There are no Equity Shares against which depository receipts have been issued.

Other than the Equity Shares, there is no other class of securities issued by our Company.
There are no safety net arrangements for this public issue.

As per RBI regulations, OCBs are not allowed to participate in this issue.

Our Promoters and Promoter Group will not participate in this Issue.
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39.

40.

41.

42.

This Issue is being made through Book Building Method.

Our Company has not made any public issue or rights issue of any kind or class of securities since its incorporation.

In terms of Rule 19(2)(b)(i) of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957, as amended, (the SCRR) the Issue is being
made for at least 25% of the post-issue paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company. Further, this Issue is being made in terms
of Chapter IX of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, as amended from time to time.

No person connected with the Issue shall offer any incentive, whether direct or indirect, in the nature of discount, commission,
and allowance, or otherwise, whether in cash, kind, services or otherwise, to any Applicant.

We shall ensure that transactions in Equity Shares by the Promoters and members of the Promoter Group, if any, between the date of
registering the Prospectus with the RoC and the Issue Closing Date are reported to the Stock Exchanges within 24 hours of such
transactions being completed.
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OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE

The Issue includes a fresh Issue of up to 15,12,000 Equity Shares of our Company at an Issue Price of X [e] per Equity Share.
We intend to utilize the proceeds of the Issue to meet the following objects:-

1. To meet working capital requirements;
2. General Corporate Purpose;
3. To meet issue expenses.

(Collectively referred as the “Objects”)

We believe that listing will enhance our corporate image and visibility of brand name of our Company. We also believe that our
Company will receive the benefits from listing of Equity Shares on the SME Platform of BSE (BSE SME). It will also provide
liquidity to the existing shareholders and will also create a public trading market for the Equity Shares of our Company.

Our company started its operations in the year 2011 when we got approval to manufacture and supply battery charger in traction
system of railway electrification. Our company further expanded its business in manufacturing products fitted in coaches of Indian
Railways in the year 2013 and got approved for Emergency Light Unit which is one of the most critical items of rolling stock
application in coaches of Indian Railways for passenger safety. Emergency Light Unit switches on automatically in case of power
failure or in case of accidents. Thereafter in the year 2014 we successfully received RDSO approval for manufacturing and supply of
Tensile Load Testing Machine for Porcelain & Composite Insulators before installation electrical lines. Eventually our company got
approval to Supply Brushless Dc Carriage Fans to Indian railways when it changed its technology of fans from normal DC to
Brushless DC. Over the years our company has successfully developed and is supplying a wide range of products.

Net Proceeds

The details of the Net Proceeds are set forth below:

Particulars Amt (R in Lakhs)
Gross Proceeds of the Issue [e]
Less: Issue related expenses in relation to Issue [e]
Net Proceeds of the Issue [e]

Requirement of Funds and Utilization of Net Proceeds

The Net Proceeds are proposed to be used in accordance with the details as set forth below:

S. No | Particulars Amt (R in Lakhs)
1. To meet working capital requirements [e]
2. General Corporate Purpose [e]

Total [e]

Our fund requirements and deployment thereof are based on internal management estimates of our current business plans and have not
been appraised by any bank or financial institution. These are based on current conditions and are subject to change in light of changes
in external circumstances or costs or in other financial conditions, business strategy, as discussed further below.

Means of Finance

We intend to finance our Objects of Issue through Net Issue Proceeds which is as follows:

Particulars Amt R in Lakhs)
Net Issue Proceeds [e]
Total [e]
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Since, the entire fund requirement is to be funded from the proceeds of the Issue, there is no requirement to make firm
arrangements of finance under Regulation 230(1)(e) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations through verifiable means towards at least
75% of the stated means of finance, excluding the amounts to be raised through the proposed Issue.

In case of any increase in the actual utilization of funds earmarked for the Objects, such additional funds for a particular activity will
be met by way of means available to our Company, including from internal accruals. If the actual utilization towards any of the
Objects is lower than the proposed deployment such balance will be used for future growth opportunities including funding existing
objects, if required. In case of delays in raising funds from the Issue, our Company may deploy certain amounts towards any of the
above-mentioned Objects through a combination of Internal Accruals or Unsecured Loans (Bridge Financing) and in such case the
Funds raised shall be utilized towards repayment of such Unsecured Loans or recouping of Internal Accruals.

As we operate in competitive environment, our Company may have to revise its business plan from time to time and consequently our
fund requirements may also change. Our Company’s historical expenditure may not be reflective of our future expenditure plans. Our
Company may have to revise its estimated costs, fund allocation and fund requirements owing to various factors such as economic and
business conditions, increased competition and other external factors which may not be within the control of our management. This
may entail rescheduling or revising the planned expenditure and funding requirements, including the expenditure for a particular
purpose at the discretion of the Company’s management.

For further details on the risks involved in our business plans and executing our business strategies, please see the section titled “Risk
Factors” beginning on page 24 of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Details of Utilization of Net Proceeds
The details of utilization of the Net Proceeds are set forth herein below:
1. To Meet Working Capital Requirement

With the expansion of the business the company will be in the need of additional working capital requirements. The major capital will
be invested in the trade receivables as the money gets blocked in them. The Company will meet the requirement to the extent of X [e]
lakhs from the Net Proceeds of the Issue and balance from borrowings at an appropriate time as per the requirement.

(a) Existing & Future working capital

Set forth below is the working capital based on the restated consolidated financial statements for the financial years ended March 31,
2022, March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 and the projected working capital requirements for financial years ended March 31, 2023:

(X In Lakhs)
. FY 20 FY 21 FY 22 FY 23
=5 N PErTEUELS NG Audited Audited Audited Projected

(1) | Current Assets

a) Inventories 185.91 212.76 519.94 [e]

b) Trade Receivables 388.45 752.37 296.43 [e]

C) Cash & Bank Balances 5.43 8.57 10.52 [e]

d) Short term loans and advances 1.33 4.55 0.00 [e]

e) Other Current Assets 87.00 88.14 257.95 [e]
Total - Current Assets A 668.12 1066.40 1084.84 [o]

(2) | Current Liabilities

a) Trade Payables 203.24 322.10 253.79 [e]

b) Other Current Liabilities 14.23 52.22 32.78 [e]

d) Short term Provisions 38.93 47.27 98.36 [e]
Total - Current Liabilities B 256.40 421.60 384.92 [o]

) Net Working Capital Requirement C=A-B 411.72 644.80 699.92 [o]

(4) | Funding Pattern

a) Short term Borrowings 190.57 273.89 252.14 [e]

b) Internal Accruals / Equity 221.15 370.92 447.78 [e]
Total - Source of Finance 411.72 644.81 699.92 [e]
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(b) Assumptions for working capital requirements

The following table sets forth the details of the holding period (with days rounded to the nearest whole number) considered for
financial years ended March 31, 2022, March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020, as well as projections for financial year ended March 31,
2023 and March 31, 2024.

Particulars Unit FY.20 FY.21 FY.22 FY 2
Audited Audited Audited Projected
Debtors Days 80.22 120.46 60.43 [o]
Creditors Days 36.36 85.68 45.40 [e]
Inventories Days 58.78 89.54 56.87 [o]

(c) Justification

1 | Debtors We have assumed Debtors holding period to be at around [e] days for F.Y. 2022-23

2 | Creditors | We have assumed Creditors payment period to be at around [e] days for F.Y. 2022-23

3 | Inventories | We have assumed Inventories holding period to be at around [e] days for F.Y. 2022-23

2. General Corporate Purpose

Our management, in accordance with the policies of our Board, will have flexibility in utilizing the proceeds earmarked for general
corporate purposes. We intend to deploy the balance Fresh Issue proceeds aggregating X [@] Lakhs towards the general corporate
purposes to drive our business growth. In accordance with the policies set up by our Board, we have flexibility in applying the
remaining Net Proceeds, for general corporate purpose including but not restricted to, meeting operating expenses, initial development
costs for projects other than the identified projects, and the strengthening of our business development and marketing capabilities,
meeting exigencies, which the Company in the ordinary course of business may not foresee or any other purposes as approved by our
Board of Directors, subject to compliance with the necessary provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

We confirm that any issue related expenses shall not be considered as a part of General Corporate Purpose. Further in case, our actual
issue expenses turn to be lesser than the estimated issue expenses of X [®] lakhs, such surplus amount shall be utilized for General
Corporate Purpose in such a manner that the amount for general corporate purposes, as mentioned in the Prospectus, shall not exceed
25% of the amount raised by our Company through this Issue.

3. Public Issue Expenses

The total estimated Issue Expenses are Z [@] Lakhs, which is [@] % of the total Issue Size. The details of the Issue Expenses are
tabulated below:

Activity (R in Lakh)* As a % of Estimates | As a % of
Issue Expenses Issue Size
Book Running Lead Manger Fees [e] [e] [e]
Underwriting Commission [e] [e] [e]
Fees Payable to Registrar to the Issue [e] [e] [e]
Fees Payable for Advertising and Publishing Expenses [o] [e] [e]
Fees Payable to Regulators including Stock Exchanges [o] [e] [e]
Payment for Printing & Stationery, Postage, etc. [e] [e] [e]
Fees Payable to Auditor, Legal Advisors and other Professionals [o] [e] [e]
Others (Fees payable for Marketing & distribution expenses, Selling [o] [e] [e]
Commission, Syndicate Member Commission, Brokerage, Processing
Fees*, and Miscellaneous Expenses)
Total [o] [e] [e]

* Includes commission/ Processing fees of 3 [®] per valid application forms for SCSB"'s. In case the total processing fees payable to
SCSBs exceeds ¥ [e] lakhs, then the amount payable to SCSBs would be proportionately distributed based on the number of valid
applications such that the total Processing Fees payable does not exceed 3 [®] lakhs.
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Proposed Schedule of Implementation:

The proposed year wise break up of deployment of funds and Schedule of Implementation of Net Issue Proceeds is as under:

(X In Lakhs)
S. No. | Particulars Amount to be deployed and utilized in
FY 22-23
1. To meet working capital requirements [o]
2. General Corporate Purpose [e]
3. Issue Expenses [o]
Total [o]

Funds Deployed and Source of Funds Deployed:

[e], Chartered Accountants vide their certificate dated [e] have confirmed that as on date of certificate the following funds have been
deployed for the proposed object of the Issue:

(X In Lakhs)
Particulars Amount
Issue Expenses (]
Total [o]

Sources of Financing for the Funds Deployed:

[¢], Chartered Accountants vide their certificate dated [e] have confirmed that as on date of certificate the following funds have been
deployed for the proposed object of the Issue:

(X In Lakhs)
Particulars Amount
Internal Accruals [e]
Total [e]
Appraisal

None of the Objects have been appraised by any bank or financial institution or any other independent third-party organization. The
funding requirements of our Company and the deployment of the proceeds of the Issue are currently based on available quotations and
management estimates. The funding requirements of our Company are dependent on a number of factors which may not be in the
control of our management, including but not limited to variations in interest rate structures, changes in our financial condition and
current commercial conditions of our Business and are subject to change in light of changes in external circumstances or in our
financial condition, business or strategy.

Shortfall of Funds
Any shortfall in meeting the fund requirements will be met by way of internal accruals and or unsecured Loans.
Bridge Financing Facilities

As on the date of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus, we have not raised any bridge loans which are proposed to be repaid from the Net
Proceeds.

Monitoring Utilization of Funds

As the size of the Issue will not exceed 10,000 Lakhs, the appointment of Monitoring Agency would not be required as per
Regulation 262(1) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Our Board and the management will monitor the utilization of the Net Issue
Proceeds through our Audit Committee. Pursuant to Regulation 32 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, our Company shall on half-yearly
basis disclose to the Audit Committee the Application of the proceeds of the Issue. On an annual basis, our Company shall prepare a
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statement of funds utilized for purposes other than stated in this Prospectus and place it before the Audit Committee. Such disclosures
shall be made only until such time that all the proceeds of the Issue have been utilized in full.

Interim Use of Proceeds

Pending utilization of the Issue proceeds of the Issue for the purposes described above, our Company will deposit the Net Proceeds
with scheduled commercial banks included in schedule 11 of the RBI Act.

Our Company confirms that it shall not use the Net Proceeds for buying, trading or otherwise dealing in shares of any listed company
or for any investment in the equity markets or investing in any real estate product or real estate linked products.

Variation in Objects

In accordance with Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013, our Company shall not vary the objects of the Issue without our Company
being authorized to do so by the shareholders by way of a Special Resolution. In addition, the notice issued to the Shareholders in
relation to the passing of such special resolution shall specify the prescribed details as required under the Companies Act and shall be
published in accordance with the Companies Act and the rules there under. As per the current provisions of the Companies Act, our
Promoters or controlling Shareholders would be required to provide an exit opportunity to such shareholders who do not agree to the
proposal to vary the objects, at such price, and in such manner, as may be prescribed by SEBI, in this regard.

Other confirmations
There are no material existing or anticipated transactions with our Promoters, our Directors, our Company’s key Managerial
personnel, in relation to the utilization of the Net Proceeds. No part of the Net Proceeds will be paid by us as consideration to our

Promoters, our Directors or key managerial personnel except in the normal course of business and in compliance with the applicable
laws.
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BASIS FOR ISSUE PRICE

Investors should read the following summary with the section titled “Risk Factors”, the details about our Company under the section
titled “Our Business” and its financial statements under the section titled “Financial Information of the Company” beginning on
page 24, 97 and 137 respectively of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus. The trading price of the Equity Shares of Our Company could
decline due to these risks and the investor may lose all or part of his investment.

Price Band/ Issue Price shall be determined by our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager on the basis of the
assessment of market demand for the Equity Shares through the Book Building Process and on the basis of the qualitative and
quantitative factors as described in this section. The face value of the Equity Shares is X 10/- each and the Issue Price is [®] times of
the face value at the lower end of the Price Band and [e] times of the face value at the upper end of the Price Band.

For the purpose of making an informed investment decision, the investors should also refer “Risk Factors”, “Our Business” and
“Financial Statement as restated” beginning on page 24, 97 and 137 respectively of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

QUALITATIVE FACTORS

We believe the following business strengths allow us to successfully compete in the industry:
a) We offer a diversified range of products.
b) Quality Assurance
c) Long Standing Relationship with our customers

d) Experienced and Qualified Management and Employee base

For a detailed discussion on the qualitative factors which form the basis for computing the price, please refer to sections titled “Our
Business” beginning on page 97 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

QUANTITATIVE FACTORS

The information presented below relating to our Company is based on the Restated Consolidated Financial Statements. For details,
please refer section titled “Financial Information of the Company” on page 137 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Some of the quantitative factors which may form the basis for calculating the Issue Price are as follows:
1. Basic & Diluted Earnings per share (EPS) (Face value of X 10 each):

As per the Restated Consolidated Financial Statements:-

Sr. No | Period Basic & Diluted () Weights
1. | Financial Year 2019-2020 2.49 1
2. | Financial Year 2020-2021 3.41 2
3. | Financial Year 2021-2022 6.17 3
Weighted Average 4.63 6

Notes:
i. The figures disclosed above are based on the Restated Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company.

ii. The face value of each Equity Share is 10.00.

iii. Earnings per Share has been calculated in accordance with Accounting Standard 20 — “Earnings per Share” issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

iv. The above statement should be read with Significant Accounting Policies and the Notes to the Restated Consolidated Financial
Statements as appearing in Annexure 1V.

v. Basic Earnings per Share = Net Profit/(Loss) after tax, as restated attributable to equity shareholders/ Weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

vi. Diluted Earnings per Share = Net Profit/(Loss) after tax, as restated attributable to equity shareholders/ Weighted average
number of diluted potential equity shares outstanding during the year.
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2. Price Earning (P/E) Ratio in relation to the Price Band of Z [e] to X [e] per Equity Share of Face Value of ¥ 10/- each fully

paid up

Particulars (P/E) Ratio at (P/E) Ratio at

the Floor Price the Cap Price
P/E ratio based on the Basic & Diluted EPS, as restated for Financial Year 2021-2022 [e] [e]
P/E ratio based on the Weighted Average EPS, as restated. [e] [e]

There are no listed companies in India that are engaged in a business similar to that of our company accordingly it is not possible to
provide an industry comparison in relation to our company.

3. Average Return on Return on Net worth (RoNW)*

Sr.No | Period RoNW (%) Weights
1 Financial Year 2019-2020 29.83% 1
2 Financial Year 2020-2021 28.91% 2
3 Financial Year 2021-2022 34.35% 3
Weighted Average 31.78% 6

i The RoNW has been computed by dividing net profit after tax (excluding exceptional items) with restated Net worth as at the
end of the year

ii.  Weighted average = Aggregate of year-wise weighted RONW divided by the aggregate of weights i.e. (RoONW x Weight) for
each year/ Total of weights.

4. Net Asset Value (NAV) per Equity Share:

R in lakhs)
Sr. No. | NAV per Equity Share Outstanding at the end of the year
1. As at March 31, 2022 17.95
2. NAV per Equity Share after the Issue [e]
3. Issue Price [e]
Notes: -

1. NAV per share =Restated Net worth at the end of the year/period divided by total number of equity shares outstanding at the
end of the year.

2. Net worth is computed as the sum of the aggregate of paid-up equity share capital, all reserves created out of the profits,
securities premium account received in respect of equity shares and debit or credit balance of profit and loss account. It may
be noted that equity component of financial instruments is excluded while calculating Net worth of the Company.

3. Issue Price per Equity Share will be determined by our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager.

5. Comparison of Accounting Ratios with Industry Peers:

There are no listed companies in India that are engaged in a business similar to that of our company accordingly it is not possible to
provide an industry comparison in relation to our company.

Concord Control Systems Limited is a Book Built Issue and the price band for the same shall be published 2 working days before
opening of the Issue in in all editions of the English national newspaper [e], all editions of Hindi national newspaper [e] and Lucknow
Edition of Regional newspaper [e] where the registered office of the company is situated each with wide circulation.

The Price Band/ Floor Price/ Issue Price shall be determined by our Company in consultation with the BRLM and will be justified by
us in consultation with the BRLM on the basis of the above information. Investors should read the above mentioned information along
with “Our Business”, “Risk Factors” and “Restated Financial Statements” on pages 97, 24 and 137 respectively, to have a more
informed view. The trading price of the Equity Shares of our Company could decline due to the factors mentioned in “Risk Factors”
or any other factors that may arise in the future and you may lose all or part of your investments.
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STATEMENT OF SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS

To,

The Board of Directors,

Concord Control Systems Limited,

G-36 U.P.S.1.D.C, Industrial Area Deva Road Chinhat
Lucknow-226019, Uttar Pradesh, India.

Dear Sirs/ Madam,

Sub: Statement of Tax Benefits (‘The Statement’) available to Concord Control Systems Limited (“The Company”) and its
shareholders prepared in accordance with the requirement in Schedule VIII- Clause (VII) (L) of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Issue of Capital Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2018, as amended (“The Regulation”)

We hereby report that the enclosed annexure prepared by the management of Concord Control Systems Limited, states the special tax
benefits available to the Company and the shareholders of the Company under the Income-Tax Act, 1961, the Central Goods and
Services Tax Act, 2017, the Integrated Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, the Union Territory Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017,
respective State Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 (collectively the “GST Act”) presently in force in India. Several of these benefits
are dependent on the Company or its shareholders fulfilling the conditions prescribed under the relevant provisions of the Act. Hence,
the ability of the Company or its shareholders to derive the tax benefits is dependent upon fulfilling such conditions which, based on
business imperatives which the Company may face in the future, the Company may or may not choose to fulfill.

The benefits discussed in the enclosed Annexure cover only special tax benefits available to the Company and do not cover any
general tax benefits available to the Company. Further, the preparation of enclosed statement and the contents stated therein is the
responsibility of the Company’s management. We are informed that, this Statement is only intended to provide general information to
the investors and is neither designed nor intended to be a substitute for professional tax advice. In view of the individual nature of the
tax consequences and the changing tax laws, each investor is advised to consult his or her own tax consultant with respect to the
specific tax implications arising out of their participation in the proposed initial public offering of Equity shares (“the Issue”) by the
Company.
We do not express any opinion or provide any assurance as to whether:

a) The Company or its shareholders will continue to obtain these benefits in future; or

b) The conditions prescribed for availing the benefits have been/would be met.
The contents of the enclosed statement are based on information, explanations and representations obtained from the Company and on
the basis of our understanding of the business activities and operations of the Company.

Limitations:

Our views are based on facts and assumptions indicated to us and the existing provisions of tax law and its interpretations, which are
subject to change or modification from time to time by subsequent legislative, regulatory, administrative, or judicial decisions. Any
such changes, which could also be retrospective, could have an effect on the validity of our views stated herein. We assume no
obligation to update this statement on any events subsequent to its issue, which may have a material effect on the discussions herein.
This report including enclosed annexure are intended solely for your information and for the inclusion in the Draft red hearing
Prospectus/ Red hearing Prospectus or any other issue related material in connection with the proposed initial public offer of the
Company and is not to be used, referred to or distributed for any other purpose without our prior written consent.

This statement has been prepared solely in connection with the Proposed Offer by the Company under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended.

For S R Goyal & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN 001537C

Sd/-
A. K. Atolia
Partner
M. No. 077201
Place: Jaipur
Date: September 06, 2022
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ANNEXURE TO THE STATEMENT OF SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS

The information provided below sets out the special tax benefits available to the Company and the Equity Shareholders under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 presently in force in India. It is not exhaustive or comprehensive and is not intended to be a substitute for
professional advice. Investors are advised to consult their own tax consultant with respect to the tax implications of an investment in
Equity Shares particularly in view of the fact that certain recently enacted legislation may not have a direct legal precedent or may
have a different interpretation on the benefits, which an investor can avail.

A. SPECIAL DIRECT AND INDIRECT TAX BENEFITS TO THE COMPANY:
Under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (“the Act”)
Special tax benefits available to the Company
» The Company is not entitled to any special tax benefits under the Income Tax Act, 1961 and GST Act.
B. SPECIAL DIRECT AND INDIRECT TAXBENEFITS TO THE SHAREHOLDERS:
» The Shareholders of the Company are not entitled to any special tax benefits under the Income Tax Act, 1961 and GST Act.
NOTES:

1. The above Annexure of special tax benefits sets out the provisions of Tax Laws in a summary manner only and is not a complete
analysis or listing of all potential tax consequences of the purchase, ownership and disposal of shares.

2. The above Annexure covers only the special tax benefits under the Act, read with the relevant rules, circulars and notifications
and does not cover any benefit under any other law in force in India. This Annexure also does not discuss any tax consequences,
in the country outside India, of an investment in the shares of an Indian company.

3. The above Annexure of special tax benefits is as per the current direct tax laws relevant for the assessment year 2023-24. Several
of these benefits are dependent on the Company or its shareholders fulfilling the conditions prescribed under the relevant
provisions of the Tax Laws.

4. In respect of non-residents, the tax rates and consequent taxation mentioned above will be further subject to any benefits
available under the relevant Double Taxation Avoidance Agreement, if any, entered into between India and the country in which
the non-resident has fiscal domicile.

5. A new Section 115BAA has been inserted by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019 (‘the Amendment Act, 2019°) with
effect from Financial Year 2019-20 granting an option to domestic companies to compute corporate tax at a reduced rate of
25.168% (22% plus surcharge of 10% and cess of 4%), provided such companies do not avail specified exemptions/ incentives.
The option under section 115BAA of the Act once exercised cannot be subsequently withdrawn for any future financial year.
The Amendment Act, 2019 further provides that domestic companies availing such option will not be required to pay Minimum
Alternate Tax (‘MAT’) under Section 115JB. The CBDT has further issued Circular 29/2019 dated October 02, 2019 clarifying
that since the MAT provisions under Section 115JB itself would not apply where a domestic company exercises option of lower
tax rate under Section 115BAA, MAT credit would not be available.

In such a case, the Company is not allowed to claim any of the following deductions/ exemptions under the Act: -

Deduction under the provisions of Section 10AA.

Deduction under clause (iia) of sub- section (1) of Section 32 (additional depreciation).
Deduction under section 32AD or Section 33AB or Section 33ABA

Deduction under section 35AD or Section 35CCC

Deduction under section 80G

ANENENENEN

Lower corporate tax rate under Section 115BAA of the Act and Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT') credit under section 115JAA of the
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Act which are in general available and hence may not be treated as special tax benefits.

6.

The Company has evaluated and decided to exercise the option permitted under Section 115BAA of the Act for the purpose of
computing its income-tax liability with effect from Financial Year 2019-20.

This Annexure is intended only to provide general information to the investors and is neither designed nor intended to be a
substitute for professional tax advice. In view of the individual nature of tax consequences, each investor is advised to consult his
or her tax advisor with respect to specific tax consequences of his/her investment in the shares of the Company.

No assurance is given that the revenue authorities/ courts will concur with the views expressed herein. The views are based on
the existing provisions of law and its interpretation, which are subject to changes from time to time. We do not assume
responsibility to update the views consequent to such changes.

For S R Goyal & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN 001537C

Sd/-

A. K. Atolia

Partner

M. No. 077201

Place: Jaipur

Date: September 06, 2022
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SECTION V - ABOUT THE COMPANY

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The information in this section has been extracted from various websites and publicly available documents from various industry
sources. The data may have been re-classified by us for the purpose of presentation. Neither we nor any other person connected with
the issue has independently verified the information provided in this section. Industry sources and publications, referred to in this
section, generally state that the information contained therein has been obtained from sources generally believed to be reliable but
their accuracy, completeness and underlying assumptions are not guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured, and,
accordingly, investment decisions should not be based on such information.

GLOBAL ECONOMY

Following more than two years of pandemic, spillovers from the Russian Federation’s invasion of Ukraine are set to sharply hasten the
deceleration of global economic activity, which is now expected to slow to 2.9 percent in 2022. The war in Ukraine is leading to high
comma